Subject name(s) Date Law Enforcement ~ Alleged Conduct Summary Relevant statute(s) State Court ‘Type of Action _ Indivi i i i Matter Number Dates of unlawful Penalties Press Release  Petition/ Agreement/J

Announced  Agency conduct (civil/criminal fines, Complaint/ ~ udgment
incarceration) Indictment
‘Grubhub Holdings Inc. 7/29/2021  Massachusetts AG Consumer fraud Grubhub Holdings Inc. is accused of violating a provision of Massachusetts's economic 6. L.¢. 93A Massachusetts  D. Mass. ciil No Yes No https://www.mas
ion, which p and other third party i enforcement s.gov/news/ag:

platforms from charging fees to restaurants that exceed 15 percent of an order's menu healey-sues-

price. The fee cap came into effect on January 14, 2021 and remained in place until Erubhub-for

Governor Baker lfted the state of emergency in Massachusetts on June 15, 2021. charging:

restaurants

illegally-high-fees-
during-covid-19.
public-health-
emergency

Dinesh Sah 7/28/2021  USDO) PPP fraud Dinesh Sah pleaded guilty to wire-fraud and money laundering for submitting 15 fraudulent 18 U.S.C. §§ 1343, 1957 Texas W.D. Tex, fiminal Yes No No 3:20-cr-00484 Incarceration; https:/fwwwjusti
applications that sought $24.8 million in Paycheck Protection Program (*PPP*) loans. Sah enforcement Restitution ce.gov/opa/pr/te
filed the claims under the names of various businesses that he owned or controlled,
claiming these businesses had numerous employees and hundreds of thousands of dollars
in payroll expenses; i reality, no business had employees or paid wages consistent with the million-covid-19
amounts claimed in the PPP applications. Sah received over $17 million in PP loan funds, reli
which were used for his personal benefi, including for the purchase of multiple homes, scheme
mortgage payments, and to buy a fleet of luxury cars. Sah was sentenced to more than 11
vears in prison, and ordered to pay $17,284,648.79 in restitution.

Danielle Miller 7/28/2021  USDO) Unemployment fraud;  Danielle Miller was charged with wire fraud and aggravated identity theft for allegedly 18 U.S.C.§§ 1343, 1028A(a)(1)  Massachusetts  D. Mass. Criminal Yes No No 1:21-cr-10228 https://wwwusti
EIDL fraud devising h fraudulentl i enforcement ce gov/usao:
("EIDL") and Pandemic "PUAY). Millr allegedly used personal ma/pr/miami-
information of at least five individuals to open bank accounts and apply for more than woman-indicted:
$900,000 in loans; Miller also is accused of misusing various identities to apply for PUA wire-fraud-and:
benefits. The scheme was exposed after Miller's social media accounts posted various identity-theft-

images of luxury vacations.

Aditya Raj Sharma 7/28/2021  USDO) PP Fraud Aditya Raj Sharma pleaded guilty to wire fraud for fraudulently applying for over $9.6 18 US.C. §1343 Minnesota ©. Minn. fiminal Yes No No 0:20-¢r-00261 Forfeiture
million from the Paycheck Protection Program (*PPP*). Sharma obtained and enforcement
misappropriated more than $1.7 million after lenders approved three PPP applications.
Sharma allegedly used the funds to pay off unrelated legal debts, fund new business
ventures, transfer to an account in India, and pay for home improvements.
administrations
Michael Lee Lewis; Mary Landon Benton; 7/28/2021  USDOJ Unemployment fraud  Michael Lee Lewis, Mary Landon Benton, and Angelica Cartwright-Powers pleaded guilty to 18 U5.C. § 1341 Virginia ED.Va. Criminal Yes No No 2:21-¢1-00033 https://wwwusti
Angelica Cartwright-Powers mail fraud for their ina i enforcement ce.gov/usao
benefits by using the personal information of over 30 Virginia prison inmates. While mn/pr/maple-
incarcerated, Lewis worked with Benton and Cartwright-Powers to collect personal grove-man
information of inmates to submit fraudulent unemployment claims. The conspirators and pleads-guilty-96-
the prisoners whose information was used for the unemployment applications shared the million-scheme-
proceeds of the crimes, which amounted to over $330,000. Although the conspirators defraud-small
i 436,834, the Virginia Empl ‘ommission was able business
of funds after Lewis' sentencing administr
December 2, 2021
https;//usahealthwarehouse.com; 7/27/2021  UsDO) Internet Fraud The Maryland U.S. Attorney's Office seized two domains, https://usahealthwarehouse.com Maryland . Md. No No No https://www justi
walmartpandemicgrant.com and which purported to sell and distri oViD-19 ce.gov/usao
vaccine or distribute "funds and resources” to those affected by COVID-19. Instead, both md/pr/maryland:
domains were allegedly used to collect personal information of individuals visiting the site us-attorney-s
for nefarious purposes, including fraud, phishing attacks, and/or deployment of malware. officeseizes-two-
fraudulent.
domains-
purportedy
offering-covid-19
Arael Doolittle /272021 USDO) Consumer fraud Areal Doolittle pleaded guilty to conspiracy to commit wire fraud in connectionwitha 18 US.C.§371 Texas 5.0, Tex. Criminal Yes No No 4:20-cr-00621 https:/fwwwjusti
scheme to fraudulently sell 50 million non-existent N9 masks to the Australian enforcement ce gov/usao-
government. The Australian government was supposed to pay over $317 million for the sdtx/pr/local
masks before authorities disrupted the transaction. Doolittle’s sentencing is scheduled for man-guilty-317-
October 25, 2021, million-n95-mask.
scam
Gregory Marcus Tackett 7/27/2021  USDO) fraud  Gregory Marcus guilty to conspiracy to defraud the government, 18USC.§§371,1349,1341,  Virginia Criminal Yes No No 1:21-¢r-00015 Incarceration https://wwwusti
conspiracy to commit mail fraud, aggravated identity theft, and obstructing justice for his 10284, 1512(c) enforcement ce gov/usao:
role in a scheme to fraudulently file more than $499,000 in pandemic unemployment ‘wava/pr/southw
benefits. Tackett admitted to conspiring with others, including his gilfriend, Leetynn estvirginia-man-
Danielle Chykta, to file at least 37 i sentenced-108
benefits. Tackett was sentenced to 108 months in federal prison. months-role-
pandemic
unemployment-
fraud-scheme
Macpherson Osemwegie; Osakpamwan  7/26/2021  USDOJ v and Osaretin Godsp i with 18USC.§61349,1343,1957  Massachusetts D Mass Criminal Yes No No 1:21-¢-10219; 121-cr- https://www justi
Henry Omoruyi; Osaretin Godspower conspiracy to commit bank and wire fraud, wire fraud, and engaging in unlawful monetary enforcement 10217 ce.gov/usao
Oomoruyi transactions in online including d ma/pr/two-
pandemic unemployment assistance fraud. nigerian-nationals
indicted-romance
and-pandemic
unemployment-
fraud:schemes
Rodneka Howard; Rodney Howard; 7/26/2021  USDO) Unemployment Fraud  Dustin Hill and Rodney Howard, both incarcerated at Pennsylvania State Correctional 21 U.5.C. §§ 846, 841(a)(1), Pennsylvania  W.D. Pa. Criminal Yes No No 2:21-1-00309; 2:21-cr- hitps://www justi
DeAndre Jackson; Dustin Hill Institutions, and Rodneka Howard and DeAndre Jackson are accused of shipping drugsinto. 841(b)(1)(C); 18 U.S.C. § 1952(a)(3) enforcement 00310 ce.gov/usao
Rodneka Howard, and wdpapr/two-sci-
Rodney Howard allegedly applied for pandemic unemployment benefits of behalf of three inmates two
incarcerated individuals. allegheny-county-
residents-
charged-schemes-
smuggle-
synthetic
Melissa Hayes 7/26/2021  USDO) Unemployment fraud  Melissa Hayes pleaded guilty to conspiracy to commit unemployment fraud and conspiracy 18 U.5.C. §§ 371, 1349, 1341 Virginia W.D.Va. Criminal Yes No No 1:21-¢r-00017 Incarceration hitps://www justi
to commit mail fraud in connection with filing more than $499,000 pandemic enforcement ce.gov/usao
benefits. H llected information from 35 co- wdva/pr/bristol-
conspirators, including 15 inmates in the custody of the Virginia Department of Corrections. tennessee-
Hayes was sentenced to 24 months in federal prison. woman:



Arthur Pacheco 7/23/2021  UsDO) fraud  Arthur f wire fraud, i toaschemein  18U.S.C.§§1349,1343 Massachusetts  D. Mass. Criminal Yes No No 1:21-cr-10025 hitps://www justi

which Pacheco and his wife filed laims for Pandemic Rssist enforcement ce.govfusao-
("PUA"). Pacheco's wife, while working for the Massachusetts Department of ma/or/former-
Unemployment Assistance ("DUA'), misused her position to submit PUA claims on behaf of new-bedford-
herself and Arthur Pacheco, who was incarcerated at the time. Pacheco's wife, Tifany, is man-pleads-guilty.
scheduled to plead guilty on August 30, 2021. false-pandemic-
unemployment.
claims
Kenny Terlent /232021 USDOJ Unemployment fraud  Kenny Terlent was ordered to remain in a federal detention center without bond pending 18 U.S.C. §§ 1029(a)(3); Florida SD.Fla. Criminal Yes No No 1210120380 hitps//wwwjusti
histrial on charges ofillegally possessing a machine gun, dentity theft, and exploiting  1028A(1)(1), 1029(b)(1), 922(0) enforcement ce gov/usao
covip19 Terlent and his lleged sdflfor/bond-
used stolen identities to apply for unemployment compensation benefits, and then used denied-alleged:
bank cards in other people’s names to collect the to bank accounts T7th-street-gang-
that they controlled. member-charged

federal-gun-and-
covid-19-fraud

Ricky Dixon; Meghan Thomas; Jesika ~ 7/22/2021  USDOJ PP Fraud rged for their i in a fraudulent scheme to Criminal Yes No No May - August 2020 https://wwwjusti
Blakely; Amanda Christian; Dwan Ashong obtain approximately $11.1 million in Paycheck Protection Program (*PPP*) loans for their enforcement ce.gov/opa/pr/tw
(aka Dwan Gilpin); John Gaines (aka personal benefit: Ricky Dixon, Meghan Thomas, Jesika Blakely, Amanda Christian, Dwan enty-two

Marty Gaines); Charles Petty (aka Charles. Ashong, John Gaines, Charles Petty, lerry Baptiste, Derek Parker, David Belgrave Il Charles charged-

Knight); Jerry Baptiste; Derek Parker; Hill IV, Ryan Whittley, €I Hadj Sall, Rick McDuffie, Teldrin Foster, Denesseria Slaton, connection:

David Belgrave I; Charles Hill IV; Ryan o and Carla Jack: h to their role in Liemillon,

Wittley; €I Hadj Sall; Rick McDuffie; the scheme: Darrell Thomas, Denesseria Slaton, khalil Gibran Green . Bern Benoi paycheck

Teldrin Foster; Denesseria Slaton; Chairmaine Redding, and Andre Lee Gaines. The defendants are accused of fraudulently protection-

Charmaine Redding; Carla Jackson; Darrel seeking PP loans on behalf of 14 businesses. Upon receipt of the PP loan proceeds, the ‘rogram-fraud:

Thomas; Khalil Gibran Green Sr.; Bern funds h a series were devised scheme

Benoit; Charmaine Redding; Andre Lee to disguise the origins of the funds and how the funds were spent.

Gain

Daniel Maleus /222021 USDO) Unemployment fraud  Daniel Maleus was indicted on wire fraud, conspiracy to commit wire fraud, and aggravated 18 US.C. § 1343,1349, 10284 Massachusetts  D. Mass. Criminal Yes No No 1216010222 April 2020 - April 2021 https://wwwusti
identity theft for allegedly filing and conspiring with others to file fraudulent Pandemic enforcement ce gov/usao:
Unemployment Assistance ("PUA") claims in the names of others. Maleus and his co- mafor/stoneham
conspirators obtained more than $250,000 in payments. man-indicted-

identity-theft-and

Santwon Antonio Davis /222021 USDO) Defraud Employer  Santwon Antonio Davis was sentenced for wire fraud related to a scheme to defraud his 18 U.S.C. §5 1343, 1344 Georgia N.D.Ga. Criminal Yes No No 1:20¢1-00476 Incarceration;
employer, and on a bank fraud charge related to a scheme to defraud a mortgage enforcement Restitution
company. Davis requested and received time off from work for the alleged death of his
child, and claiming that he had tested positive for COVID-19; both claims were false. Given
Davis' report he had contracted COVID-19, the company closed it faciliy for cleaning and
paid its employees to undergo quarantine procedures. After seeing news stories related to fraudulent-covid
this charge, Davis' mortgage company discovered Davis had submitted a fraudulent 19-test-employer-
mortgage application, which included falsified earnings and employment history. Davis was and-separate-
sentenced to serve three years in prison, with five years supervised release, and was bank
ordered to pay $187,550 in restitution to his former employer.

Konrad Piekos; Matthew George 7/22/2021  USDO) Unemployment Fraud  Matthew Lombardo, Konrad Piekos, Ryan Genetti, Dobrila Milosavijevic, Lindsay Renee 18 U.S.C. §§ 1349, 1028A, 371,42 California sD.Ca. Criminal Yes No No 3:21-r-02154; 321-cr- hitps://wwwjusti

Lombardo; Ryan David Genetti; Dobrila Henning, Garrett Carl Tuggle, and Salvatore Compilati were charged with conspiracy to  U.5.C. §§ 1320d; 21 US.C. §§ enforcement 02153 ce.gov/usao

“Bebe" Milosavljevic; Lindsay Renee commit wire fraud in relation to a scheme to submit fraudulent applications for pandemic ~841(a)(1), 846 sdca/pr/nine-san-

Henning; Garret Carl Tuggle; Salvatore unemployment insurance benefits. Lombardo, Piekos, Genetti, Henning, and Tugele were. diego-residents:

Compilati; Ryan David Genetti; Juan also charged with d identity theft. unauthorized charged-

Landon disclosure of health information for stealing confidential patient files while employed by a submitting.
local hospital and providing the information to co-conspirators to use in fraudulent fraudulent-
applications for pandemic unemployment insurance benefits. Henning, Tuggle, and Juan pandemic
Landon were also indicted for drug-related charges. unemployment-

insurance

Robert Benlevi /222021 USDO) PP Fraud Robert Benlevi was charged with bank fraud, false statements n a loan application, and 18 U.5.C. §§ 1344(a), 1014,1957  California co.cal. Criminal Yes No No 2:21-cr-00246 https://wwwjusti
money laundering for allegedly submitting 27 fraudulent bank loan applications to obtain enforcement ce.gov/opa/pr/lo
Paycheck Protection Program ("PPP") funds. Benlevi is accused of obtaining $3 million in s-angeles-man
PPP funds by submitting falsified applications on behalf of his three companies, 15tellar arrested-27-
Health LLC, Bestways2 health LLC, and Joyous-HealthaU LLC. Instead, the funds were used million-ppp-fraud.
for personal expenses, including cash withdrawals, payments on personal credit cards, and scheme
transfers to other personal and business accounts he controlled.

Linda Grubb 7/21/2021  USDO) EIDL fraud; Linda Grubb pleaded guilty to wire fraud for manipulating a variety of pandemic relief 18 U5.C. § 1343 Pennsyvania  M.D.Pa. Criminal Yes No No 1216100175 https://wwwusti
programs to over $450,000. stolen identifying enforcement ce gov/usao:
information, Grubb's co-conspirators made applications for Economic Injury Disaster Loans mdpa/pr/hunting
(“EIDL") and pandemic unemployment assistance. Upon deposit of the funds into Grubb's don-county-

funds to her 3 ‘woman-pleads
auilty-aiding:
others stealing-
pandemic-relief-

Daryol Richmond; Telvin Breaux; Holly ~ 7/21/2021  USDOJ Unemployment Fraud  Daryol Richmond, Telvin Breaux, and Holly White were charged with conspiracy to commit 18 U.S.C. §§ 1349, 1028A(a)(1)  California ED. Cal. Criminal Yes No No 121100184

White mail fraud and aggravated identity theft for their involvement in a scheme to submit over enforcement
$1.4 million in fraudulent unemployment insurance claims in other inmates' identities to
the California Employment Development Department ("EDD"). The actual loss to the EDD
and United States i estimated to be over $270,000.

http://pharmacywalmart.com; 7/19/2021  USDO) Internet Fraud The Maryland U.S. Attorney’s Office seized two domains, http://pharmacywalmart.com and Maryland 0.Md. No No No

https://stromectol-ivermectin.com https://stromectol-ivermectin.com, which attempted to mimic legitimate websites and
purported to sell experimental drugs to treat or prevent COVID-19. Instead, the domains
were allegedly used to collect the personal information of individuals visiting the sites in us-attorney-s-
order to use the information for nefarious purposes, including fraud, phishing attacks, office seizes two-
and/or deployment of malware. These are the 12th and 13th COVID fraud related domain domain
name seized by the Maryland U.S. Attorney's Office and Hsl. attempting-mimic

walmart-website-
and

Ryan Staley 7/16/2021  USDO) Health care fraud Jennings Ryan Staley pleaded guilty to importation contrary to law for allegedly trying to California sD.Ca. Criminal Yes No No 320101227 hitps://www justi
smuggle hydroxychloroquine in the United States to sell coronavirus "treatment kits." enforcement ce.gov/usao
Staley, the former operator of Skinny Beach Med Spas, marketed and sold his treatment sdca/pr/doctor-
kits to customers. Staley is also accused of abusing his position as a physician to profit from selling-covid-19
the pandemic, as he claimed his products were a *one hundred percent” cure and would cure-pleads-
provide six weeks of immunity. Staley also admitted to writing a prescription for auilty
hydroxychloroguine for one of his employees, and then misusing the employee's personal
information without consent in an attempt to obtain more of the drug,

Robert Bearden 7/16/2021  USDO) EIDL fraud Robert Bearden was charged with three of wire fraud and one count of theft of 18USC.551028A,1343,1344  Ohio N.D. Ohio Criminal Yes No No 1:21-¢r-00527 https://www justi
government funds for devising a scheme to fraudulently obtain $60,000 in Economic Injury enforcement ce.gov/usao
Disaster Loans (*EIDL"). Bearden allegedly applied for three fraudulent EIDL loans, two of ndoh/pr/chesterl
which were applied on behalf of third parties and for which Bearden received kickbacks for and-man-charged
their successful disbursement covid-19-relief-

fraud




Travis Kilgore. 7/15/2021  USDO) Unemployment Fraud  Travis Kilgore was sentenced for conspiring to defraud the United States and conspiring to 18 U.S.C. §6 1040(a)(2), 371 Virginia W.D.Va. Criminal Yes No No 2:21-¢r-00007 Incarceration; hitps://www justi

commit mail fraud n elation to 2 scheme t fil fraudulent pandemic unemployment enforcement Restitution ce gov/usao:

benefits. Kilgore and his wife filed falsi for 21 ‘wdva/pr/wise
individuals, resulting in at least $182,474 in false claims to be paid. Kilgore was sentenced to county-man-

87 months in prison, and ordered to pay $164,470 in restitution. sentenced

Andrew Tezna 7/15/2021  USDO) PP Fraud; EIDL fraud; ~ Andrew Tezna, a Senior Executive Service employee for NASA, pleaded guilty to bank fraud 18 U.S.C. §6 1344(2) Virginia ED.Va. Criminal Yes No No 1:21-¢1-00077 Incarceration; https://www justi
Unemployment fraud  for submitting three fraudulent loan applications under the Paycheck Protection Program enforcement Restitution ce.gov/usao
(“PPP*) and Economic Injury Disaster Loan Program (*EIDL"); Tezna also applied for COVID- edva/pr/senior-

19-related unemployment benefits for his mother-in-law, who did not qualify for such nasa-employee.

benefits. Tezna successfully obtained over $285,000 from the PP loans and unemployment sentenced-covid:
benefits, which he used for his personal benefit, Tezna was sentenced to 18 months 19-relate
imprisonment, with 3 years of supervised release; Tezna was also ordered to pay fraud.
$285,049.11 i resituton and frfiture

Carmelita Barela 7/15/2021  USDO) Theft Carmelita Barela 2 in  18USC§1951 California N.D. Cal. Criminal Yes No No 3:20cr-00254 hitps://www justi
connection withascheme o stea merchandise from »  Walgrens whiecaiming o rave enforcement

CoVID-19. Jdibl hing her, Barela took.
items from the shelves and put them into her personal bag,

scheme:steal

Raquel Pena 7/15/2021  USDO) Unemployment fraud muel Pena pleaded guilty to wire fraud, conspiracy to commit wire fraud, and aggravated 18 U.S.C.§ 1343, 1028A Massachusetts D Mass. Criminal Yes No No 1:21-¢r-10180 hitps://www justi
piring with others to file enforcement ce.gov/usao-
Unempluvmen( Assistance ("PUA"] using others' personally identifiable information. Pena ma/or/lawrence

allegedly to receive laims into
their bank accounts, where they would then provide the proceeds to Pena.

Benjamin Rafael 7/15/2021  USDO) PPP Fraud; EIDLfraud  Benjamin Rafael pleaded guilty to conspiracy to commit wire fraud in connection with his 18 U.5.C. § 1349, 1014 Florida 5.0, Fla. Criminal Yes No No 121120161 Incarceration;
role in a scheme to steal over $60 million from investors and producers seeking financing enforcement Restitution; Forfeiture
for movies and Broadway shoes, and for concealing his criminal history on applications for
COVID-1 loans. Rafael submitted several applications for Paycheck Protection Program
(“PPP*) and Economic Injury Disaster Loans (*EIDL"), in which he knowingly made a false
statement that he had never , and d of,
wire fraud. Rafael was sentenced to 42 months imprisonment, and ordered to pay
restitution to the victims and forfeit money and real estate traceable to the fraud schemes.

e
%20%E2%80%9

Tracy Kirkland /152021 USDO) EIDL fraud Tracy Kirkland pleaded guilty to wire fraud in connection with fraudulently obtaining funds 18 U.S.C. §§ 1343, 2 Georgia 5.0.6a. Criminal Yes No No 6:21-cr-00002 Incarceration;
through the Economic Injury Disaster Loan (*EIDL") program. In applying for the funds, enforcement Restitution; Forfeiture
Kirkland falsely claimed to own a ficitious business, "Kirklands Hair N Beauty” with 3
employees. Kirkland received a loan for $66,400 and used the funds for personal expenses
and non-business-related purchases. Kirkland was sentenced to 33 months in prison, and
was ordered to pay restitution of $66,400 and forfeit a 2019 Dodge Charger and $16,250.

JuliA. Mazi 7/14/2021  USDO) Health care fraud 1uli A. Mazi is charged with wire fraud and false statements related to health care matters 18 U.S.C. §§ 1343,1035 California ND. Cal. Criminal Yes No No 3:21-mj-71156

for her involvement in a scheme to sell homeoprophylaxis immunization pellets and falsify enforcement
COVID-19 vaccination cards. According to a complaint submitted to the Department of
Health and Human Services Office of Inspector General hotline, Mazi gave pellets to

dividuals, and stated that they would ponse in the v
Although these indi did not inj ofany i , Mazi
sent COVID-19 Vaccination Record cards, listing Moderna as the vaccine received. Mazi is
also accused of providing COC vaccination record cards o her customers with instructions

receive

onhow to plete the cards pear as if a
two doses of the Moderna vaccine.
Peter Peacock Blood 7/14/2021  USDO) PP Fraud Peter P Blood, sole owner and of Cycle , LLCand Oregon o.0r. Criminal Yes No No 32100231 hitps://www justi
Cycle Holdings, LLC, was charged with loan fraud for allegedly making false statements on enforcement ce.gov/usao
two separate Paycheck Protection Program (*PPP*) loan applications. Blood allegedly orfprflocal-
falsfied information on the applications, exaggerating the number of employees and entrepreneur
average monthly payroll costs. Blood successfully received $332,000 from the first faces-federal-
application, and $290,000 from the second application. charges-covid-
2001%20l0an%20
fraud
Jared lohn Fiege 7/14/2021  USDO) Unemployment fraud;  Jared lohn Fiege pleaded guilty to wire fraud and aggravated identity theft for devising and 18 U5.C. §§ 1343, 1028A(@)(1)  Minnesota O. Minn. Criminal Yes No No 0:21-¢r-00055 hitps://www justi
EIDL fraud executing a scheme to fraudulently obtain over $250,000 in COVID-19 relief through enforcement ce.gov/usao
the EIDL program. mn/pr/duluth-
| benefits and EIDL names, birth dates, and man-pleads-guilty
social security numbers of at least 20 mdw\duals o5 welas inverting fctonal business covid-reli
entities linked to unknowing individuals. Fiege also used fraudulent passports and false scheme

bank accounts mailed to other people's address, which he would steal from their mailboxes
allowing him to withdraw significant amounts of cash.

Stephen Smith 7/14/2021  USDO) PPP fraud Stephen Smith pleaded guilty to bank fraud for his role in fraudulently seeking over 18USC.§1344 Wisconsin E£D. Wis. Criminal Yes No No 2:20-¢1-00196 Incarceration; hitps://www justi
$600,000 n Paycheck Protection Program ("PPP") loans. Smith allegedly made numerous enforcement Restitution ce.gov/usao
false and misleading statements about the companies' respective payroll expenses on edwi/pr/milwauk
application filed on behalf of his co- ee-man
conspirators to send him portions of the PPP funds and uxed me proceeds for personal sentenced:his
expenses. Smith was sentenced to 36 months in prison, and was ordered to pay $397,500 in role-covid-1
restitution. relief-fraud-

%2C%200/%20Mi



Darrell Baker /132021 USDO) PP Fraud Darrell Baker pleaded guilty to bank fraud and money laundering arising from his efforts to 18 U.5.C. § 1343, 1957 Michigan E. Mich. Criminal Yes No No 2:20r-20355 Incarceration https://wwwusti
obtain $590,000 from the Paycheck Protection Program (*PPP*) for his own personal gain. enforcement
Baker allegedly applied for PP funds on behalf of his purported business, Motorcity Solar
Energy, Inc., wherein he falsely represented employee information and payroll expenses.
Baker managed to withdraw $172,000 before his financial institution froze the remainder of
the loan. Baker was sentenced to 24 months in federal prison.

orney%20saimath

20Moh:
Joel Jerome Tucker 7/13/2021  USDO) PP Fraud; Tax Evasion; Joel Jerome Tucker was sentenced for engaging in two separate fraud schemes involving Missouri W.D. Miss Criminal Yes No No Incarceration; https://www.justi
Loan Fraud false payday loan debt and tax evasion. Although the government alleged Tucker enforcement Restitution; Forfeiture ~ ce gov/usao-

fraudulently received Paycheck Protection Program ("PPP") funds, Tucker was not charged ‘wdmo/pr/prairie-
for that conduct as part of this case. A month before entering a guilty plea to financial village-man-
crimes, Tucker fraudulently obtained a PPP loan by denying he was under indictment. He sentenced-12-
successfully received $20,833. Although Tucker was not criminally charged in relation to the years-73-million-
fraudulent loan, i in determining his dollar-payday
sentence. Tucker was sentenced to 12 years and six months in federal prison; Tucker was loan-fraud-8
also ordered to pay $8,057,079 in restitution to the IRS and forfeit $5,000 to the million
government.

Jason Vertz; Alana Powers 7122021 USDO) Unemployment fraud  Jason Vertz and Alana Powers were sentenced for conspiracy to commit mail fraudand 18 U.S.C. §§ 1349, 1028Aa)(1)  California ED.Cal. Criminal Yes No No 1:21-¢r-00054 Incarceration https://wwwusti
aggravated identity theft after submitting several fraudulent unemployment insurance enforcement ce gov/usao:
claims for inmates at the Central California Women's Facility. The falsified claims resulted in edcafor/two
an actual loss of over $74,000. Vertz and Powers were each sentenced to five years and one sentenced-over-5.

month in prison.

20U.5.%20Attorn

ey
Anthony C. Boncimino 7/12/2021  USDO) PPP Fraud Anthony C. Boncimino was charged with bank fraud, money laundering, and making false 18 U.S.C. § 1001(a)(3) Georgia M.D.Ga, Criminal Yes No No 1:21-¢r-00017 https://wwwusti
statements related to the Coronavirus Aid, Relef, and Economic Security (*CARES") Act for enforcement ce gov/usao:
allegedly submitting fraudulent applications for Paycheck Protection Program ("PPP") loans mdga/pr/southw
on behalf of aresult of the scheme, est-georgia-
$2.6 million in PP loans. resident
criminally-
charged-cares-act
pop-fraud
Destinee Snay; William Cordor 7/12/2021  USDO) fraud;  Desti ‘and William Cordor, previously indicted for the vallegzd involvementina 18 U.S.C.§§1349,1343,1028A  Massachusetts . Mass. Criminal Yes No No 4:21-cr-40016 https://wwwusti
EIDL fraud pandemic fraud schem to enforcement ce gov/usao:
Commitwire fraud. Cordo was s indited fo wire fraud and aggravated mnmy theft ma/opr/leicester-
Cor v piring with others o file false woman-and-man-
claims for istance in and transferring into charged
prepaid debit card accounts they obtained. Cordor s also accused of using stolen eniies superseding:
to fraudulently apply for Economic Injury Disaster Loans ("EIDL"). indictment-covid-

Christopher John Badsey 7/9/2021  USDO) Consumer fraud Christopher John Badsey was charged with wire fraud and money laundering for his alleged 18 U.S.C. §§ 1343, 1957, 981,982 California co.cal. Criminal Yes No No 8:21-¢r-00124
role in defrauding victims who paid for COVID-related medical protective equipment that enforcement
was never delivered. Badsey allegedly falsely represented he had access to millions of
boxes of medical-grade nitrile gloves through his company, First Defense International
Security Services Corp. (*FDI"). Badsey required victims to provide a deposit to inspect the
gloves before delivery; instead, Badsey used the $3 million in collected deposits for his
personal benefit

Lebnitz Tran 7/9/2021  USDO) PPP fraud; EIDL fraud  Lebnitz Tran was charged with wire fraud and bank fraud for engaging in an alleged scheme 18 U.S.C. §5 1343, 1344 California N.D. Cal. Criminal Yes No No 5:21-¢1-00269
to fraudulently collect over $3 million in funds from the Paycheck Protection Program enforcement ce.gov/usao
(“PPP*) and Economic Injury Disaster Loan (“EIDL") for personal use. Tran allegedly
submitted at least 27 PP loan applications and seven EIDL loan applications using false
information , including b igures, and
tax documents. Although $8 million, $36
million, which Tran and his co-conspirators used for personal expenses.

Christopher A. Montalbano; Gus Anthony 7/8/2021 UsDOJ PP Fraud Christopher A. Montalbano and Gus Anthony Montalbano were charged with conspiracy to 18 U.S.C. §§ 1349, 1014 Alabama N.D. Ala. Criminal Yes No No 2:21-¢r-00201 2015-2020

Montalbano commit bank fraud, false statements on a loan application, and money laundering for their enforcement
roles in submmmg 3 raudulentPaycheck Protecton Program (#99")applictin, and

in support of other | Christopher
Montalbano s lso charged with aggravated \denmymeﬂ and bank fraud; these charges
were, in part, due to Christopher Montalbano receiving $58,153.00 for a fraudulent PPP bank-fraud-
Toan application filed on behalf of LA Corporation, which was used to cover personal scheme
expenses.

Carl Bradley Johansson 7/8/2021 UsDOJ PPP Fraud Carl Bradley Johansson was charged with bank fraud and conspiracy to commit bank fraud california co.cal. Criminal Yes No No https://wwwusti
for allegedly fraudulently obtaining more than $667,000 in Paycheck Protection Program enforcement ce gov/usao:
("PPP") funds. Johansson is accused of directing Western Distribution LLC to apply for a PP cdca/or/owner-
loan of $436,390, which was spent on expenses unrelated to its payroll. Another company trucking:
controlled by Joh: 150 applied for its own PP d fabricated companes:
employee numbers between the two companies in order to avoid paying back the loan. arrested-charges-

alleging-scheme
fraudulently-
obtain-more

Kenzley Ramos. /8201 CFTC Consumer fraud Kenzley Ramos was subject to a default judgment by the Commodity Futures Trading 7U.5.C. § 6b(a)(2)(AHC) 17 CER. Texas N.D. Tex. ciil Yes No No 3:20-0v-02985X Civilfines; Enjoinment;  https://www.citc
Commission ("CFTC") for engaging in fraudulent solicitation, misappropriation, operation of § 5.2(b); 7 US.C. § 6c(b); 17 CFR. enforcement Restitution gov/PressRoom/
an unlawful commodity pool, and failure to register with the CFTC. Ramos allegedly falsely § 32.4;7 U.S.C. § 6o(1)(A-(8); 7 PressReleases/84
represented himself as a successful trader who could profit off market changes related to  U.S.C. §§ 2(c)(2)(C){iil)1)(cc), 6m(1);

COVID-19. The court ordered Ramos to pay $27,556 in restitution to the defrauded victims, 17 CFR.§ 5.3(a)(2); 17 CFR.§
and a civil monetary penalty of $82,668; Ramos is also permanently enjoined from engaging 4. zn(a)m (b); 17 CFR.884.21,
in conduct that violated the Commodity Exchange Act and CFTC regulations, registering

with the CFTC, and trading in any CFTC-regulated markets.

Alied BioScience 7/8/2021 EPA Consumer fraud The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA") has issued a Stop Sale, Use or Removal civil No Yes No SSURO https://www.epa
Order (“SSURO") against Allied BioScience for their product SurfaceWise2. While the enforcement gov/newsrelease
product was previously authorized for emergency use in Arkansas, Oklahoma, and Texas to s/epa-orders
help address the C . EP found Allied allied:bioscience-
marketing, seling, and isributing SufaceWise2 n ways nconsistent with the Federal stop-selling-and
Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act (*FIFRA"), EPA regulations, and terms and distributing:
conditions of i Although ise2 was surfacewise2

expected to kill coronaviruses on surfaces for up to seven days when used with a List N
disinfectant, s reiew of nternal sboratory data revesled that the prod.ct ws ey ot a
purported in




Parallax Health Services, Inc.; Paul Area; 7/7/2021 SEC Misleading statements Parallax Health Services, Inc., and its CEO Paul Area and CTO Nathaniel Bradley, is charged ~ Securities Act §§ 17(a)(1), 17(a)(3); New York SD.NY. civil Yes Yes No March 2020 - April 2020 Civil fines; Enjoinment  hitps://www.sec.

Nathaniel Bradley with making misleading statements about its efforts to fight COVID-19in an attemptto  Exchange Act §6 10(b) enforcement gov/news/press-
boost its declining stock price. Parallax is accused of issuing a series of press releases falsely release/2021-120

claiming that its purported COVID-19 screening test would be “available soon" and that it
had medical and personal protective equipment ("PPE") for "immediate sale”; in reality,

i never possessed the or PPE offered for sale. The SEC
temporarily suspended trading in Parallax's common stock on April 10, 2020, due to
questions about the accuracy of the company's statements. Without admitting or denying
the SEC's allegations, Parallax, Arena, and Bradley consented to judgments permanently
enjoining them from future violations of the charged provisions and requiring them to pay
penalties of $100,000, $45,000, and $40,000, respectively. Arena also agreed to be
prohibited ¥ actingasa
participating in an offering of penny stock. Bradley agreed to be prohibited for three years
from participating in an offering of penny stock. The settlements are subject to court

approval.

Antwine Demon Hunter 7/6/2021  USDO) Fraud pleaded guilty to mail fraud in relation to his participationina 18 U.C. § 1341 Nevada D. Nev. Criminal Yes No No 2:20-m}-00903 hitps://www justi
scheme to fraudulently obtain more than $250,000 in unemployment benefis. Hunter and enforcement ce.gov/usao
co-conspirators used personally identifiable information belonging to victims to submit 24 nv/pr/las-vegas-

ter the had the debit h man-pleads-guilty
unemployment benefits mailed to addresses he had access to. In total, more than $250,000 filing-fraudulent-
approved, and at least $189,1 dlaims-over
Hunter. Hunter's sentencing is scheduled for October 27, 2021, where he faces a maximum 250000-
penalty of 20 years in prison and a $250,000 fine. unemployment-
insurance

Johnny Richardson 7/6/2021  USDO) Unemployment Fraud  Johnny Richardson pleaded guilty to conspiracy to commit wire fraud and conspiracyto 18 U.5.C. §§ 1349, 1956(h) Michigan ED. Mich. Criminal Yes No No 221120337 hitps://www justi
commit money laundering for participating in a scheme to obtain over $680,000 in funds enforcement ce.gov/usao
earm, tance during the Ct pandemic. Richardson edmi/pr/detroit-
allegedy fled fraudulent unemployment claims over the Internet in at least five states. He man-pleads-guilty
then allegedly informed Brandi Hawkins, a co-conspirator who previously pleaded guilty for unemployment-
her part in the scheme, of the Michigan claims, and Hawkins used her insider access to fraud-scheme
fraudulently release payments on these claims. Richardson is scheduled to be sentenced on
November 9, 2021.

Ana Soto 7/6/2021  USDO) PPP Fraud; EIDL Fraud  Ana Soto was charged with wire fraud, loan fraud, and money laundering for submitting 18 US.C. §§ 1957, 645(a), 1343 Delaware 0. Del. Criminal Yes No No 1:21-¢r-00049 March 2020 - January https://www justi
seventeen fraudulent loan applications under the Paycheck Protection Program ("PPP") and enforcement 2021 ce.gov/usao
Economic Injury Disaster Loans (*EIDL") in an attempt to garner funds for personal use. As a defpr/newark-
result of her conduct, Soto obtained approximately $246,000. ‘woman.charged.

wire-fraud-sba-
fraud-and-money
laundering

Jerry D. Johnson 7/2/201  UsDO) Unemployment fraud  Jerry D. Johnson pleaded guilty to one count of mail fraud for allegedly receiving over 18 US.C. § 1341 lowa N.D.lowa Criminal Yes No No 3:20¢r-03027 Incarceration; hitps://www justi
$31,000 in unemployment funds in the names of others. Upon receipt of the funds, enforcement Restitution ce.gov/usao
Johnson allegedly would then withdraw the benefits and mail the cash to others involved in ndia/pr/iowa-
the scheme. Johr to eight i with two-years man-sentenced:
supervised release, and ordered to make $31,062 in restitution to the State of Washington. federal-prison-his

tole-covid-19
unemployment-
insurance-fraud

Russell Anthony Schort 7/1/2021  USDO) PPP Fraud Russell Anthony Schort pleaded guilty to bank fraud for his role in a scheme to steal funds 18 U.S.C. §1344 Oregon o.0r. Criminal Yes No 6:21-1-00198 hitps://wwwusti
from the Paycheck Protection Program ("PPP"). His accomplice, Andrew Aaron Lioyd, enforcement ce.gov/usao
allegedly submitted a PP loan application under Schort's business name, Schort Lee orfpr/oregon-
Construction, which included a fraudulent ist of employees and purported wages paid. man-pleads-guilty
Schort received more than $600,000 as a resuit of the application, $307,000 of which Schort role-covid-relief-
transferred to Lloyd. Schort s scheduled to be sentenced on October 21, 2021 and faces a fraud:scheme
‘maximum sentence of 30 years in prison, a $1 million fine, and five years of supervised
release.

Casey David Crowther 7/1/2021  UsDO) PP Fraud Casey David Crowther was found guilty of committing bank fraud, making a false statement 18 U.S.C. §§ 1344, 1014,1957  Florida M.D. Fla Criminal Yes No No 22000114 Incarceration; hitps://www justi
to: lending institution, and t ts of money laundering for allegedy fraudulentl enforcement Forfeiture ce.gov/usao
obtaining a $2.1 million Paycheck Protection Program (*PPP") loan. Crowther allegedly mdfl/or/fort-
falsely stated that he intended to use the PPP loan to make payroll and pay rent and utilties myers
for his company, Target Roofing. Instead, Crowther used the proceeds for various personal businessman-
expenditures, including a $700,000 boat and a $100,000 payment to a former business sentencedthree-
partner. Crowther also attempted to avoid paying back the loan by manufacturing dozens yearsfederal-
of fake employees and adding family members to his company's payroll, even though they Drison-covid
did not perform any work. The court sentenced Crowther to three years and one month in reli
prison, and ordered him to forfeit proceeds of the scheme, including over $3.3 million and
the 40' boat.

Azhar Sarwar Rana 7/1/2021 UsDOJ PP Fraud Azhar Sarwar Rana pleaded guilty to bank fraud and money laundering for fraudulently 18 U.S.C. §§ 1344, 1957 New Jersey 0. riminal Yes No No 2:20-mj-12468 https://wwwusti
obtaining a federal Paycheck Protection (PP} loan of $5 million. Rana allegedly submitted enforcement ce gov/usao:

a PPP loan application on behalf of Azhar Sarwar Rana LLC, which contained falsified payroll nifor/sussex
and tax information and inconsistent employee information. Based on the alleged county-man-
the lender .6 million in PPP funds. Rana admits
instead used the funds to invest in the stock market, make a payment to a luxury car fraudulently-
dealership, and send hundreds of thousands of dollars to accounts in Pakistan. Rana's obtaining:56-
sentencing i scheduled for November 3, 2021 million-loan-
meant-help:-small

Levi Stroud 6/30/2021  USDO) Unemployment fraud  Levi Stroud pleaded guilty to conspiracy to commit mail fraud in relation to his partina 18 US.C.§371 Pennsyvania  W.D. Pa Criminal Yes No No 2:21-cr-00252 Incarceration https://wwwusti

scheme to claim benefits while stroud enforcement ce gov/usao:
followed by one year of supervised ‘wdpa/pr/burgett
release. stown-man:
sentenced-prison.
conspiring:
receive-pandemic
unemployment-
assistance

Hanalei Aipoalani 6/30/2021  USDOJ Embezzlement; Bribery Hanalei Aipoalani pleaded guilt d federal bribery in relation 18 U.S.C. § 666(a)(1) Hawail poC Criminal Yes No No 120100286 Incarceration; hitps://www usti
to his role in embezzling more than $500,00 from AmeriCorps and agreeing to accept a enforcement Restitution; Money  ce.gov/usao
bribe for grants under the C i, Relief, and Economic Judgment de/pr/hawailan-
Security ("CARES") Act. The CARES Act provided financial relief to individuals, businesses, non-profit
states, and localities suffering the economic effects of the COVID-19 pandemic. Aipoalani s executive-
accused of agreeing to accept a financial benefit from an applicant who filed two fraudulent sentenced-6

‘CARES Act Funds under the that Aipoalani would influence the months
approval of the grant applications. Aip tenced to 46 months of imprisonment-
and ordered to pay $532,730 n restitution to AmeriCorps and a $527,000 money judgment embezzling-over-

500000

Brandi Hawkins 6/30/2021  USDOJ Brandi Hawkins ina $3.8 mill insurance fraud 18 U.S.C. §§ 666, 1343, 1956(a)  Michigan €. Mich Criminal Yes No No 22120329 https://www justi

Hawki d payment on for enforcement ce.gov/usao
assistance during the COVID-19 pandemic in exchange for bribes. As a contract employee edmi/pr/state-
for the State of Michigan Hawkins' duties included contractor-pleads
reviewing, processing, and verifying the legitimacy of unemployment insurance claims. guilty-3-million-
However, Hawkins used her access to the Unemployment Insurance Agency system to unemployment-
release over 700 false claims filed using stolen identities. Hawkins used proceeds from the fraud-scheme

scheme to buy high-end handbags and other luxury goods, and a search warrant revealed
over $200,000 in cash at Hawkins' residence. A sentencing date was set for October 28,
2021, where she faces a statutory maximum penalty of 20 years in federal prison.



Frank Romero; Trend Deploy 6/30/2021

Hasan Hakim Brown; Kevin Kirton; Jean 6/29/2021
Renald Fleuridor; Raul Mauricio Gonzalez

Richard Ayvazyan; Marietta Terabelian; ~6/29/2021
Artur Ayvazyan; Vahe Dadyan

Malik Abdul McCaully; Tamesha Lashelle 6/29/2021
Brown

Tyrese Carter 6/20/2021

Matthew J.Skinner; Empire West Equity 6/29/2021
Inc; Bayside Equity LP; Longacre Estates

Lp; Freedom Equity Fund LLC; Simple

Growth, LLC

Michael Lain 6/28/2021

Talfanita M. Cobb 6/28/2021

Chukwuermeka Onyegbula (aka Phillp  6/24/2021
Carter)

FTC

UsDO)

UsDo)

UsDo)

UsDo)

SEC

UsDO)

UsDo)

UsDo)

Consumer fraud

PPP fraud

PPP fraud; EIDL fraud

Unemployment fraud

PPP fraud; EIDL fraud

Investment fraud

PPP fraud; EIDL fraud

Unemployment fraud

Frank Romero (d/b/a Trend Deploy) was charged for violating the COVID-19 Consurmer
Protection Act, the Mail Order Rule, and the FTC Act. Romero allegedly failed to (i) deliver
PPE on time (or at all, (i) notify consumers of delayed shipments, ii offer the
cancellations and refunds required by the FTC's Mail Order Rule, and (iv) honor requests
for refunds. In its complaint, the agency is seeking monetary relief for consumers and civil

penalties.

Hasan Hakim Brown pleaded g\

conspirators to steal $24 million through the Paycheck Protection Prgoram (“PPP) by using
synthetic identities and . Brown's , Kevin Kirton, Jean Renald

Fleuridor, and Raul

roles in the

o
scheme, Yaars pricr, Brown and his co-conspirators aliegscly used complex computer data

storage and to identities,

ank ccounts and shelcompanies, and monitor bank actiies tied t the dentiie. These
synthetic identities were used to steal money from a bank in Texas in 2017. Recently,
Brown and his co-conspirators used these synthetic identities to fraudulently apply for $24
million in financial assitance under PPP. To date, law enforcement has seized approximately

$11.5 million dollars in funds from members of
el s Roles, Baume & Wierce, Hubalt, and Carie watches.

Richard Ayvazyan, Marietta Terabelian, Artur Ayvazyan, and Vahe Dadyan were all found
guilty of conspiracy to commit bank fraud and wire fraud, wire fraud, bank fraud, and
conspiracy to commit money laundering. Richard Ayvazyan and Artur Ayvazyan were also
found guilty of aggravated identity theft. Vahe Dadyan was found guilty of money
laundering. The defendants were found to have used fake, stolen, or synthetic identities to
submit 'riudu\em applications o the Paycheck Protection Program ("PFP") and Economic
v an (*EIDL"). more than $18 million as a result of

the faudalent applications, whichthey used

luxury homes and for

the purchase of other high-end items, including gold coins, diamonds, jewelry, watches,
fine imported furnishings, designed handbags, clothing, and a Harley-Davidson motorcycle.
The jury found the defendants must forfeit bank accounts, jewelry, watches, gold coins,

three residential properties, and approximately $450,000 in cash.

y to conspiracy to commit bank fraud for working with co- 18 U.S.C. §§ 1344, 1349

18 US.C. §§ 1349, 1343, 1344,
1028A(a)(1), 981, 982, 1028

Malik Abdul McCaully and Tamesha Lashelle Brown pleaded guilty to conspiring to commit 18 U.S.C. § 371

‘mail fraud, wire fraud, bank fraud, disaster relief fraud, and access device fraud. McCaully

and Brown worked together to obtain victims' personal identifying information, and then
I

used tofile

istance. After

obtaining bank cards preloaded with more than $130,000 in unemployment insurance
funds, Brown and McCaully withdrew thousands of dollars from various ATMs in
Pennsylvania. McCaully and Brown were sentenced to 60 months in prison, with three
years of supervised release, and were ordered to pay $137,195 in restitution to the state of

Pennsyvania.

Tyrese Carter pleaded guilty to wire fraud, in connection with a scheme to obtain the
proceeds of a Paycheck Program ("PPP") and Economic Injury Disaster Loan ("EIDL") from a
business owner. Carter allegedly used his position at the Small Business Administration
("5BA") virtual call center to attempt to reroute over $8,000 in awarded funds to a personal
account. I response to an inquiry by a business owner who had mistakenly recieved
duplicate funds, Carter posed as a SBA supervisor and directed the business owner on how
to properly return the duplicate loan; in reality, the instructions provided by Carter led the
business owner to deposit the funds in a PayPal account tied to Carter. After sending the
payment, the victim suspected the transaction to be fraudulent and notified PayPal and the
bank. As part of his plea agreement, Carter will be required to forfeit proceeds and pay

$8,738 in restitution.

Matthew J. Skinner, and five entities he owns and

West Equity Inc.,

18U5.C.§1343

Bayside Equity LP, Longacre Estates LP, Freedom Equity Fund LLC, and Simple Growth LLC—- Exchange Act §§ 10(b), 15(a)
were charged for conductng four unregistered and fraudulent real estate investment
offerings between 2015 and 2020, through which Skinner raised more than $9 million from

over 100

funds on

personal expenses, and flsly blamed the COVID-19 pandemic fo his fllure o pay

investors; these re used investors
their investment terms.

wael Lain pleaded guilty to wire fraud for submitting fraudulent Economic Injury

Disaster Loans (*EIDL") applications on behalf of more than 70 LLCs and fraudulent
Paycheck Protection Program ("PPP") applications. In these applications, Lain made false
statements about the LLCs' number of employees, gross revenues, and cost of goods.

to use the for the LLCs, Lain intended to
the use the funds for ther purposes, ncuding the purchase of a new home. Seventy of
the EIDL applications were approved, resulting in Lain's LLCs receiving more than $3.8
million in EIDL proceeds and $336,000 in Economic Injury Disaster Grant (*EIDG") proceeds.
Lain also received almost $300,000 a5 a result of the fraudulent PP applications. As part of
his plea agreement, Lain has agreed to payrestitution and repay the funds received from

Talfanita M. Cobb was indicted and charged with conspiracy to commit mail fraud, mail
fraud,and sggravatedidentify thef orher particpation n a scheme tht raudulenty

obtained

Ohio, and

Texas,. Some of these funds were benefits related to COVID-19 relief. Cobb's co-
conspirators allegedly used stolen identities to apply for unemployment insurance benefits,
and the resulting funds were deposited into a bank account controlled by Cobb. The
indictment also alleges that the co-conspirators were able to acquire debit cards, which

Cobb used to withdraw and transfer funds

EIDL fraud

commit wire fraud and multiple

g
counts of wire fraud and aggravated dentfy heft, Onyegbula allegedly used he name
“Phillip Carter" to create at least 253 fraudulent unemployment insurance filings across the
United States, including Washington, Arizona, California, Colorado, flinois, Indiana, Kansas,
Massachusetts, Michigan, Minnesota, Missouri, Montana, Ohio, Nevada, Rhode Island,
Texas, and Wisconsin. To evade detection, Onyegbula allegedly used variations of a single e-
mail address. Onyegbula and co-conspirators also submitted applications for an Economic
Injury Disaster Loan ("EIDL"), using stolen personal information of residents of Washington
and other states. Nearly $54,000 was paid out in EIDL loans. Onyegbula is currently

detained in Nigeria.

18US.C.§1343

18 US.C. §6 10284, 1341, 1349

18 US.C. §6 1343, 1349, 1028A

8§ 5(a), 5(c), 17(al;

Florida

Florida
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Maryland
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Washington

M.D. Fla,

S.D. Fla.

€D.cal.

50.Ga.

D.Md.

cD.cal.

D. Colo.

.1l

W.D. Wash,

civil Yes Yes No
enforcement
Criminal Yes No No
enforcement
Criminal Yes No No
enforcement
Criminal Yes No No
enforcement
Criminal Yes No No
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civil Yes Yes No
enforcement
Criminal Yes No No
enforcement
Criminal Yes No No
enforcement
Criminal Yes No No
enforcement
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Scott Boynton; Boynton Companies, Inc.

Mary Landon Benton pleaded guity to malraud forherinvolvementin s fraudulent 18US.C.§1341
scheme $300,000 in pand hy usmg the

personal identifying information of over 30 Virginia prison inmates. Benton allege

submitted successful applications for 31 inmates across three Virigina coretions! cacmm,

ten to twenty other unemployment claims filed by Benton were denied because a claim had

already been filed for that inmate. Benton allegedly took a portion of the successful claims

and provided a portion of the proceeds to the inmates

Federal authorities sought a civilinjunction against Scott Boynton and his business, Boynton
Companies, Inc, d/b/a RELYmedia, after the Department of Homeland Security seized over
100,000 counterfeit 3V 1860 N9S masks sold by Boynton through RELYmedia.

Christopher Charles Perez was convicted for posting a hoax threat to Facebook in which 18 U.S.C. §1038
Perez claimed to have paid someone infected with COVID-19 to lick items at grocery stores

in the San Antonio area. Although the threat was false, Perez faces up to five years in

federal prison for each conviction.

Jerome Michael Cruz toten months and three years 18U.S.C. 6 666(a)(1)(A), 666(b);
supervised release, for his role in a scheme to fraudulently claim Pandemic Unemployment 18 U.S.C. § 1030(a)(d),
Assistance ("PUA") benefits. Cruz was employed by the Guam Department of Labor 1030(c)3)(A)
(“GDOL") to assist the public with PUA claims, and he used his knowledge and privileged
scces tothe GDOL system to modify existing PUA cl d submit fraudulent

behalf of others. Also, by GDOL, Cru filed a claim for PUA

benefits on his own behalf. Benefits from these fraudulent claims were directed into a bank
account Cruz controlled. From September 2020 through November 2020, Cruobtained
and attempted to obtain a total of $93,000 in benefits

Shashank Rai pleaded guilty to making false statements to a bank as part of an alleged 18 U.S.C. §§ 1343, 1344, 1014,

scheme to claim approximately $13 million loans through the Paycheck Protection Program 645(a)
("PPP"). Rai claimed his business, Rai Family LLC, employed over 250 employees with an

average v o 2 millon; in fact, worked for his
purported business. Rai was sentenced to 24 months i federalprison.

Andrew Aaron Lioyd pleaded guilty to bank fraud, money laundering, and aggravated 18U.5.C. §5 1344, 1957, 1028A

identify theft in relation to a scheme to use funds granted by Paycheck Protection Program
{(7PP) and Economicnjury Disser Loans ‘EI0L) a personal oans. I Ap 2020 Loy

numerous b d personally
identifiable information of relatives and business associates without their consent. In total,
Uoyd received a payout of more than $3.4 million in PPP loans, and $160,000 i EIDL
payments. Upon receipt of the funds, Lioyd purchased real estate and invested in
securities. As part of his plea agreement, Lioyd agreed to pay more than $3.6 million in
restitution to the U.S. Treasury and to forfeit more than $11 million in cash and securities
and 23 properti PPP funds. Russell an
Sssocate of oyels, has aso pleaded gy for his ol n the scheme.

Markhwan Berning pleaded guilty to falsely presenting a fake social security number to the 42 U.S.C. § 408
New York State Labor in order to obtain insurance benefits.

Mohamed Kamara was charged with wire fraud for allegedly obtaining more than $500,000 18 U.S.C. § 1343
in COVID-19 relief funds. Kamara is accused of applying for Economic Injury Disaster Loans
("EIDL") on behalf of six companies; the SBA provided EIDLs collectively worth more than
ssno 000 that Kamara either received o attempted to receive. Kamara i also accused of
New Jersey Insurance Benefits ("UIB")
apph:almns, resulting in the authorization of approximately $163,000.

Karen Lamb was sentenced to six months in prison followed by six months in home 18US.C.§641
detention for stealing Social Security benefits and COVID-19 stimulus money in the name of

her deceased brother. According to court documents, Lamb fraudulently obtained nearly

$223,000 in Social Security payments since her brother's death in 2004 and $1,200in COVID

10 stimulus money intended for her brother. Lamb was also ordered to repay the money

she stole.

Robert S. Stewart, Jr., owner and president of Federal Government Experts (FGE) LLC, was 18 U.S.C. §§ 1001, 1343, 641

sentenced to 21 months in prison g multiple federal
as part of to imill government
contracts. Based on Stewart's false statements that he was i possession of large quantities
of personal protective equipment ("PPE") to the Federal Emergency Management Agency
(“FEMA) and the Department of Veterans Affairs ("VA"), FGE was awarded contracts
valued over $38 million collectively. Stewart also applied for various loans on behalf of FGE
under the federal Paycheck Protection Program (*PPP*) and Economic Injury Disaster Loan
Program ("EIDL"). By falsely overstating the number of FGE employees and the amount of
FGE's payroll, $1,066,000 backed loans.

Virginia ED.Va Criminal
enforcement
Texas W.D. Tex. civil
enforcement
Texas WD, Tex. Criminal
enforcement
uam & Northern D. Guam Criminal
Mariana Islands enforcement
Texas ED.Tex. Criminal
enforcement
Oregon 0.0r. Criminal
enforcement
New York NDNY. Criminal
enforcement
New Jersey O Criminal
enforcement
Ohio 5..0hio Criminal
enforcement
Virginia ED.Va Criminal
enforcement
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Bedrock Group

Devron Brown

Muge Ma ("Hummer Mars")

Jacinthia Williams

Paris Denise Thomas

Sequoia Edwards

Mireya Ramos

Dr. Stephen Meis; Golden Sunrise
Nutraceutical, Inc.

Curtis Porch; Dereen Porch

Adam Arena; Amanda Gloria

Leelynn Danielle Chytka

Christopher Kenneth Guy

Virginia Smith

Bedrock Group LLP agreed to pay $3.5 million to settle allegations that it made repeated Massachusetts
false statements in connection with s obligation to refund the state for more than 900,000

face masks it failed to deliver in accordance with its contract. In April 2020, the

Massachusetts Operational Services Division signed an emergency purchase order with

Bedrock for one million N5 masks for $3.6 million. Despite the purchase order stating that

the masks were in mid-April, by

masks, Although Bedrock admitted its obligation to refund the stae, it faled to do 30 n

January 2021, Bedrock sent a $750,000 check to the state that was returned for insuficient

funds.
Devron Brown was charged with two counts of bank fraud and nine counts of money 18USC.§1344(2;18USC§  Pennsylvania  ED.Pa. Criminal
laundering in connection with an alleged scheme to unlawfully obtain and misuse loan 1957, 18 US.C.§2 enforcement

proceeds offered through the federal Paycheck Protection Program (*PPP"). Brown
allegedy raudulentlyobtined approximately $937,500 n PP loan proceeds by submiting
that included various business,
Just Us Construction Inc. Instead, the proceeds weveallegedlv usedto purchase a new
residential property in Florida, a motorcycle, a luxury automobile, and diamond jewelry.

Muge Ma (*Hummer Mars") pleaded guilty to one count of bank fraud for engagingina 18 U.S.C.§ 1344 New York SDNY. Criminal
scheme to obtain $20 million in loans from the Paycheck Protection Program ("PPP") and enforcement
the Economic Injury Disaster Loan (*EIDL") Program. MA allegedly falsely represented that
his companies, New York International Capital LLC ("NYIC") and Hurley Human Resources
LLC (*Hurley"), employed hundreds of people and paid millions of dollars in wages i loan
applicatons, despite MA appesringtobe the oy emplnyee MA submitted various
dulent and doctored records in

ubhmmg $650,000 EIDL Program loan funds, $800,0000 o loan funds, and a $10,000 loan

advance before the funds were frozen in connection with the investigation.

Jacinthia Williams pleaded guilty to wire fraud in relation to an alleged scheme to 18USC.§1343 Georgia 5.D.6Ga. Criminal
fraudulently receive three loans under the Small Business Administration ("SBA") Economic enforcement
Ijury Disaster Loan (*EIDL") Program. Williams admitted to using the money, totaling

$137,500, for personal matters. Wiliams was sentenced to 12 months plus one day in

prison, with three years of supervised release.

Paris Denise Thomas pleaded guilty to wire fraud for allegedly submitting at least 47 18USC.§1343 California co.cal. Criminal
applications for unemployment insurance for California prison inmates and others. In enforcement
exchange for cash payments, The submitted the

applications for third parties, and would then provide the unemployment insurance

payment debit cards. tobe

fraudulently disbursed.

Sequoia Edwards towire g at least 27 fraudulent 18 U.S.C. § 1343 California co.cal. Criminal

unemployment nurance cim for Calforia stte prson imates and othrs. Thescheme enforcement
gedly ,218 to be Iy

Mireya Ramos pleaded guilty to wire fraud for allegedly submitting at least 37 fraudulent 18 U.S.C. §1343 California co.cal. Criminal

unemployment insurance claims for California prison inmates and others. The scheme enforcement
gedly ,532 to be Iy

Dr. Stephen Meis, medical director of Golden Sunrise Nutraceutical, Inc, settled FTC. 15US.C. 85 45(a), 52 California ED. Cal.

charges that he took part in deceptively advertising a $23,000 treatment plan as a
scientifically proven way to treat COVID-19. Meis was barred from making similar
unsupported claims in me future and was ordered to pay $103,420 to provide refunds to

Sunrise Inc;
Golden Sunrise Pharmaceuncal, Inc.; and Huu Tieu.

Curtis Porch and Dereen Porch were indicted, charged with wire fraud and theft of 18US.C. 551343, 641,2, Georgia M.D. Ga Criminal
government property for an alleged scheme to obtain funds from the Small Business 981(2)(1)(C); 28 U.S.C. § 2461(c) enforcement

Administration (*SBA"). Curtis and Dereen Porch allegedly submitted at least three
fraudulent loan/grant applications to the SBA on behalf of shell companies Porch to Porch
Transportation, LLC; FNP Trucking, LLC; and Buckner Transportation, LLC. Curtis and Dereen
allegedly received approximately $360,000 as a result of the scheme.
Adam Arena and Amanda Gloria were charged with conspiracy to commit bank fraud, 18 USC §5 1344, 1349, 1956, 1957 New York W.DNY. Criminal

ge in monetar pmceeds, bank enforcement
fraud,and engoging n
frauduently btaning an launderingnearly$1 millo n funds rom the COVID-13rllel
Paycheck Protection Program (PPP). Arena and Gloria allegedly submitted a false loan
application to an SBA-approved participating lender on behalf of a defunct business owned
by Arena called ADA Auto Group LLC. This loan application allegedly contained materially
false representations and certifications about Arena’s business and how the loan would be
used. After fraudulently obtaining the loan, Arena and Gloria are alleged to have misused
the loan proceeds on personal expenses the purchase of two cars.

Leelynn Danielle Chytka pleaded guilty to conspiracy to defraud the government, Virginia W.D.Va. Criminal
conspiracy to commit mail fraud with respect to benefits authorized and paid in connection enforcement
witha prssldem\a\lydedared major disaster or emergency, aggravated identity theft, and
suboxone for allegedly leading 2 conspiracy to against the
United Stats in connecton witha scheme involving the fingof fraudulent clamsfor
pandemic benefits. Chytka, and others, allegedly conspired to collect
personal identification information of more than 35 co-conspirators, including 15 inmates.
in the custody of the Virginia Correcti dtofile
pandemic-related unemployment benefits.

Christopher v 8 conspiracy to commit wire fraud and mail - Maryland .Mmd. Criminal

fraud, fraud of unauthorized , and aggravated enforcement
" " benefit tothe

Oklahoma Employment Secuity Commiséon using the persona dentfying nformation of

several identity theft victims. Guy and his co-conspirators allegedly listed mailing addresses,

easily accessible to members of the conspiracy, to receive prepaid debit cards through the

United States Postal Service.

an inmate at 18US.C.§1349 Virginia ED.Va. Criminal
Baskerville Correctional Center to collect personal information for inmates to apply for enforcement
Viginia unemployment benefits on behalf o the inmates. Smith, with the assistance of the

, submit for at least 22 inmates. The

y ,000 to be. y
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Orlando Sanay; Keimi Nunez; Keily 6/10/2021  USDOJ EIDL fraud Orlando Sanay, Keimi Nunez, Keily Nunez, Michael Pimentel Veloz and Fannv Plasencia 18 USC§ 1349 New York EDNY. Criminal Yes No No 1:21-mj-00668-RLM - - https://www justi Sanay etal -

Nunez; Michael Pimentel Veloz; Fanny with wire fraud with to enforcement cegov/usao-  complaint
Plasencia obtin aans pursuant o the Economic nfury Disaster Loan program (‘0L Between edny/or/five
Apr 2020 an Augst 2020, th defendants legecly spplie for EIDL oans oreght individuals-
P , and in the l falsely represented including-current
the number the entiies and gross revenues for and-former-
the entities for the 12 months prior to the COVID-19 pandemic. etblue
employees-
charged-covid-19
Kenneth Ray Hawkins; lacqueline Marie  6/10/2021  USDOJ Unemployment fraud  Kenneth Ray Hawkins, Jacqueline Marie Marquez, Alyssa Marie Jones, and Ebony Chanel 18 USC §6 1341, 1349 California ED. Cal. Criminal Yes No No 221093 - - hitps://wwwjusti Hawkins etal ~ -
Marquez; Alyssa Marie Jones; Ebony Jones were charged with conspiracy to commit mailfraud and mail fraud for allegedly enforcement
Chanel Jones conspiring to execute and executing a scheme to defraud by filing fraudulent
with the California Employment Department a-prison-inmate
(EDD), seeking Pandemic Unemployment Assistance benefits under the CARES Act. Hawkins 2nd:3-
alleged colleced dentity nformation, inclucing names an Social Securiy rumbers,of accomplices-
California prison inmates and other used the indicted-12:
cellphone to file fraudulent unemployment insurance claims from s jail cell. Marquez, unemployment-
Alyssa Jones, and Ebony Jones then allegedly obtained the EDD debit cards and used them insurance-
to withdraw the benefits. benefits
Keith Erickson (d/b/a Lizards for Peace)  6/8/2021  Ohio AG Cor Keith Lizards for violating the Ohio Consumer  ORC §6 1345.02, 1345.03 Ohio Cuyahoga Court ~ Civl Yes No No v 21948479 - - - - -
Sales Practices Act for allegedly hoarding hand sanitizers and respirator masks during the of Common Pleas enforcement
COVID-19 pandemic and selling them online via Amazon with an average price mark up of
221.4%.
Scott Levy 6/8/2021  USDO) PPP fraud; EIDL fraud  Scott Levy was charged with bank fraud, wire fraud, and money laundering in connection 18 USC§5 1343,1344,1956,2  Pennsyvania  M.D. Pa. Criminal Yes No No 121c-00169PW - - hitps://www.usti Levy indictment -
with federal loans he allegedy obtained on behalf of the Hershey Road Family Restaurant, a enforcement ce.gov/usao
restaurant Levy owned until closing the business at the end mdpa/pr/harrish
of July 2020. After Levy allegedly applied to loans through the Paycheck Protection Program urg-restaurateur
(PPP) and Economic Injury Disaster Loan (EIDL) prograrms, he allegedly spent the majority of charged-fraug-

those loan proceeds on personal expenditures and other non-qualifying goods and
services, and transferred $125,000 of the proceeds to his mother who placed the cash in
safe deposit boxes. Levy also allegedy failed to disclose that he was facing federal
prosecution for tax fraud and related offenses.

Luka Klasinc 6/8/2021  USDO) EIDL fraud Luka Klasine was charged with bank fraud and aggravated identity theft in connection with 18 USC §5 10284, 1344, 2 New York SDNY. Criminal Yes No No 21-MAG-5835 - -
his allegedly use of fasified documents during his attempts to gain access to over $1.5 enforcement
million in funds disbursed pursuant to fraudulent -5-Small Business Administration
(“SBA”) Economic Injury Disaster Loans.

role-defrauding
us-small-busine:
administration

Eric Ahiekpor 6/7/2021 UsDOJ EIDL fraud ric Ahekpor leaded guityto conspirac t aunder money and wire raud for allegedly - Ohio 5.0. Ohio Criminal Yes No No - - - https://wwwjusti - -
foran Loan (EIDL) on behalf of Premier enforcement
Choice Health Services, a business he owned, but then using the proceeds to buy two
boats, including a boat for $32,000, a boat moter, and a boat trailer.

Russell Foreman; Chandler Simbeck ~ 6/4/2021  USDOJ EIDL fraud Russell Foreman and Chandler Simbeck were charged with wire fraud, money laundering, 18 USC§§371,1343,1957,2  Colorado . Colo. Criminal Yes No No 121c-00165RM - - https://www.usti Foremanand -
and conspiracy to defraud the United States for allegedly applying for an Economic Injury enforcement Simbeck
Disaster Loan (*EIDL") knowing the application contained false information. The two. cofpr/federal:  indictment
allegedly created an entity, Fusion Group LLC, and upon receipt of the funds into the Fusion grand-jury
Group bank account, Foreman and Simbeck allegedly caused the loan proceeds to be returns-charges-
moved into the bank accounts of Vegisir Consults LLC and Veguisir Consults LLC, which they against-two
controlled. They then allegedly issued a check to Simbeck’s relative for $50,000. individuals-covid:
19-fraud
Keith McConnell 6/4/2021  USDOJ PPP fraud Keith McConnel was charged with wire fraud and money laundering for llegedly seeking 18 USC 65 1343, 1956 Pennsylvania  M.D. Pa Criminal Yes No No 121c-00167-SHR - - https://wwwusti McConnell  McConnell
$467,200.00 in COVID-19 relief fund: teed by the Small B enforcement cegov/usao:  information  plea
through the Paycheck Protection Program (PPP). McConnell allegedly submitted fraudulent mdpa/pr/owner- agreement
PP loan applications and forged documents on behalf of his Carlisle-area trucking carlile-area
company, KB Transportation LLC. In both 2019 and 2020, KB Transportation LLC was trucking-business-
allegedly not in business, had no employees, and had no payroll expenses. On June 5, charged-covid-
McConnell alleg KB LLC employed reli

totaling $124,800.00. On January
20, 2021, McConnel allegedly used KB Transportation LLC to apply for asecond PPP loan in

the t of $155,200.00, and again alleg false and fraudulent loan
applications and documents.
Karenda Vaughn 6/4/2021 UsDOJ PPP fraud; EIDLfraud  Karenda Vaughn was charged with fraudulently obtaining funds from Paycheck Protection 18 USC §§ 10284, 1343 Kentucky £D.Ky. Criminal Yes No No 6:21-cr-00034-CHB-HAI - - https://www.justi Vaughn -
loans and i (EIDL). Vaughn a enforcement
fake , Vaughn Outdoor,

EIDL proceeds, making numerous false statements about the business. Vaughn also
allegedly used a stolen identity and personal identifying information to create another fake

business entity, Josh's Nature Cure, and then sought and obtained fraudulent EIDL relief-fraud
proceeds.
KC Investments Group, Inc.; Sunu P.KC  6/2/2021  USDOJ PPP fraud KCInvestments Group, Inc. and Sunu P. KC agreed to settle civilfraud allegations that KC - Virginia ED.Va. ciil Yes Yes No - - - https://wwwjusti - -
Inc. through Sunu P. KC, obtained multiple loans during the first draw of the Paycheck enforcement ce.gov/usao
Protection Program (PPP). In April 2020, Sunu P. KC applied for PPP loans through both KC. edvalpr/virginia-
Inc. and his former company, KC Investments Group, LL, the latter of which was not company-agrees
operating at the time. Sunu P. KC allegedly that KC Inc. would not o settle-civi-fraud-
PP loans, but both ited into KC Inc.'s bank t. allegations-
paycheck-
protection
program
‘Shawnda Rochelle Augustus 5/27/2021  USDO) fraud  Shawnda Rochelle Aug charged with wire fraud and aggravated identity theft for - Louisiana MD.La Criminal Yes No No - - - hitps://www justi - -
gedly gand to obtain benefits following the floods enforcement ce gov/usao:
of 2016 and pandemic unemployment benefits in 2020, mdla/pr/baton

Cecilia Aquino 5/27/2021  USDO) Unemployment fraud  Cecilia Aqmno was charged with mail fraud, wire fraud, and aggravated identity theft for - California ED. Cal. Criminal Yes No No - - - o
for Small Business enforcement hitps://wwwjusti in
Administration 58A) Economic Ijury and Disaster Loans EIDL) sin solen identites. ce gov/usao:
Aquino allegedly claimed that the named individuals last worked as selfemployed dancers edca/or/fresno:
and owned interior design businesses, and that because of the COVID-19 pandemic, they woman-charged-
ost their jobs and business revenue, respectively. covid-19
pandemic-related
benefits-fraud
Eric Wade Lysne 5/27/2021  USDO) PPP fraud; EIDL fraud  Eric Wade Lysne was charged with wire fraud and bank fraud for allegedly perpetratinga - Oregon o.0r. Criminal Yes No No - - - hitps://wwwusti Lysne. -
scheme to defraud the Small Business Administration (SBA) and various financial institution enforcement
(EIDL) and

Paycheck protection ngram (PPP) loans using false borrower nformation.

federal-charges-
covid-relief-fraud.
scheme




Caesar Oskan; Ester Ozkar 5/27/2021  USDO) PP fraud; EIDL fraud  Brothers Caesar Oskan and Ester Ozkar have pleaded guilty to defrauding the federal 18 USC 88 1040(a)(2) california Northern District ~Criminal Yes No No 321r-00143-CRB MarchtoMay2020 - TwoNorthBay - -
government of pandemic relief funds. Each brother has admitted to submitting multiple of California  enforcement Brothers Plead
fraudulent applications for Economic Injury and Disaster Loans (EIDL) and Paycheck Guilty To
protection Program (PP) loans. Thes appicatons were based on ctitouseniies Separate But
registered by i d fake IRS tax d s th s
registration forms to suggest that they were created at an earler date. Relief Fraud

Abidemi Rufai (a/k/a Sandy Tang) 5/26/2021  USDOJ Abidemi Rufai , wire fraud and 18USC§61028A,1343,1349,2  Washington  W.D. Wash. Criminal Yes No No 321cr05186-BHS - - https://wwwusti Rufai/Sandy -
o stealover from the Washington enforcement cegov/usao:  Tang indictment
State Employment Security Department Rufa allegedly used the stolen identities of more wdwa/or/nigeria
than ington residents to file with ESD for n-national-
benefits. Rufai also claims with Hawaii, indicted
Wyoming, Massachusetts, Montana, New York, and Pennsylvania. conspiracy-wire-
fraud-and
aggravated-
identity-theft-
fraud
Dana L. Mclntyre 5/26/2021  USDOJ PPP fraud Dana L Mclnty wire fraud and g for allegedly filing 18 USC §6 1343, 1957, 2 Massachusetts D, Mass. Criminal Yes No No 1:21-¢-10162-DIC https://www.justi Melntyre -
fraudulent appli forloans and to obtain over $660,000in enforcement cegov/usao-  indictment
Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) loan funds and using those funds for personal ma/pr/former-
expenses. After receiving a PP loan of over pizzeria north-shore
and used nearly all he funds o purchase an lpaca farm n Vermont and other personal resident-charged-
expenses. covid-relief-fraud.

Petros Hannesyan 5/26/2021  USDO) Provider Relief fraud;  Petros Hannesyan was charged with the theft of government property and wire fraud for 18 USC §6 641, 1343 california co.cal. Criminal Yes No No 2:21-mj-02562-DUTY hitps://wwwusti Hannesyan -
EIDL fraud allegely mispropriaing funds rom the CARES Act rovider Rele Fund andsubitted enforcement ce.gov/opa/pr/d  complaint
false loan tions and a false I the k¢ Disaster Loan ol-announces
Program, rather than use the funds for COVID-19 patient care and to support small coordinated-law-
businesses experiencing disruption due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

Michael Stein; Leonel Palatnik 5/26/2021  USDOJ Medicaid fraud Michael Stein and Leonel Palatnik were charged in connection with an alleged $73 million 18 USC §§ 371, 2; 42 USC § 1320a- Florida 5.0, Fla. Criminal Yes No No 1210-20321-CVMA - - https://www.usti Steinand -

conspiracy to defraud the United States and to pay and receive health care kickbacks. Stein, 7b enforcement ce.gov/opa/pr/d Palatnik

the owner and operator of purported consulting company 1523 Holdings, LLC, and Palatik, okannounces- ent

an owner and operator of Panda Conservation Group, LLC, a Texas company that owned coordinated-law-

and operated testing laboratories in Dallas and Denton, Texas, allegedly exploited enforcement

temporary waivers of telehealth restrictions enacted during the pandemic by offering action-combat

telehesith providers access to Medicare benelicaris for whom they could bill

In exchange, agreedtor neficiaries t related-covid-19

Panda’s laboratories for expe v v

genetic testing.
Juan Nava Ruiz; Eric Frank; Christopher  5/26/2021  USDOJ Medicaid fraud Juan Nava Ruiz, Eric Frank, and Christopher Licata were charged for an alleged $9.3 million 18 USC §6 371, 1343, 1347, 1349, Florida 5.0, Fla. Criminal Yes No No 9:21-cr-80080-AMC; - - https://www.justi Ruiz and Frank -
Licata health care kickback scheme wherein Licata, an owner of Boca Toxicology, LLC, aclinical  2; 42 USC§ 1320a-7b, enforcement 9:21-r-80063-OMM ce.gov/opa/pr/d _information,

in Boca Raton, and paid kickback brokers, and Licata

including Ruiz and Frank, in exchange for referring Medicare beneficiaries to Boca
Toxicology for various forms of genetic testing and other laboratory testing that they did

not need, including the submission of $422,748 in claims related to medically unnecessary mi
piratory p panel testing and with hestcare-faud:
COVID-19 testing. related-covi
Malena Lepetich 5/26/2021  USDO) Medicaid fraud Malena Lepetich was charged for an alleged $15 million scheme to commit health care 18 USC§§ 220,371, 1347,2; 42 Louisiana MD.La Criminal Yes No No 3:21-cr-00032-JWD-5D) - - https://wwwjusti Lepetich -
fraud, to defraud the United States, and to pay and receive health care kickbacks. Lepetich, USC § 1320a-7b enforcement ce.gov/opa/pr/d indictment

the owner of MedLogic, LLC, a clinical laboratory based in Baton Rouge, Louisiana, allegedly
solicited and received kickbacks in exchange for referrals of urine specimens for medically

unnecessary testing, referrals of
specimens for COVID-19 and respiratory pathogen testing
Alexander Baldonado 5/26/2021  USDOJ Medicaid fraud health care fraud for allegedy participating inan - New Jersey DN Criminal Yes No No - - - -
event that advertised COVID-19 testing. In addition to authorizing the COVID-19 tests, enforcement
Bald 8 "
for Medi i ttended the event, Baldonad i
, including lengthy , that he never p
beneficiaries.
rentedmid 1>
Donald Clarkin 5/26/2021  USDO) Medicaid fraud Donald Clarkin was charged in connection with a $5.4 million conspiracy to defraud the - New Jersey DN Criminal Yes No No - - - https://wwwjusti Clarkin -
United States and pay and receive heaith care kickbacks. Clarkin, 3 pzrmer ata diagnostic enforcement ce.gov/opa/pr/d indictment
testing laboratory, allegedly exploited the pandemic by xchange for

respiratory pathogen panel tests tha would be mproperly bundled with o 15 tens
and billed to Medicare,

Bill Joe Taylor 5/26/2021  USDOJ Medicaid fraud 8illy Joe Taylor was charged with health care fraud in connection with an alleged scheme to 18 USC §§ 1347, 2 Arkansas W.D. Ark. Criminal Yes No No 221-mj2003001 - - v justi Bily Joe Taylor -
defraud the United States of over $88 million, including over $42 million in false and enforcement ment
the COVID-19
with claims that were submitted for testing for COVID-19 and other respiratory illnesses.
ylor allegedly used access to y prior
g orders to submit ims for urine drug tests and other

laboratory tests, including respiratory pathogen panel and COVID-19 tests, that were not
actually ordered or performed.

Keon . Taylor 5/25/2021  USDO) EIDL fraud; Keon I. Taylor was charged with making a false statement, aggravated identity theft, and 18 USC §§ 1014, 1028, 10284, 1343 North Carolina ~ W.D.N.C. Criminal Yes No No 321-cr-00132-F0OW- - - https://wwwjusti Keon Taylor -
Unemployment fraud  possessing equipment that can be used to make fake identity documents for allegedly using enforcement DsC ment

stolen identities to defraud government-funded coronavirus aid relief programs of more
than $200,000. From at least March 2020 through February 2021, Taylor engaged ina
scheme to defraud the U.S. Department of Labor (DOL), the U.S. Small Business
Administration (SBA), the North Carolina Division of Employment Security, and the States of
Temnessee, Texas, Oho, Massachusets, Nevads, nd Arizona by g fraudulent claims for
COVID-19 related (un b

identity theft victims. Taylor al i v apply for
three Economic Injury Disaster Loans (EIDL) under the expanded anes e coronavirus-aid
Samir Haj; Ecoshield, LLC 5/25/2021  USDOJ Consumer fraud Ecoshield, LLC and its owner Samir Haj pleaded guilty to charges relating to the unlawful 18 USC’§ 541, 1716, 7USC§§  California 5. Cal. Criminal Yes Yes No 32100163 - - hitps://www.usti Haj and Hajand
importation, sale and mailing of an unregistered pesticide product from Japan marketed as 136i, 1361 enforcement cegov/usao-  Ecoshield Ecoshield
a kiler of airborne viruses such as COVID-19. The product, known as EcoAirDoctor, was a sdca/prflocal:  information  plea
small badge represented to emit a gas that would kill viruses within a certain distance. Haj firm-and-owner- agreements
entry of goods falsely rticles, and plead-guilty-
istribution o sale of unregistered pestcides; while Ecoshield leaded gmmv toentry of illegal-
goods falsely classified. importation-sale-
and-mailing

badges-marketed



David Michael Wright 5/24/2021  USDOJ Consumer fraud David Michael Wright jre fraud and money ing for alleg 18 USC §6 1343, 1957 Tennessee €. Tenn. Criminal Yes No No 1:21-cr-00024-TRM-SKL - - hitps://wwwjusti Wright Wright plea

devising a scheme to defraud and obtain money under fraudulent pretenses from at least enforcement cegov/usao- information  agreement
one victim, involving the purchase and resale of Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) to edtn/pr/chattano
hospitals and retailers in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. Wright falsely claimed that oga-man-charged
he c the PPE products, defrauding
that Wright was importing PPE pr China, and that Wright was then seling those investor-covid-19-
products in the United States at a significant profit, including KN9S masks. related-ppe-
scheme
Alvin Lavon Rex 5/21/2021  USDO) Unemployment fraud  Alvin Lavon Rex pleaded guilty to mail fraud for allegedy receiving over $35,000 in - lowa N.D.lowa Criminal Yes No No - - - hitps://www.usti Rexindictment -
unemployment benefits in the names of other individuals from Arizona, Ohio, and enforcement ce.gov/usao
Massachusetts. He then allegedly withdrew the benefits in cash and maled the cash ndia/pr/schaller-
through the United States Postal Service. man-sentenced-

benefits fraud

Stephen Bennett; Rhonda Thomas (aka  5/20/2021  USDOJ PPP fraud Stephen Bennett and Rhonda Thomas have been charged with fraudulently obtaining $1.4 18 USC §6 1349, 1344, 1956(h)  New Jersey. District of New  Criminal Yes No No 21:mj-7103 June - July 2020 - - -
Rhonda Ware) million in Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) loans. Along with other conspirators, Bennett Jersey enforcement Two Camden

and Th itted more than 20 fraudulent applicaions for COVID-related County Residents

relief. They allegedly used the ds to buy personal it h as vehicles and Charged with

jewelry. Conspiracy to

Defraud Victims
of More Than
SLaMilionin
Coronavirus
Relief Fraud
Scheme | UsAQ:
NI | Department
of lustice
Paul Kwak; Michelle kwak 5202021 USDO) EIDL fraud Paul and Michelle kwak are charged with submitting fraudulent Economic Injury and 18USC §6 641, 1343,1956, 371, Georgia Northern District  Criminal Yes No No 1:21-¢1-00199 March 2020 to present - Atlanta couple. - -
Disaster Loans (E1DL)applictions o the SmallBusiness Administaton (554). They 1349 of Georgia enforcement indicted for
gedly submitted behalf of wit millions in
businessaciies. Of tha more than 70 raucdulent applcatonsthe Kwaks allegedly Economic Impact
submitted, approximately half were successful. The Kwaks received more than $4 million in Disaster Loan
EIDLloans. Paul Kwak also allegedly posted YouTube videos instructing how to obtain Program fraud
“EIDL, disaster assistance you don't have to pay back " USAO-NDGA

Justice
Sheila Denise Dunlap 5/202021  USDO) EIP fraud Sheila Denise Dunlap has been charged with wire fraud and aggravated identity theftin 18 USC §§ 1343, 1349 california Northern District ~Criminal Yes No No 3:21-cr-00201-51 March to July 2020 - - -
connection with fraudulent payments. Dunlap pired with of California  enforcement Modesto Woman
her son to obtain other people’s identity information and to use it to apply for EIP funds. Charged With
Iap allegedly filed 121 claims for stimulus checks, filing claims for a total of $145,200 in Submitting 121
stimulus funds. Stimulus Check

Justice
Anthony Sharper; Deana Sharper 5/19/2021  USDO) PPP fraud; EIDL fraud Anmany Sharper, the president of a high school Booster Club, and his wife Deana Sharper 18 USC §§ 1014, 1343, 1957, 2; 26 North Carolina  Western District ~ Criminal Yes No No 3:21-cr139-MOC 2017 to June 2020 - - -
defrauding and embezzling at least the club. USC §7206(1) of North Carolina enforcement Husband And
Anmo"y Sharper alegedly attempted to conceal th theft by submitting fraudulent wi
applications for Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) loans and Econormic Injury and Disaster For Stealing
Loans (EIDL) on behalf of the booster club as well as his accounting firm. The PPP and EIDL 200,000 From A
applications contained false information regarding revenues, payroll, and employment. High School

Bryan Abraham; Carlos Vazquez; Angel  5/18/2021  USDOJ Unemployment fraud  Bryan Abraham, Carlos 1 Caby Miller, Johan Santos, Gianni 18 USC 88 1029(b)(2), 3551 et seq. New York Eastern District of Criminal Yes No No 1:21-mj-00593-CLP  June 2020 to April 2021 - Eight Brookiyn - -
Cabrera; Armani Miller; Johan Santos; Stewart, Andre Ruddock and Seth Golding were charged with raudulently ublammg New York enforcement Individuals
Gianni Stewart; Andre Ruddock; Seth benefits in the t of $2 million. Charged with
Golding cubmitted fraudulent unemployment nsurance benefit clims o the New York tate Mult-Million
Department of Labor, using personal identifying information of thirc-party victims. Several Dollar Covid-19
of ted photos on social holding large Relief Fraud
amounts of money. USAQ-EDNY

Douglas Wold 5/18/2021  USDOJ Wire fraud; mail fraud;  Douglas Wold has pleaded guilty to wire fraud, mail fraud, and money laundering in 18USC §6 1343, 1341, 1957 1daho District of Idaho ~ Criminal Yes No No 1:20¢r-002020CN  Mayto August 2020 - Human - -
money laundering  connection with schemes to defraud his employer. Wold was a Human Resources Manager enforcement Resources
for Fry Foods, Inc., and mpany by requests Manager Pleads
and issuing a fraudulent COVID testing invoice. Wold deposited funds obtained through Guilty to
these fraudulent schemes into his own accounts. Defrauding

Abidemi Rufai (aka Sandy Tang) 5/17/2021 UsDOoJ Abidemi Rufai had with his fraudulent claims 18 USC § 1343 New York Eastern District of Criminal Yes No No 1:21-mj-00598-IRC March 9, 2020 to - Rufai Complaint -

for more than $350,000 in unemployment beneﬁs Rufai allegedly used stolen identifies of New York enforcement October 3, 2020 Nigerian citizen

more than 100 people to file for COVID-related unemployment benefits across a number of charged with

states. defrauding
Washington State

Christopher Paul Lick 5/14/2021  USDOJ PPP fraud Christopher Paul Lick was charged with wire fraud, making false statements, and money 18 USC §§ 1014, 1343, 1957 Mississippi N.D. Miss. Criminal Yes No No 1:21¢-00021-GHD- - -
laundering for allegedly divising a scheme to defraud, and to obtain Paycheck Protection enforcement AS
Program (PPP) funds, by filing false and fraudulent loan applications with banks providing
Toans as part of the Paycheck Protection Program. Lick allegeldy overstated the number of
employees and payroll expenses of his purported businesses to receive the funds.

false-statements-

and-money
Nathan Reardon $/13/2021  USDOJ PPP fraud Nathan Reardon was charged with bank fraud, anemmed wire fraud, m: 18 USC §§ 1014, 1343, 1344, 1349, Maine D.Me. Criminal Yes No No 121.cr-00061-LEW - - https://wwwjusti Reardon -
financial nstitut perj sdient 105 enforcement indictment
pplcations fo Paycheck Protecion rogram (PP) loan hat were uarantaed by the
(5B). itted for

direct loans from the SBA and provided false information in applications seeking
disbursement of PPP loan funds.




Robert Carter

Diana Daffin

Danielle Miller

Mustafa Qadiri

Moustapha Diakhate

Christopher Dominic Niebel

Adewale Matthew Abel

Gregory J. Blotnick

Terrell Dwayne Mason

Garrett Scott Wheelen

Todd Anderson

Brian Ruth

5/13/2021

5/11/2021

5/11/2021

5/7/2021

5/7/2021

5/6/2021

5/6/2021

5/6/2021

5/6/2021

5/6/2021

5/5/2021

5/5/2021

UsDO)

UsDO)

UsDO)

UsDO)

UsDO)

UsDO)

UsDO)

UsDo)

UsDO)

UsDo)

California AG

UsDo)

Consumer fraud

EIDL fraud

COVID Relief Fraud

PP fraud

Unemployment Fraud

PP Relief Fraud

PPP Relief Fraud

Unemployment fraud

Unemployment fraud

Robert Carter B wire fraud for allegedly participating in a scheme submit 18 USC § 1343
fraudulent unemployment insurance claims to the Maryland Division of Unemployment
Insurance for claimants whom Carter knew did not work or five in Maryland and were not

entitled to benefits

Diana Daffin was charged with violating the Food Drug and Cosmetic Act by allegedly selling 21 USC 6§ 331,333
unapproved COVID-19 remedi the internet. Despite receiving warning letters from

the FDA, Daffin tosell d drugs by moving

password protected website.

Danielle Miller 8 wire fraud for allegedly personal 18 USC§1343
identifying information to open a bank account and to apply for a federally-funded

Economic Injury Disaster loan (EIDL) through the Small Business Administration (SBAY. In

August 2020, more than $102,000 in SBA loan proceeds were deposited into that account.

Willer allegedly used the bank account in the victim's name to book a private flight from

Florida to California, using a counterfeit Massachusetts driver's license in the victim's name

but bearing Miller’s photograph, and conducted ATM transactions using the bank account

in the victim's name.

arrested on ing h -
approximately $5 million in Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) loans for his
shambusinesses, then used the money on himself, including purchasing Ferrari, Bentley

and Lamborghini sportscars.

Moustapha Diakhate was charged with bank fraud and wire fraud for allegedly providing 18 USC §5 1343, 1344
false and fraudulent information during the Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) loan
application process i order to obtain PP loans for each of his five entities totaling
$2,897,100. Diakhate then used a portion of the funds for vari 3
including to pay off aloan he had been provided to purchase of a 2010 Porsche Panamera
Turbo, and to purchase both a Mercedes and BMW. He also purchased a $50,000
certificate of deposit with PPP funds, and disbursed funds to various and individuals
unrelated to his business entities.
Christopher Dominic Niebel was arrested in connection with a federal criminal complaint -
charging him i benefits authorized by the federal Coronavirus
Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act by means of false and fraudulent pretenses
by using the p i others that he had

and
unlawfully obtained.

Adewale Matthew Abel, who fraudulently applied for a Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) -
\ pleaded court to making a
financial institution.

Gregory J Blotick, a dual New York and Florida resident was charged for his role in -
fraudulently obtaining federal Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) loans totaling $3.8
million

Hinois

New Hampshire

Massachusetts

California

Connecticut

Michigan

Oklahoma

New Jersey

Terrell Dwayne Mason was charged with aggravated identity theft, mail fraud, wire fraud, 18 USC §§ 10284, 1341, 1343, 1956 Michigan

and money laundering for allegedly participating in a scheme to defraud the State of
igan’s (SOM) Unemployment Insurance Agency (UIA) by unlawfully using the identities
of inmates in state and to file claims Assistance
benefits

Garrett Scott Wheelen pleaded guilty today to mail fraud and possession of stolen mail for 18 USC §§ 1341, 1708
allegedly submitting fraudulent Pandemic Unemployment Assistance (PUA) claims to

California’s Employment Development Department (EDD). Wheelen allegedly used

personally identifiable information (PI) and other information associated with real people

to submit fraudulent unemployment insurance and PUA claims to EDD, and allegedly

engaged in a scheme that involved stealing U.S. mail and harvesting bankcards, financial

information, checks, and Pl for use in fraudulent activity.

Todd And

v y theft; i and forging government -
C t d based on of fake COVID-19 vaccine cards in San Joaquin
documents County. This may mark the first case in the U.S. involving fraudulent COVID-19 cards.
Wire fraud; money  Brian Ruth pleaded guilty to fraudulently obtaining more than $500,000 in Paycheck 18USC § 1341, 1957
laundering Protection Program (PPP) loans under the CARES Act. He pleaded guilty to one count of

wire fraud and two counts of money laundering. He submitted loan applications for three

P inesses, and each of pplications included and
these
d did not have any empl the time stated ir
he appl Ruth v loans to p p

California

California

Missouri

0.1l

DNH.

D. Mass.

Central District of
California

D. Conn.

Eastern District of
Michigan

Northern District
of Oklahoma

District of New
Jersey

£.. Mich

ED. Cal.

W.D. Missouri

Criminal
enforcement

Criminal
enforcement

Criminal
enforcement

Criminal
enforcement

Criminal
enforcement

Criminal
enforcement

Criminal
enforcement

Criminal
enforcement

Criminal
enforcement

Criminal
enforcement

Criminal
enforcement

Criminal
enforcement

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

21050024 - -

21-mj-11601-A1 - -

- May and June 2020 -

3:21-m-00457-5DV - R

- March through August -
2020

- May 3,2020,to May 11, -
2020

- Not specified -

2:21:mj-30211-DUTY - -

1:21-CR-00105-NONE- - R

21-05019-01-CR SW-RK May 2020-June 2020 -
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Norman Higgs

"John Doe"

Terrence L. Pounds; Charles B. Tiller, Il;
Terri Davis; Randolph Nunn; Samira
Abdul-Karim; Quwan Simmons.

Tonatiuh Antonio Leal-Matos

Jason Spengler

Joshua Edwards, Evan Edwards, Mary
Jane Edwards

252 2sa Bouvier Couch

Marcus Frazier

Mark Grenon, Jonathan Grenon, Jordan
Grenon, Joseph Grenon

Apocalypse Bella, Mackenzy Toussaint,
Amos Mudendi

Maurice Kamgaing

Brandon Lewis

5/4/2021

5/3/2021

4/29/2021

4/29/2021

4/29/2021

4/29/2021

4/28/2021

4/28/2021

4/23/2021

4/22/2021

4/22/2021

4/22/2021

UsDo)

UsDO)

UsDo)

UsDo)

UsDo)

UsDo)

UsDo)

UsDo)

UsDO)

UsDo)

UsDO)

UsDO)

Unemployment fraud

Unemployment fraud;
aggravated identity
theft

Wire fraud; engaging in
amonetary transaction
in property derived
from criminal activity

Price gouging.

PP fraud

Bank fraud; money
laundering

PP fraud

PPP fraud

Fraud

PPP fraud

PPP fraud

EIDL fraud

Norman Higgs has been charged with bank fraud, conspiracy to commit wire fraud, theft of 18 U.S.C. § 641, 1344, 1349, 1957
rment ty, and money laundering. H made for
COVID-related unemployment assistance.

A unidentifed Chatestown man has been charged with three countsof wir raud, one 42 US.C. 6 40B(87)B), 18 US.C.§
count of false number, 10280
identty heft. Doe applied for and btained more than $15,000 nunemployment benefis

using a stolen identity.

Terrence L. Pounds, Charles 8. Tilr, TerriDavis, Randolph Nunn, Samira Abdul-Karm, and 18 USC § 1343, 1349, 1957, 2
with wire fraud i

approsimately $9 mllon i COVID-10 reletfunds under the CARES Act The defendants are

charged with defrauding the SBA by claiming in loan applications that they operated a non-

profit faith-based organization. Proceeds from the loan were used to purchase multiple

vehicles.

‘Tonatiuh Antonio Leal-Matos has been charged with price gouging personal protective 50 US.C. § 4512
equipment (PPE), face masks, and disinfecting wipes. Leal-Matos operated several

Facebook profiles that he allegedly used to advertise PPE and other COVID-related supplies,

which he sold at prices far above market prices.

Jason Spengler has tomakinga federal I i 18US.C.§1001
His loan application failed to disclose that his business was in bankruptcy. Businesses in

bankruptcy proceedings were ineligible for PPP loans. Based on a false assertion that his

business was not in bankruptcy, Spengler's business obtained $487,095 in PP loans.

DOJ has obtained a judgment with more than $g millionin 18 US.C. § 1344
proceeds from the Evans family's bank fraud and money laundering offenses. The family,

consisting of Joshua Edwards, Joy Edwards, Evan Edwards, and Mary Jane Edwards,

submitted fraudulent Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) applications and attempt to spenc

alarge portion of the loan proceeds on a $3.7 million home.

Massachusetts

Massachusetts

Ohio

Puerto Rico

linois.

Florida

25a 252 Bouvier Couch has been charged with fraud in connection to relief obtained 18 USC §5 1344(2), 1014, 1957(a), 2Alabama

through the CARES Act. Couch jtted at least 6 fraudulent applicati
Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) loans, seeking a total of more than $1.6 million. She
ultimately obtained more than $600,000 of PP funds, which she used to pay herself and
other family members and to purchase vehicles.

Marcus Frazier has been charged with fraudulently seeking $5.8 million in Payche
Protection Program (PPP) loans. Frazier allegedly used the funds he obtained for personal 1001, 645, 1957, 2
xpense,ncluding or sy hoels and travel expenses. He submitted a st 7 PP oan

behalf of his by
number of employees and amount of payroll expenses.

d i have been indi g and selling a 18 USC § 371, 401(3)
toxic bieach branded as "Miracie MineralSaution.” The defendants touted the prodict a5
a cure for COVID-19, cancer, and other conditions.

The defendants are charged with using two straw companies to submit fraudulent 18USC §6 1031, 1343, 1349, 2
applications for $14 million in COVID relief loans, obtaining $4 million in loans prior to their
arrest.
Maurice Kamgaing has been charged with fraudulently obtaining over $1.5 million in 18 USC 88 1014, 1343, 1957
Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) relief. Kamgaing allegedly submitted fraudulent PP

false information about whose behalf

Kamgaing applied for the funds.

Brandon Lewis has pleaded guilty to two counts of wire fraud and one count of makinga 18 USC§ 1343,2
false statement to the SBA. He has been sentenced to 63 months in prison. Lewis created 2

fake website purporting to sell goods that were critical during the pandemic and defrauded

consumers. He also submitted around 68 false loan applications.

18 USC §6 1031, 1014, 1343, 1344, New York

Florida

New York

North Carolina

North Carolina

D. Mass. Criminal
enforcement

D. Mass. Criminal
enforcement

N.D. Ohio Criminal
enforcement

D.PuertoRico  Criminal

enforcement

.1l Criminal
enforcement

MD.Florida  Civil
enforcement

M.D.Alabama  Criminal

enforcement
SDANY. Criminal
enforcement
5. Florida Criminal
enforcement
SDNY. Criminal
enforcement
W.D. North Criminal
Carolina enforcement
MD.N.C. Criminal
enforcement

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

1:21-mj-05178-16D

1:21-mj-02129-MBB

5:21-CR317

3:21-¢r-00150

3:21-cr-30058

6:20-0v-02269

2:21-cr-00185

1:21-mj-04397

1:20-mj-03050

1:21-¢r-00247

321-CR114

1:20CR336-1

March - July 2020

0ct-20

March 31,2020 -
December 17, 2020

March - July 2020

March - April 2020

April - September 2020

April - July 2020

May 2020 - April 2021

April 2020 - May 2020

March 2020 to present

Apr-20

March - July 2020

Forfeiture

63 months in prison
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Christian Matthews 4/21/2021

Bernard Lopez 4/21/2001
Ourmar Sissoko 4/21/2021
Linda Bosquez 4/20/2021
Donna Wasson 4/19/2021
Andrew Tezna 4/19/2021

4/19/2021

Terri Beth Miller 4/16/2021

Steven Mesrop, Mirna Mahrous Habib, 4/16/2021
Robert Vinnik, Katayun Oskoi, Carolina
Mesrop, and Dijon Cornelius Shepard

Eric Anthony Nepute; Quickwork LLC  4/15/2021

Darryl Corradini; Vicki Hackenberg 4/15/2021

UsDo)

UsDO)

UsDo)

UsDO)

UsDo)

UsDO)

UsDO)

UsDO)

UsDO)

FTC

UsDO)

PPP fraud

PP fraud

PPP fraud

Christian Matthews has been charged with fraudulently obtaining personal identifying 18 USC§ 1341 Pennsylvania
information and using it to file fraudulent claims for COVID-related unemployment
benefits

Bernard Lopez has pleaded guilty to fraudulently obtaining Paycheck Protection Program 18 USC § 1344 New Jersey
(PPP) funds and committing bank fraud by depositing a stolen and altered U.S. treasury

check. In his PPP application, Lopez made false representations regarding his company's

number of employees, payroll expenses, and utiity expenses,

Oumar Sissoko has been charged with misappropriating funds obtained through a Paycheck 18 USC § 1343 california
Protection Program (PPP) loan application. Sissoko obtained $7.25 million in PP loans for

his company, Road Doctor California LLC, but misappropriated hundreds of thousands of

dollars for personal expenses, such as the purchase of a luxury car and a $6,000 computer.

Wire fraud

Bank fraud

Wire fraud, aggravated
identity theft

Linda Bosquez d of theft funds for alleg | 18USC§ 641 lowa
unemployment beneits troughthe sates of Georgi, ichigan,and Arions, incuding
benefits related to the COVID-19 pandemic.

Donna Wasson was charged with wire fraud in connection with a fraudulent application for 18 USC§ 1343 Massachusetts
lying for benefi though
she resided in and received unemployment benefits from Texas.

Andrew Tezna, a Senior Executive Service employss at NASA, has pleaded guilty to bank 18 USC§ 1344 Virginia
fraud in connection with fraudulent applications for COVID-related loans and benefits.

Despite being employed in a senior position at NASA, Tezna applied for over $350,000 in

Toans and other relief. He used the proceeds to, among other things, pay off personal loans

and credit card deb.

Courtney Hilaire has been charged with wire fraud, conspiracy to commit wire fraud, and 18 USC§ 371, 1343, 1028A(a)(1), 2 Rhode Island
aggravated identity theft in connection with a scheme to defraud CARES Act programs.

Hilaire used the alias "Mr. Vacation" in soliciting assistance from another individual to steal
identifies and file d insurance payments.
Wire fraud engaging i TerrSeth il has been sentenced tofiv years i pison in connection with  scheme to 18 USC § 1343, 1957, 1040 Virginia
Miller and her husband, Ronald Smith, created an online
Business that purported to p

in v
property, fraud in
connection with
emergency benefits

Conspiracy to commit
wire fraud, wire fraud,
aggravated identity
theft

Consumer fraud

PPP fraud

applying for loans from the SBA. Miller and Smith used false and misleading statements to
solicit customers. Their scheme had almost 1,700 victims, who collectively paid $1,076,000
infees.

Teven Mesrop, Mirna Mahrous Habib, Robert Vinnik, Katayun Oskoi, Carolina Mesrop, and 18 USC§ 1343, 1349, 10284, 2, Oklahoma
Dijon Cornelius Shepard were indicted in connection with a scheme to use stolen credit  981(a)(1)®, 24610

card and identity information to purchase certain goods and services, and then resell them

ata profit. The and resold masks, and other p

protective equipment.

‘The Federal Trade C Eric 15 USC §5 45, 52; Section 1401 of ~ Missouri
uc with violating the COVID-13 Consumer Protection Actan the Feceral Trade the COVID-19 Consumer

ctby marketing Vitamin D and Zinc Protection Act
callyproven to reatorprevent COVID-19

Darryl Corradini and Vicki Hackenberg were charged with conspiring to commit bank fraud, 18 USC §§ 2, 1001, 1014,1344,  Pennsylvania
committing bank fraud for submitting false and fraudulent documentation, making false 1349, 1956, 1957
statements, compiing to commit e Iaundermg, and engaging in nlawful manetary
edly laundering scheme that
included nearly sznc,ooo in COVID-19 rellefguaran(eed by the SBA through the Paycheck
Protection Program (PPP). Corradini, Hackenberg, and other coconspirators allegedly
created a shell corporation, CGM Realty LLC, and opened bank accounts and a Bitcoin
trading account inthe corporation's name, by using false and forged documents. The
conspirators also allegedly used the accounts to receive over $135,000 in fraudulently
obtained funds, and over $296,000 from a PP loan that was obtained with false and forged
documentation.

w.o. Criminal
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2:20-cr-00069
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June - September 2020

Jun-20

April 30,2020 -July 22,
2020

March 1, 2020 through
April 5,2021

Apr-20

January 2018 - March
2021

5 years in prison
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Delashaun Dean

Jonathan Drew

Brianna Clarisse Banks

Félix R. Cruz-Santana

José Daniel Le Hardy-Figueroa;

Christoffer Pérez-Vélez

Luis A. Flores-Diaz

Denisse Sanchez-Ortiz

Gabriel A. Robles-Guzman

Daniel Colén-Diaz

Mary L. Benitez-Ortiz

Jennifer Hernandez-Romero

4/15/2021

4/14/2021

4/14/2021

4/13/2021

4/13/2021

4/13/2021

4/13/2021

4/13/2021

4/13/2021

4/13/2021

4/13/2021

UsDO)

UsDO)

UsDO)

UsDO)

UsDO)

UsDo)

UsDO)

UsDo)

UsDO)

UsDo)

UsDO)

Unemployment fraud  Delashaun Dean pleaded guity to possession of counterfeit and unauthorized access

EIP fraud

EIP fraud

Unemployment fraud

gedly p g multipl benefits debit cards, allin
intendi nearly $239,000 in benefits.

Jonathan Drew pleaded guilty to bank fraud and aggravaled identity theft in connection

with an alleged Iso known as
COVID-19 stimlus checks), and o atempting t conduct a seie of frauclent manci
transactions. | and used tocreate

counterfeit timuluschecks anging from $1,200 to 52,400, and he negotated is own
authentically issued stimulus check twice.

Brianna Clarisse Banks totheft g

the Economic Impic( Payment (E17) check from a indiidual’ post offce box and hen
 and date of birth

account, but vt sonke mailing address for the address on the account.

of a social security number for allegedly engaging in a scheme to defraud the Puerto Rico
Department of Labor and Human Resources (Departamento del Trabajo y Recursos

Humanos, “DTRH) by
benefits including Pandemic Unemployment Assistance (PUA) benefits.

18 USC §6 10284, 1344

18 USC 85 641, 1028, 1028A

Félix R. Cruz-Santana was charged with mail fraud, theft of government money, and misuse -

fraud  José Daniel Le Hardy-Figueroa and Christoffer Pérez-Vélez were charged with conspiracy to -

commit mail fraud, mail fraud, and theft of government moneys for allegedly conspiring to

tothe Py Labor and Human Resources

(DTRH) tht osé Danil Le Hardy Figueroa was an unmployed barber, whe n fot e was

amail carrier employed by the United States Postal Service.

Unemployment fraud - Luis A Flores-Disz wascharged with thft of government property and mail raud for

the Puerto Rico
Departmant of abor and uman Resources (mnn) via mail in the form of checks that he
was not qualified or authorized to receive,

Unemployment fraud  Denisse Sénchez-Ortiz was charged with theft of government property and mail fraud for

the Puerto Rico

Deyanmem of Labor and Human Resources (DTRH) via mail in the form of checks that she

was not qualified or authorized to receive.

Unemployment fraud  Gabriel A. Robles-Guzman was charged with theft of government property and mail fraud

Unemployment fraud  Daniel Colon-

for allegedly receiving Unemployment Insurance (UI) benefits from the Puerto Rico
Department of Labor and Human Resources (DTRH) via mail in the form of checks that he
was not qualified or authorized to receive.

s s charged with thftof government property and mal raud for
the Puerto Rico
Departmant of abor and uman Resources (mnn) via mail in the form of checks that he
was not qualified or authorized to receive,

fraud Marv L i 'ged with theft of government property and mail fraud for
the Puerto Rico

Deyanmem of Labor and Human Resources (DTRH) via mail in the form of checks that she

was not qualified or authorized to receive,

fraud  Jennifer -Romero was charged with theft of government property and mail fraud -

for allegedly receiving Unemployment Insurance (UI) benefits from the Puerto Rico

Department of Labor and Human Resources (DTRH) via mail in the form of checks that she

was not qualified or authorized to receive.
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enforcement
DPR. Criminal
enforcement

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

https://wwwjusti Dean complaint -

https://www justi - Drew plea
ce.gov/usao- agreement

counterfeit-covid-

checks-scheme
https://www.justi Banks -
cegov/usao:  complaint
dt/pr/wood-

county-woman:

guilty-stealing-

stimulus-

https://www justi Cruz-Santana. -

https://wwwjusti Le Hardy- -
cegov/usao-  Figueroa; Pérez:
I

indicted-and:

arrested

unemployment:

benefits-and-

‘pandemic-

unemployment

https://wwwjusti Flores-Diaz -
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Jonathan Rivera-Gutiérrez 4/13/2021

Luis Cruz-Reyes 4/13/2021
Millisen M. Martinez-Medina 4/13/2021
Ibanga Etuk; Teosha Etuk 4/12/2021
Stephen Smith 4/12/2021
Jason Vertz; Alana Powers 4/12/2021
Ronald A. Smith 4/9/2021
James Heritage 4/9/2021
Mary Benton; Angelica Cartwright- 4/9/2021
Powers; Michael Lee Lewis, Jr.; Michael

Anthony White

Sequoia Edwards /91201
Mireya Ramos 4/9/2021
Paris Thomas /97201

UsDO)

UsDO)

UsDO)

UsDo)

UsDO)

UsDo)

UsDO)

UsDo)

UsDo)

UsDo)

UsDO)

UsDOJ

Unemployment fraud

Jonathan Rivera-Gutiérrez was charged with theft of government property and mail fraud
for allegedly receiving Unemployment Insurance (UI) benefits from the Puerto Rico
Department of Labor and Human Resources (DTRH) via mail in the form of checks that he
was not qualified or authorized to receive.

Luis G 'ged with theft of government property and mail fraud for
the Puerto Rico
Departmentof Labor and Harman Resources OTRH} viamall 1 he form f checks that he
was not qualified or authorized to receive.

PPP fraud

PPP fraud

Unemployment fraud

Unemployment fraud

PPP fraud;
Unemployment fraud

Unemployment fraud

Unemployment fraud

‘was charged with theft of government property and mail
fraud Inr alegedly receiving Unemployment Insurance (1) benefits from the Puerto Rico
Department of Labor and Human Resources (DTRH) via mail in the form of checks that she
was not qualified or authorized to receive. Martinez-Medina was also charged with
aggravated identity theft for using other people’s Social Security numbers without their
authorization.

Tbanga Etuk and Teosha Etuk pleaded guilty to bank fraud and identity theft, and bank
fraud, respectively, for allegedy fraudulently applying for Paycheck Protection Program
(PPP) loans, lying about the number of people employed, the payroll expenditures during
!he previous months, taxes paid during previous months of operation, ownership of the
other things. Ibanga Etuk al v used another
mdmdual’s identity on payroll records submitted when e applied for his loan.

Stephen Smith pleaded guilty to bank fraud for his role in allegedy fraudulently obtaining
over 600,000 n Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) loans.Smith allegedly caused
fraudulent I submitted that false and misleading
statements about the companies’ respective payroll expenses. Smith then allegedly
directed his co-conspirators to send him portions of the PP funds within days of receiving
them and used the proceeds for personal expenses.
Jason Vertz and Alana Powers, an inmate at Central California Women's Facilty (CCWF),
pleaded guilty to conspiracy to commit mail fraud and aggravated identity theft for
allegedy particpating n a scheme thattrgeted ClforniaEmployment Developmen
Department (EDD) insurance benefit. Vertz and P

itted fraudulent in Powers’ and other CCWF
inmates’ names to EDD.

Ronald A. Smith pleaded guilty to wire fraud, engaging in monetary transactions in

18 USC §6 10284, 1349

d property, and fraud ; inter alia,

submitting a fraudulent appli ith the Vi ommission for
unemployment compensation, including $600 per eekin federl pandemic
unemployment compensation authorized under the CARES Act.

James Heritage pleaded guilty to making a false statement on a loan application to obtain

money through the Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) and mail fraud, in connection with

2 scheme to collect Pandemic Unemployment Assistance (PUA), a form of supplemental
insurance, f d the District of Columbia.

Mary Benton, Angelica Cartwright-Powers, Michael Lee Lewis, Ir., and Michael Anthony
White were charged for allegedly participating in a conspiracy to use the personal
identifying information of 35 Virginia prison inmates n order to lraudulenl\y obtain over
$300,000 Benton and Car

, mail fraud, and fraud with malor disaser
benefits; and Lewis and White were charged with conspiracy and mail fraud.

Sequoia Edwards was charged with fraud in connection with emergency benefits and wire
fraud for allegedly filing at least 27 fraudulent unemployment insurance (UI) claims over
two months last summer, at least six of which used personally identifiable information (P1l)
belonging to California prison inmates that she allegedly received from her incarcerated
cousin

/a Ram fraud in connection benefits and wire
fenufor zl\eged\y flingat least 37 fraudulent unemployment insurance (1) clams, most of
which were submitted in the names of inmates in the California prison system and many of
which falsely stated the applicants were barbers who could not work due to the pandemic.
The affidavit in support of her criminal complaint states that Ramos obtained the inmates’
Pl from her long-time boyfriend, wha is currently serving a lfe sentence in Calipatria State
prison.

Paris Thomas B fraud in e benefits and wire
fraud for allegedly i
applications, at least 15 of which were filed in the names of people incarcerated in state

prisons, a federal prison and county.

18 USC 85 1001, 1343

18 USC §6 371, 1040, 1341, 2

18 USC 85 1040, 1343

18 USC §6 1040, 1343

18 USC 85 1040, 1343
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Daniel Maleus; Lilly Nguyen

Travs Kilgore.

Tyrone Hazard

Rashaad Hill

Michael Moran Lamb.

Jesse Hazard

Jamel Newman

Francois Parker

Darren Robinson

Jyireal Gadson

Rashaad Muskelly

Derrick Gadson

4/9/2021

4/8/2021

4/8/2021

4/8/2021

4/8/2021

4/8/2021

4/8/2021

4/8/2021

4/8/2021

4/8/2021

4/8/2021

4/8/2021

UsDO)

UsDo)

UsDo)

UsDO)

UsDo)

UsDo)

UsDO)

UsDo)

UsDO)

UsDo)

UsDo)

UsDO)

Unemployment fraud

Unemployment fraud

Daniel Maleus and Lilly Nguyen were charged with wire fraud, conspiracy to commit wire 18 USC §§ 1001, 10284, 1343,

fraud, and aggravated identity theft, and Nguyen was also charged with bank fraud,
conspiracy to commit bank fraud, and lying to a federal agent for their alleged involvement
inascheme to Iy c istance. Maleus
and Nguyen conspired to file fraudulent claims for Pandemic Unemployment Assistance
(PUA) using others’ personally identifiable information.

Travis
commit mail fraud for allegedly developing a scheme with others beginning in May 2020 to
defraud the United States and the Virginia Employment Commission (VEC) through the
filing of fraudulent claims for pandemic unemployment benefits.

Unemployment fraud

Unemployment fraud

Unemployment fraud

Unemployment fraud

8 wire fraud and g for y filing
multiple claims for unemployment compensation in Rhode Island and in other states.

Rashaad Hill was charged with wire fraud and money laundering for allegedly filing multiple -
claims for unemployment compensation in Rhode Island and in other states

Michael Moran Lamb was charged with wire fraud and money laundering for allegedy filing -
multiple claims for unemployment compensation in Rhode Island and in other states.

Jesse Hazard was charged with wire fraud and money laundering for allegedly filing multiple -
claims for unemployment compensation in Rhode Island and in other states.

Jamel Newman was charged with wire fraud and money laundering for allegedly filng -
multiple claims for unemployment compensation in Rhode Island and in other states.

Francols Parker B fraud and money laundering for allegedly filing -
multiple claims for unemployment compensation in Rhode Island and in other states.

Unemployment fraud

Darren Robinson ged with wire fr laundering for allegedly filing -
multiple claims for unemployment compensation in Rhode Island and in other states.

Jyireal Gadson was charged with wire fraud and money laundering for allegedly filing -
multiple claims for unemployment compensation in Rhode Island and in other states.

Unemployment fraud

ashaad y 'ged with wire fraud and money g for alleged
multiple claims for unemployment compensation in Rhode Island and in other states.

Derrick Gadson was charged with wire fraud and money laundering for allegedly filng -
multiple claims for unemployment compensation in Rhode Island and in other states.

lgore piracy d conspiracy to 18 USC §§ 371, 1040
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Deeshawn Gadson 4/8/2021 UsDOJ fraud  Deeshawn Gadson 8 wire fraud and money laundering for allegedly filing - Rhodelsland DRI Criminal Yes No No - - - https://wwwjusti - -
multiple claims for unemployment compensation in Rhode Island and in other states. enforcment ce gov/usao:

investigations:
identify-twenty-
three-individuals
targeting-thirty-
one
Keishon Brown 4/82021  UsDOI Unemployment fraud  Keishon Brown was charged with wire fraud and money laundering for allegedy filng - Rhodelsland DRI Criminal Yes No No - - - https://wwwjusti - -
multiple claims for unemployment compensation in Rhode Island and in other states. enforcment ce.gov/usao
tifpr/cares-act-
fraud:
investigations-
identify-twent
three-individuals-
targeting thirty-
one
Donovan Brown 4/8/2021 UsDOJ Unemployment fraud  Donovan Brown was charged with wire fraud and money laundering for allegedly filing - Rhodelsland DRI Criminal Yes No No - - - https://wwwjusti - -
multiple claims for unemployment compensation in Rhode Island and in other states. enforcment ce gov/usao:

investigations:
identify-twenty-
three-individuals
targeting-thirty-
one
Deanna Alston 4/82021  UspoI Unemployment fraud  Deanna Alston was charged with wire fraud and money laundering for allegedly filing - Rhodelsland DRI Criminal Yes No No - - - https://wwwjusti - -
multiple claims for unemployment compensation in Rhode Island and in other states. enforcment ce.gov/usao

targetingthirty

one
Vallah Brown 4/8/2021 UsDOJ Unemployment fraud  Vallah Brown was charged with wire fraud and money laundering for allegedly filing 18 USC 86 641, 1343, 1956 Rhodelsland DRI Criminal Yes No No 121mi-00029-PAS - - https://wwwjusti Brown -
multiple claims for unemployment compensation in Rhode Island and in other states. enforcment cegov/usao-  complaint
tifor/cares-act
fraud-

investigations:
identify-twenty-
three-individuals
targeting thirty-

one
Ejembi Onah 4/82021  UspoOI PPP fraud; EIDLfraud  Ejembi Onah 8 fraud & for allegedly g 18USCE§1343, 1957 New York NDNY. Criminal Yes No No 321mi00191 ML - - https://www.usti Onah complaint -

approximately $150,000 in Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) loans and Economic Injury enforcment
Disaster Loans (EIDL), which were issued by two banks and the Small Business
Administration (SBA) to two companies Onah controlled. In support of the loan

applications, O d fabricated bank
statements.
Francis F. loseph 4/82021  UspoI PPP fraud Francis F. Joseph was charged with theft in connection with health care, theft of 18USC 56 152, 641,669,1343  Colorado 0. Colo. Criminal Yes No No 121c-00083-RM - - https://www.usti Joseph -
government property, wire fraud, and making a false statement in connection with a enforcment ce.gov/opa/pr/co int
bankruptcy proceeding for, inter alia, allegedly applying for a $179,999 loan under the lorado-physician-
Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) on behalf of a medical practice he used to work for, charged
which Joseph then directed into his personal bank account. misappropriating:
thousands-three-
different-covid-
telief-programs
Jemar Ahton Mason; David Kurbanov;  4/7/2021 UsDOJ PPP fraud Jemar Ahton Mason, David Kurbanov, Dennis Lynn Cartwright, Jr,, Andre Jackson, and 18 USC §§ 1343, 1349, 1956, 1957, Michigan W.. Mich. Criminal Yes No No 121r00069-R - - hitps://wwwusti Masonetal -
Dennis Lynn Cartwright, Jr; Andre James Williams were charged with conspiracy to commit wire fraud and wire fraud (except 2 enforcment
Jackson; James Williams. Cartwright), conspiracy i aundering, and ing to
engage in, a monetary transaction i property derived from specified unlawful activity for
their alleged participation in a scheme to fraudulently obtain and misappropriate Paycheck 19 PPP Fraud
Protection Program (PPP) loan funds.
healthbridgescience.com; global- /712021 UsDOJ Consumer fraud The US Attorney's Office for the District of Maryland seized healthbridgescience.com, - Maryland 0.Md. Criminal Yes No No - - - https://wwwjusti - -
pandemic-vaccines.com; lobal-pand all of which d to be the enforcment ce gov/usao-
genobioscience.com websites of actual i treatments for the Ct md/pr/maryland-

but instead were allegedly used to collect the personal information of individuals visiting
the sites, in order to use the information for nefarious purposes, including fraud, phishing
attacks, and/or deployment of malware.

Had Isbaih 4/6/2021 Uspo) PPPfraud; EIDL fraud  Hadi Isbaih B wire fraud for allegedly of hundreds of ~ 18 USC§1343 Hiinois N.D. L Criminal Yes No No 1:21-¢r-00208 - -
Flash Tax customers Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) and Economic Injury Disaster Loan enforcment
d

) app
misrepresentations about the customers’ businesses, such as gross revenues, expenses,
and number of employees, the indictment states. Isbaih’s false statements and

millions of dollars in PPP and EIDL funds covid-relief-fraud
to be disbursed to those customers.

Hubert lvan Ugarte. 4/6/2021 UsDOJ PPP fraud Hubert lvan Ugarte ing a fraudulent tion to the Small - utah 0. Utah Criminal Yes No No - - - https://wwwjusti - -
[ through the d, Relief, and Economic Security enforcment ce gov/usao:
(CARES) Act. Ugarte admitted that he fraudulently obtained $210,000 in PP loans after wt/or/owner.
failing to disclose that he was under federal indictment for his role in a fraudulent trucking utah-trucking:
scheme. companies-

worth-24
Jon Alan Bader 4/6/2021 UsDOJ PPP fraud; EIDLfraud  Jon Alan Bader was charged with bank fraud, wire fraud, committing fraud in connection 18 USC §§ 1001, 1014, 1040, 1343, Ohio 5.0. 0hio Criminal Yes No No 121-mj-00265-5K8 - - https://wwwjusti Bader -
with major disaster or emergency benefits, making false statements, and making false 344 enforcment cegov/usao-  complaint

statements in connection to credit or loan applications for allegedy submitting fraudulent
Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) and Economic Injury Disaster Loan (EIDL) applications
and receiving more than $120,000 in fraudulent pandemic relief funds.

fraud-schemes

Melissa McGhee 4/6/2021 UsDOJ PPP fraud; EIDLfraud  Melissa McGhee was charged with bank fraud, wire fraud, committing fraud in connection 18 USC §§ 1001, 1014, 1040, 1343, Ohio 5.0. Ohio Criminal Yes No No 121-mi-00264-5K8 - - https://www.justi McGhee -
with major disaster o emergency benefits, making false statements, and making false 1344 enforcment cegov/usao-  complaint
statements in connection to credit or loan applications for allegedy submitting fraudulent sdoh/pr/four-

Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) and Economic Injury Disaster Loan (EIDL) applications local-individuals-
and receiving $186,000 in fraudulent relief funds, which she used, in part, to purchase real charged-separate
estate. pandemic-relief-

fraud-schemes



Toni Wright 4/6/2021 Uspo) PPP fraud Toni Wright was charged with bank fraud, wire fraud, committing fraud in connection with 18 USC §§ 1001, 1014, 1040, 1343, Ohio 5.0. Ohio Criminal Yes No No 1:21-mj-00266-5KB - - hitps://wwwjusti Wright -

major disaster or emergency benefits, making false statements, making false statements in 1344; 42 USC § 408 enforcment cegov/usao-  complaint
connection to credit or loan applications, and false representation of a social security sdoh/pr/four-
8 Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) local-individuals-
relief loans. ergma\legedly used the same Employer Identifcation Number for more than charged-separate
one of P dd the business locations pandemic-relief-
She allege i licat ite being fraud:schemes
Kell Prather 4/6/2021 UsDOJ PPP fraud Kelli Prather was charged with bank fraud, aggravated identity theft, making false 18 USC 88 1001, 1014, 1040, 1344; Ohio 5.0. Ohio Criminal Yes No No 121-mj-00267-5K8 - - hitps://wwwjusti Prather -
statements, making false statements in connection to credit o loan applications, and flse. 42 USC § 408 enforcment cegov/usao-  complaint
asocial f more than $600,000 in

{raud el through the Paycheck Protection ngram (PPP), and fraudulently receiving
approximately $19,800.

fraud-schemes

Rudolph Brooks, Jr. 4/5/2021 UsDOJ PPP fraud; EIDL fraud  Rudolph Brooks, r. was charged with wire fraud for allegedly applying for a Paycheck 18USC§1343 Maryland 0. Md. Criminal Yes No No 8:21-m-00695-GLS - - https://www.justi Brooks -
Protection Program (PPP) loan using fraudulent tax forms, and an Economic Injry Disaster enforcment cegov/usao-  complaint
Loan (EIDL) loan the information and ion Brooks md/pr/maryland-
submitted for his PP loan application. man-facing:

federal-charge
fraudulently-
obtaining-15-
million-paycheck-
protection
Darnell Harris; Marie Tavernier; Ebony ~ 4/2/2021  Massachusetts AG Unemployment fraud  Darnell Harris, Marie Tavernier, Ebony Harris, and Gregory Harris were charged with - Massachusetts - Criminal Yes No No - - - https://www.mas - -
Haris; Gregory Harris unemployment fraud, larceny, attempted larceny, money laundering, and conspiracy for enforcment s.gov/news/four-
their alleged participation in a scheme to use the personal identifying information of jail indicte-in-
inmates and other individuals to steal more than $77,000 from the state’s Pandermic unemployment-
Unemployment Assistance (PUA) program. fraud-scheme-

worcester-county-

ail
Julio Lugo; Rosenide Venant 42201 uspol PPP fraud; EIDL fraud  Julio Lugo and Rosenide Venant were charged with conspiracy and making false statements 18 USC §§ 371, 1014, 1957 Florida M.D. Fla Criminal Yes No No 821-m-01204-A85; - - https://wwwjusti - -
to financial institution, and Lugo was charged with an illegal monetary transaction relating enforcment 8:21-mj-01295-AAS ce.gov/usao
to the ilegal use of coronavirus relief funds, for allegedly submitting at least 70 false and mdfl/or/davenpo
fraudulent I licat funds from Program (PPP) and tt-couple
Economic Injury Disaster Loan (EIDL) program. The fraudulent loan applications requested charged-58-
more than $5.8 million, including for shell companies established by Lugo, Venant, and their million-covig-

relatives. Lugo also allegedly used coronavirus relief funds to pay off a note on a luxury car
purchased during the conspiracy.

Raquel Pena /22021 UsDOJ fraud hquel pena ged with wire fraud, conspiracy to commit wire fraud and aggravated 18 USC §§ 1028A,1343,1349  Massachusetts  D. Mass. Criminal Yes No No 121-mi-04190-DHH - - https://wwwusti Pena complaint -
gedly participating in a scheme to oVID-19- enforcment ce gov/usao:
rolted tance. Pena and oth tofile fraudulent ma/pr/lawrence.
clomsforPandemic Unemployment Assstance using athers’persenallydentiiable woman-arrested:
information. Pena allegedly recruited acquaintances to receive the proceeds of the identity-theft-and
fraudulent claims into their bank accounts, withdraw all or a portion of those funds and unemployment-
give the cash to Pena. fraud-related:
pandemic
William Cordor 4112021 UsDOJ EIDL fraud; Willam Cordor was charged with conspiracy to commit wire fraud, wire fraud, and 18USC 8§ 10284, 1343,1349,2  Massachusetts D, Mass. Criminal Yes No No 4:21-cr-40016TSH - - https://www.usti Cordor -
Unermploymentraud . aggrvated ety theft for i aleed involvement nschemes to raudulently btain enforcment cegov/usao:  indictment
from the Small usi (sBA). ma/opr/leicester-
Cor o others d tofile false and fraudulent man-indicted-

s for unemployment assistance in various states including Nevada and wire the
payments into prepaid debit car ts Cordoralso gag
with others in a second wire fraud scheme that involved using stolen identities to
fraudulently apply for Economic Injury Disaster Loans (EIDLS) from the SBA and similarly
deposit the loans into prepaid debit card accounts
Nicholas Milano White 3/31/2021  USDOJ Identity theft Nicholas Milano White was charged with conspiracy to steal mail, emergency benefits 18 USC 6§ 371, 1028A, 1040, 1708, Maryland . Md. Criminal Yes No No 1:201-00407-R08 - -
fraud, and aggravated identity theft for, inter alia, allegedly fraudulently negotiatinga 2 enforcment
stolen check by endorsing it with the forged signature of the intended recipient and
depositing it into a bank account fraudulently opened on June 14, 2020, in recipient's name
and using his social security number and date of birth.

stealing-benefits

Shane Spierdowis 3/31/2021  USDO) PP fraud; EIDL fraud charged with gedly using false Social Security 18 USC§1343 Massachusetts D, Mass. Criminal Yes No No - - - https://wwwusti Spierdowis -
umbers and fraudulent documentationto aply for a federally funded Small Business enforcment cegov/usao-  complaint
Adminisration ($84) Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) loan of $101,517. In connection ma/pr/hull-man-
with this | a bank statement reflecting a indicted-fraud
balance exceeding $220,000; i fact,this statement was dated before (he pertinent bank charge-arising:
account was ever opened. Spierdowis a an SBA E Injury fraudulent-cares-
Disasterloan (EIDL) of $85,900, and in connection with both loans, he allegedly used Soial act-small-
v from hi ity number. business-loans
Chinnapatr Chunhasomboon 3/31/2021  UsDOJ Consumer fraud Chinnapatr Chunhasomboon was charged with mail fraud, wire fraud, smuggling, 18 USC §§ 545, 1001, 1341, 1343; Pennsylvania ~ M.D. Pa Criminal Yes No No 321r-00093-ROM - - https://www.justi Chunhasomboo -
introducing misbranded drugs into U.S. commerce, introducing unapproved new drugs into 21 USC§ 331 enforcment cegov/usao-  nindictment
U.S. commerce, and making false statements to federal agents for allegedly selling mdpajpr/thai
phosphate to , including in the United national-charged-
States, as a treatment for both COVID-19 and for malaria. Chunhasomboon allegedly fraudulently
evaded and attempted to evade U.S. Customs inspectors by disguising his shipments of selling:
chloroquine phosphate as fish tank accessories and cell phone cases, among other things, unapproved
chloroguine-
‘phoshate:
treatment
Hassan Kanyike 3/29/2021  USDO) PP fraud; EIDL fraud  Hassan ity to alleged ing a scheme to 18USC§1343 california co.cal. Criminal Yes No No - - - https://wwwjusti Kanyike Kanyike plea
8 million in COVID-19 relief gt by the Small Business enforcement cegov/usao-  complaint  agreement
Administration (SBA) through the Economic Injury Disaster Loan (EIDL) program and the cdca/pr/santa
Paycheck Protection Program (PPP). Kanyike admitted that he submitted six fraudulent PPP dlarita-man-
Toan applications and two (raudu\emE\Dl.apvl\ca(vans The applications sought funds to pleads-uilty
the salaries e he for two of his
Businesses, but Kanyke admitted durmg his p\ea that the company had substantially fewer
employees and he obtained

altional Employer dentication Numbers rom the 18 n Apiand May 2020 50 that he
could apply for multiple loans for the same used-car business. Kanyike then used a
substantial portion of the PPP loan proceeds for his own personal benefit.

Hanalei Aipoalani 3/26/2021  USDO) CRF fraud Hanalei Aipoalani pleaded guilty to, inter alia, allegedly agreeing to accept a bribe for the - District of 0.0.C Criminal Yes No No - - - https://wwwjusti - -
administration of grants under the CARES Act. In August 2020, Aipoalani was hired to serve Columbia enforcement ce gov/usao-
as Honolulu City and County’s Department of Community Service's CARES Program de/or/hawaian
and was responsible Coronavirus Relief Fund ("CRF") non-profit-
programs. In that capacity, Aipoalani agreed to accept a financial benefit from an applicant executive-pleads
who filed two fraudulent applications for CARES Act Funds under the agreement that guilty-embezzling:
Aipoalani would influence the approval of the grant applications and would receive a over-50000

financial benefit in return for the approvals, americorps-and



Robert Lee Snowden Jr. 3/26/2021  USDOJ EIDL fraud Robert Lee Snowden Jr. pleaded guilty to conspiracy to commit wire fraud and to 18 USC §6 10284, 1349 Maryland D.Md. Criminal Yes No No 1:21-cr00022ELH - - hitps://www justi - Snowden

aggravated identity theft for, inter ali, allegedly attempting to obtain anEconomic Injury enforcement ce gov/usao- plea.

Disaster Loan (EIDL) using the identity of at least one of the alleged victims in a separate md/pr/serial agreement

scheme to abtain SNAP benefits using the vict'sstolen dentifcation information. With fraudster-pleads-

the victim'’s information, Snowden afictitious in the guilty-federal

name of the victim and obtained fraudulent credentials to apply for EIDL. charges-related-

multiple-frauct
schemes-
pfizermy.com; pfizer-vaccines.com;  3/26/2021  USDOJ Consumer fraud ‘The United States obtained court authorization to seize four domains that purported to be - Virginia ED.Va. ciil No Yes No - - - -
pfizerstockrate.com; pfizerksa.com; the legitimate websites of Pfizer, Inc. (*Pfizer”) - specifically, “pfizermx.com,” “pfizer- enforcement
unicefcovid19relief.com; "  and “plizerk “n addition,
unicefeverychild.com; seized thr iming to b the United Nations International
unicefinternship.com Children's Emergency Fund mmcgr) specially, “unicefcouid19relief.com,”
 an the seized domains colect-personal

purported to be the \egmma!e websites of either Pfizer or UNICEF, the sites instead information-and:

appeared to have been designed to obtain the personal information of website visitors for ilegally-profit

nefarious purposes, such as fraud or phishing attacks. covid
Michael Rech 3/26/2021  USDO) PPP fraud ael Rech was charged with wire fraud and money laundering in connection with his 18 USC § 1343, 1956, 1957 New York Criminal Yes No No 6:21-mi-04044-MWP - - https://wwwusti Rech complaint -

lleged appl d receipt ,500 in Paycheck Protection Program enforcement ce gov/usao:
(699)loan. thween April 2020 and February 2021, Rech applied for three PPP loans. On ‘wdny/or/north
ech Iy d employees and that he chill-mar
had been paying wages to these employees, which qualified him for the PPP loans. charged-covid-

Subsequent investigation revealed that Rech did not have any employees and did not paid
wages to any employees.

Yashica Sherea Bain 3/26/2021  USDO) PPP fraud Yashica Sherea Bain was charged with wire fraud, bank fraud, and conspiracy and attempt - Florida 5.0.Fla. Criminal Yes No No 0:21-mj-06152 - - -
to commit wire fraud and bank fraud for allegedly obtaining 2 PPP loan of $415,232 for her enforcement
company Microblading Brow Studio, LLC, using falsified documents. It s alleged that Bain
failed to use the PP loan on business-related or payroll-related expenses and, instead, district-florida-
made substantial payments to herself and others, withdrew large amounts in cash, and takes-sweeping-
used money towards the purchase of a bar and lounge in Miami, Florida. Bain also allegedly action-against-
conspired with others to obtain millions of dollars in fraudulent PPP loans, and participated cares-act-fraud

in a conspiracy to submit at least $34 million worth of fraudulent PP loan applications.

Shanrika Shantae Duhart 3/26/2021  USDO) PPP fraud Shanrika Shantae Duhart was charged with wire fraud, bank fraud, and conspiracy and Florida S.0. Fla. Criminal Yes No No 0:21-mj-06153 - - hitps://wwwjusti - -
attempt to commit wire fraud and bank fraud for allegedly obtaining a PP loan of $388,790 enforcement ce.gov/usao
for her company Hair She Goes, Inc., using falsified documents. Itis alleged that Duhart sdfl/pr/southern-
failed to use the PPP loan on business-related or payroll-related expenses and instead made district-florida
substantial payments to herself and to others, withdrew large amounts in cash, transferred takes-sweeping:
money to other entities, and used money to pay for her personal expenses. Duhart also action-against-
allegedly participated in a conspiracy to submit at least $34 million worth of fraudulent PP
Toan applications
Yamil Herrera 3/26/2021  USDOJ EIDL fraud Yamil Herrera was charged with wire fraud for allegedly receiving over $300,000 from two - Florida S.0. Fla. Criminal Yes No No 1:21-m}-02532 - - https://wwwjusti - -

fraudulent EIDL loans and advances. enforcement ce gov/usao
sdfl/pr/southern-
florid:

takes sweeping:
action-against:
cares-actfraud

Barry Wolf 3/26/2021  USDOJ PP fraud; EIDL fraud  Barry Wolf was charged with wire fraud for allegedly receiving over $500,000, primarily - Florida S.0. Fla. Criminal Yes No No 9:21-mj-08099 - - https://www justi - -
from two fraudulent PPP loans. Wolf also allegedly submitted five fraudulent EIDL enforcement ce.gov/usao-
applications. sdfi/pr/southern.

district florida-

Yansel Jimenez Blanco 3/26/2021  USDOJ PPP fraud Yansel limenez Blanco was charged with wire fraud, bank fraud, and money laundering for - Florida 5.0, Fla. Criminal Yes No No - - -
allegedly applying for a $487,500 PPP loan to pay business expenses for his trucking enforcement
company, such as employee payroll, but Blanco then used the funds to pay for personal
expenses, or transferred the funds to multiple individuals who were not employees

James Medard (a/k/a “James Menard”  3/26/2021  USDO) PP fraud; EIDL fraud  James Medard was charged ‘with wire fraud, money laundering, and aggravated identity - Florida 5.0.Fla. Criminal Yes No No 1:21-m}-02514 - -
a/kfa “James Joseph”) g g two EIDL the enforcement

mame of 2 business e Controle, and asecond one n i name-and subitied fle

earnings information, a falsified IRS form, as well as false personal identifying information

to conceal his true identity and obtain approval for the loans. Medard also allegedy applied

for a fraudulent PP loan, for which he submitted falsified IRS forms, and lsts of purported action-against-
employees containing the means of identification of real people who did not work for the. cares-act fraud

defendant or his business, and did not authorize the defendant or his business to use their
means of identification to support a PPP loan application.

Oldley Saintfumin; Lucie Adras 3/26/2021  USDO) fraud d Lucie for their alleged unauthorized use of debit - Florida 5.0.Fla. Criminal Yes No No 121-mj-02529-CMM - - https://wwwjusti - -

cards issued in names by offices that distribute enforcement ce gov/usao:

unemployment insurance benefit. From n o aroun May 2020, trough September 2020, sdfl/or/southern

various states allegedy rep dozens of insurance b district-florida-

a itted o from an address associated with the

defendants’ residence.
Wally Dorlus; Marcgenson Marc; Roberto 3/26/2021  USDOJ PPP fraud Wally Dorlus, Marcgenson Marc, and Roberto Geronimo were charged for their alleged - Florida S.0. Fla. Criminal Yes No No 021-m-06175-PMH - - -
Geronimo participation in a scheme and conspiracy to obtain fraudulent PPP loans based on falsified enforcement

employee and payroll obligations and documentation. Dorlus was allegedly a tax preparer
who, in exchange for kickbacks, facilitated the filing of over 167 fraudulent PPP loan
applications, which included falsified supporting payroll tax documentation, seeking over
$28 million in PP loan funds on behalf of companies under his control and over 100 other
companies. Of those, approximately 33 PP loans were allegedly funded in the approximate
amount of $5.5 million. It i alleged that Dorlus collected kickbacks ranging from 12.5% to
25% of the PP loan proceeds and that Marc was a recruiter for Dorlus who shared in the
kickbacks, which were paid to entities under the control of Dorlus and Marc or in cash.
Marc, in turn, allegedly recruited at least one other individual to apply for fraudulent PPP
Toans through Dorlus and recruited additional applicants in exchange for a credit on the
kickback he owed. Geronimo, who was on bond pending trial on federal drug conspiracy
charges allegedly received a fraudulent PPP loan for approximately $250,000 based on
falsified payroll tax documentation submitted by Dorlus.

Cindi Ells Denton 3/26/2021  USDOJ PPP fraud Cindi Ellis Denton was charged with wire fraud, bank fraud, and conspiracy and attempt to. - Florida 5.0, Fla. Criminal Yes No No - - - hitps://wwwjusti - -
commit wire fraud and bank fraud for allegedly obtaining a PPP loan of $491,310 for her enforcement ce.gov/usao
company Emerald Jade Business Solutions, using falsified documents. It i alleged that sdfl/pr/southern-

Denton failed to use the PPP loan on business-related or payroll-related expenses and
instead made substantial payments to herself and others.

Dennes Garcia 3/26/2021  USDO) PPP fraud Dennes Garcia was charged with wire fraud, bank fraud, and conspiracy and attemptto - Florida 5.0.Fla. Criminal Yes No No 0:21-mj-06150 - -
commit wire fraud and bank fraud for allegedly obtaining a PP loan of $285,742 for his enforcement
company, Dhanda Corporation, using falsified documents. It is alleged that Garcia failed to
use the PP loan on business-related or payroll-related expenses and instead made trict.f
substantial payments to himself and others. akes—sweeg\ ng:
action-against-
cares-act-fraud




Johnesha Travis and his alleged ‘were charged -
wire fraud and bank fraud, wire fraud, and bank fraud for allegedly obtaining a PPP loan of
$152,605 for their company, Luxury Yacht Rentals Plus, LLC, using falsified documents.

Johnesha Travis 3/26/2021  USDOJ PPP fraud
Kenbrell Armod Thompkins 3/26/2021  USDOJ

Leonel Rivero 3/26/2021  USDOJ PPP fraud

Justin Etwaru 3/26/2021  USDOJ PP fraud

Toannis Kralievits 3/26/2021  USDOJ PPP fraud

Jericca Rosado 3/26/2021  USDOJ PPP fraud
Devonte Thames 3/26/2021  USDOJ PPP fraud
Kimberly Cleare 3/26/2021  USDOJ EIDL fraud
;anv::n Philip Breaux; D'Quincy Marquis 3/25/2021  USDOJ Financial Aid fraud

Alicia Quarterman; Katrina Lawson; India 3/24/2021 UsboJ
Middleton; James McFarland; Tranesha

Quarterman; Darryl Washington; Adarin

Jones (2/k/a Adrian Jones); Katie

Quarterman; Nikia Wakefield; Victor

Montgomery
Christopher D. Casamento 3/23/2021  USDO) Consumer fraud
Jeremie Saintvil 3/23/2021  USDO) PPP fraud
Tracy Kirkland 3/232021  USDOJ EIDL fraud

PPP fraud; EIDL fraud

Kenbrell Armod charged with fraud and aggravated identity -
theft for allegedl using the tole denties of numerous Forda residents t obtan
fraudulent unemployment insurance benefits from the State of California. California
distributed these unemployment benefit funds in the form of debit cards, which were
subsequently mailed to addresses associated with Thompkins in Miami and Aventura,

Florida.

Leonel Rivero was charged for his alleged participation in a scheme to obtain fraudulent -
PPPlons based o fsfed incase s expense Information an ta documentaton.
According to the all

and submitted approximately 118 fraudulent PPP loan applications on behalf of himself and
his accomplices.

Justin Etwaru was charged with conspiracy to commit an offense against the United States -
relating to the alleged fraudulent receipt of a Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) loan of
approximately $57,000,

Toannis Kralievits was charged with conspiracy to commit an offense against the United -
States relating to the lleged fraudulent receipt of a Paycheck Protection Program (PPP)
Toan of approximately $767,000.

Jericca Rosado was charged with with wire fraud, bank fraud, and conspiracy and attempt -
to commit wire fraud and bank fraud for allegedly participating in a conspiracy to submit at
least $34 million worth of fraudulent Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) loan applications.
Specifically, Rosado allegedly received a $50,000 kickback payment in connection with a
fraudulent PPP loan of $454,272, of which she passed $25,000 to a co-conspirator, as well

as 3 second kickback payment in connection with a fraudulent PPP loan obtained by
Devonte Thames, charged by pired with
T d others to

loan proceeds, and directed kickback payments from fraudulently obtained PPP loan
proceeds to other co-conspirators and their businesses.
Devonte Thames was charged with wire fraud, bank fraud, and conspiracy and attempt to -
commit wire fraud and bank fraud for allegedly participating in a conspiracy to submit at
least $34 million worth of fraudulent PP loan applications. Specifically, the criminal
complaint alleges that Thames received a fraudulent Paycheck Protection Program (PPP)
foan of $409,735 for his own company, the Berneta E. Thames Foundation LLC. The criminal
laint al that Ths d tosubmit sddtonal raudule n

lications f by recruiting others tions in
exchange for kickbacks.
Kimberly C wire fraud for allegedly g t east 13 fraudulent -
Economic Injury Disaster Loans (EIDL) ions to the U.S. Small B
on behalfof herself and other mdmﬂuals The complaint further alleges that Cleare
provided lar data even though
the applcatons were being suhmnued on behalf of different business entities.

Hayden Philip Breaux and D'Quincy Marquis Jones were charged with conspiracy to commit -
identity theft and identity thef for llegedly using personall identiiabe information
(“PIr), specifically, Identification Numbers

other students to access the Louisiana College Online Student Portal (“the Portal”) to apply
for CARES Act emergency financial aid grants i the names of individuals and direct the
grants to specific bank accounts controlled by members of the conspiracy. In total,
members of thi used, without lawful authority, the Louisiana C

Identification Numbers and passwords of nine individuals to access the Portal, to apply for,
and direct payment of CARES Act emergency financial aid from the Higher Education
Emergency Relief Fund.

Alicia Quarterman, Katrina Lawson, India Middleton, James McFarland, Tranesha
Quarterman, Darryl Washington, Adarin Jones, Katie Quarterman, Nikia Wakefield and
Victor Montgg counts wire fraud,
wire fraud,bank faud, mail roud, and money laundering for heir slleged particpation na
scheme to submit i behalf of non-existent b rt
of the Economic Injury Disaster Loan (Emu program and the Paycheck Protection Program
(PPP) ¥ ubmitted for the business loans,
but for the PPP, they also al\eged\y reated fake ntenal Revenue Senice documentaton t6
support the applications,

Christopher D. Casamento was charged with Iterstate Transportation of Stolen Property 18 USC§ 2314

for allegedly stealing from the University of Pittsburgh 13,615 pieces of PPE, namely, Aura
NS5 respirator masks,surgica ace masks and particulat respirator masks, which e sold
on v pag " and shipped to by

Pennsylvania.

Jeremie Saintvil was charged with bank fraud, making false statements to a federally 18 USC §6 1001, 1014, 10284,
insured institution, aggravated identity theft, and making false statements for allegedly  1344,2

fraudulently obtaining or attempting to obtain over $1,500,000 in Paycheck Protection
Program (PPP) loans. Saintvil also allegedly stole the identites of eight elderly individuals —
seven of whom were residents of senior living facilities and one who was refated to him - as
a part of his complex scheme to obtain more than $1.5 million in forgivable loans.

v towire g g2 v g -
Toan for $66, the Small Busi (58A) E Disaster
Loan (EIDL) Program, falsely claiming to own a business in Swainsboro with three
employees. Kirkland then allegedly used the funds to purchase a 2019 Dodge Charger R/T,
made large cash withdrawals from her bank account, and made other non-business-related
purchases.
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Gelpys Joel Peralta-Gutierrez 3/23/2021  UsDO) PPP fraud Gelpys Joel ged with wire gtoa 18 USC §6 1349, 3551 New York EDNY. Criminal Yes No No 121.cr0014906 - - hittps://wwwjusti https://www.ju -

dul lication for a loan 8 BA's) Paycheck enforcement cegov/usao:  stice.gov/usao-
Protection Program (PPP). Peralta-Gutierrez allegedly arranged for a PP loan appncaunn t© edny/or/queens- edny/press
be submitted on behalf of his company, ) Films D Inc., claiming that he employed 6 man-indicted-17- release/file/137
atotal v p nearly $700,000, when the location that Pevana million-paycheck- 8936/download
Gutierrs submitted as his business address, however,was a New York Cty Housing protection-
Authority apartment at the Queensbridge Houses, and in applications Peralta-Gutierrez ‘rogram-fraud
submitted for other business relief, that, in reality, his b had onl
, and total revenues of
Alicia Ayers; Andrea Ayers; Traci Proctor 3/23/2021  USDOJ EIDL fraud Alica Ayer, Ancrea Ayers,and TraciProctor were charged with conspiacy to commit wire 18 USC §5 1001, 10284, 1343, 1349 New York SDNY. Criminal Yes No No 21-M13110 - - hitps://www.justi https://www.ju -
fraud, wire fraud, false statements, and aggravated identity theft in connection with an enforcement cegov/usao-  stice.gov/usao
defraud the Small B (58A), resulting in a loss to the sdny/pr/three-  sdny/press-
SBA of more than $1.6 million. The three allegedly used the identities of approximately 300 defendant release/file/137
other individuals (the "Applicants") to submit approximately 315 online applications to the charged-16:  8956/download
SBA, seeking over $3 million of funds through the SBA's Economic Injury Disaster Loan million-covid-19:
(EIDL) Program. The three also falsely represented to the SBA, among other things, that the fraud-scheme

Applicants were the owners of businesses with ten or more employees. The SBA made
advance payments of approximately $1,690,000 to the Applicants, who often then kicked
back a portion of the advance payments to the three.

Mark Arome Okuo; Florence Mwende  3/22/2021  USDOJ Unemployment fraud  Mark Arome Okuo and Florence Mwende Musau were charged with conspiracy to commit 18 USC § 1349 Massachusetts D, Mass. Criminal Yes No No 121-m-06204-MPK - - - Okuo and -
Musau wire and bank fraud for their alleged participation, inter ali, in a scheme to collect enforcment Musau
pandemic in the names o did not complaint
actually apply for such benefits.
Shaneesha White 3/22/2021  USDO) Unemployment fraud  Shaneesha White was charged with theft of government funds, fraud associated with - New York W.DNY. Criminal Yes No No - - - https://wwwjusti - -
disaster relief, and wire fraud for allegedly illeg: insurance enforcement ce.gov/usao
beneit payments i the name of a feeral prisoner, and ot she then llegedly used the wdny/pr/buffalo-
benefits to pay for luding a trip to Florida, cosmetic ‘woman-arrested
surgery, footwear, and cosmetics. and-charged:

Keith Anton Johnson 3/19/2021  USDO) PPP fraud Keith Anton Johnson was charged with wire fraud for allegedly lraudu\m(ly received - Texas 5.0, Tex. Criminal Yes No No - - -
$123,500 in Payroll Protection funds g enforcement
information purportng o be that of cutent mployees o justfy he bsi fo 2 7P loan.
On these forms, he allegedly attested to an employee's current status when, in fact, the
one-time employee had quit in January 2020, according to the charges. Johnson was also
allegedly ineligible for the funds due to a pending indictment in a separate case.

cares-act
program
Christopher A. Hayes 3/18/2021  USDO) CFAP fraud Chisopher & Hayes wascharged with making  alse cim t te U, Departmentof - Georgia N.D.Ga. Criminal Yes No No - - - https://wwwjusti - -
Agriculture’s (USDA) C (CFAP) after alleg e enforcement ce gov/usao:
Toss of livestock at his commercial larmmg operation, when he allegedly did not own or ndgaor/lthonia.
operate a commercial d did not have any man-charged-
livestock when he made a claim under CFAP. In addition, Hayes allegedly submitted a defrauding-usda-
fraudulent IRS Form 7200, which, when used legitimately, allows an employer to request an lief-
advance payment of employer credits under the Families First Coronavirus Response Act program
(FFCRA).
Tamesha Lashelle Brown; Malik Abdul ~ 3/18/2021  USDOJ Unemployment fraud  Tamesha Lashelle Brown and Malik Abdul McCaully pleaded guilty to conspiring to commit - Georgia N.D.Ga. Criminal Yes No No - - - https://wwwjusti - -
McCaully various offenses, including mail fraud, wire fraud, bank fraud, disaster relief fraud, and enforcement ce gov/usao:
access device fraud for allegedly obtaining personal identifying information of other sdga/or/two-
individuals, without those individuas' knowledge or consent, and then using that felons-admit-guilt
information to scheme-ste:
thousands-covid-
1
unemployment-
insurance funds
John Jhong 3/18/2021  USDOJ PPP fraud John Jhong was charged with bank fraud, false representation of a Social Security number, 18 USC §§ 1344, 195642 USCS  New Jersey DN Criminal Yes No No Mag.No.21-13103 - - hitps://www.usti https://www.ju -
and money laundering for allegedly submitting 10 fraudulent Paycheck Protection Program 408 enforcement cegov/usao-  stice.gov/usao
{9PP)loan aplcations 0several enders on befalfof 10 purported businesses. The nifpr/sussex-  ni/press-
alse and fraudulent i county:man:  release/file/137
Ienders, including documentation purporting to be from the IRS. charged-19:  7291/download
million-paycheck
protection-
‘rogram-fraud:
scheme
German 3/17/2021  USDO) Unemployment fraud  Elvin German was charged with wire fraud and aggravated identity theft in connection with 18 USC §§ 10284, 1349, 2 New York SONY. Criminal Yes No No - - - https://wwwust https://www.iu -
an alleged C German allegedly used the identities enforcement cegov/usao:  stice.gov/usao-
of over 250 unknowing victims to file false claims in order to receive over $1.4 million in sdny/pr/defenda sdny/oress
COVID-19 unemployment benefits. nt-charged-14-  release/file/137

million-covid-19: 6921/download
fraud-scheme

Leonel Rivero 3/17/2021  USDO) PPP fraud Lionel Rivero was charged with wire fraud in connection with an alleged scheme to obtain 18 USC § 1343 Florida 5.0.Fla. Criminal Yes No No 12112016000 - - https://www.justi https://www.ju -
over 100 COVID-19-relief loans under the Paycheck Protection Program (PPP). Riveor enforcement ce.gov/opa/pr/ta stice.gov/opalp
allegedly submitted approximately 118 fraudulent PPP loan applications on behalf of xpreparer-  ress:
himself and his accomplices. Combined, the 118 PPP loan applications allegedly sought charged-covid-19- release/file/137
more than $2.3 million in PP loans, and on each PPP loan application, Rivero allegedly loan-fraud 6856/download

falsfied the applicant’s prior-year income and expenses and submitted fraudulent IRS tax
forms. Rivero and his accomplices allegedy received approximately $975,582 in PPP loans
as aresult of the fraud.

James Read; Crystal Payne 3/17/2021  USDO) PPP fraud James Read and Crystal Payne both pleaded guilty to charges stemming from their attempts 18 USC §6 1001, 1343, 1957 Arkansas W.D. Ark. Criminal Yes No No 321cr-30001-PKH; - - https://wwwjusti - -
to obtaining pandemic relief funds unlawfully. Read pleaded guilty to making a false enforcement 3:21--30002-PKH ce gov/usao:
statement and money laundering after applying for a Payment Protection Program (PPP) ‘wdar/or/mountai
loan using inflated wage and employee data about his business and falsified tax documents, n-home-couple-
which he used to purchase a new vehicle. Read also pleaded guilty to wire fraud for plead-guilty-
attempting to obtain unemployment benefits for himself and others in Louisiana, falsely charges-
representing that he lived and worked in Louisiana. Payne pleaded guilty to making false connection:
statements in her own Payment Protection Program (PPP) loan application. obtaining-covid:
19-relief-funds
Olivia Ware 3/16/2021  USDOJ PPP fraud Olivia Ware was charged with bank fraud and money laundering for her alleged - Georgia N.D.Ga. Criminal Yes No No - - - https://wwwjusti - -
participation in a scheme to use a company she started to steal over $323,000 from the enforcement ce.gov/usao
Paycheck Protection Program (PPP). Ware allegedly submitted a false application to a bank ndga/or/former-
for a PPP loan for the company that included fictitious tax records purporting to show the mayoral-
company had 54 employees that were paid hundreds of thousands of dolas n salary. As candidate-
result of this y false information, loaned over $323,000 in PPP. charged-stealing:
funds to Ware's company, which Ware then allegedy spent for her own benefit, including paycheck-
to buy an in-ground swimming pool, furniture, and other home improvement items, and to protection
pay down the principal on her mortgage. program
Richard Ayvazyan; Marietta Terabelian; ~ 3/12/2021  USDOJ PP fraud; EIDL fraud  Richard Ayvazyan, Marietta Terabelian, Artur Ayvazyan, and Tamara Dadyan were charged 18 USC 6§ 10284, 1343,1344,  California co.cal. Criminal Yes No No CR20579(AVSVW - - https://wwwust https://www.ju -
Artur Ayvazyan; Tamara Dadyan; Manuk with wire fraud, bank fraud, conspiracy to commit money laundering, and aggravated 1349, 1956, 3147 enforcement ce.gov/opa/pr/fo_stice.gov/opalp
Grigoryan; Arman Hayrapetyan; Edvard identity theft, and Manuk Grigoryan, Arman Hayrapetyan, Edvard Paronyan, and Vahe uradditional:  ress
Paronyan; Vahe Dadyan Dadyan were charged with conspiracy to commit wire fraud and bank fraud and conspiracy memberslos:  release/file/137
to commit money laundering, and Grigoryan, Hayrapetyan, and Paronyan were additionally. angeles-based-  5701/download
charged with wire fraud and bank fraud, Grigoryan and Hayrapetyan were charged with fraud-ring:
aggravated identity theft, and Vahe Dadyan was charged with wire fraud, bank fraud, and indicted
money laundering, for their alleged participation in a scheme to submit over 150 fraudulent exploiting-covid-
Toan applications seeking over $21.9 million in COVID-19 relief funds guaranteed by the relief

Small B (58A). The defend conspired together, and with
others, as part of a disaster-relief loan fraud ring based in and around Los Angeles,
California, and used the fraudulently obtained funds as down payments on luxury homes
and to buy gold coins, diamonds, jewelry, luxury watches, fine imported furnishings,

igner d clothing,




Jared John Fiege 3/11/2021  USDO) EIDL fraud; Jared o iege wascharged with raud and agaravated dentity theft ner s or 18 USC §§ 10284, 1341, 1343, 1344 Minnesota 0. Minn, Criminal Yes No No 0:21-cr-00055-MID-IB - -
g and y ovID-19 g enforcement
Unemployment nsurance (U1 and th Economic jury Disaster Loan (€1DL) Program. A
part of the scheme, FIEGE submitted fraudulent applications for U benefits and EIDL
assistance by using stolen names, birth dates, and social security numbers of at least 25
individuals. In applying for EIDL assistance and advances, FIEGE also invented fictional

business entities, which he linked to the identities of real persons without their knowledge illegal-possession:
or consent. firearms
Michael Kornaker 3/10/2021  USDOJ EIDL fraud Michael Kornaker was charged with wire fraud and aggravated identity theft for allegedly 18 USC §5 10284, 1343 New York W.DNY. Criminal Yes No No 1:21--00037-RIA-HKS - - https://www.usti Kornaker -

fraudulently applying for an Economic Injury Disaster Loan (EIDL) through the U.S. Small enforcement
Business Administration (S8A) using the name and personal information of another person
and without that person's permission.

ment

usaregenermedicals.com 3/9/2021 UsDOJ Consumer fraud The L for the District of i - Maryland 0.Md. Criminal No Yes No - - -
hich d to sell REGEN-COV2, an enforcement
for thetreatment of COVID-1 irus. However, the websie was llgedlyfraudlent and
instead appeared to have been used to collect the personal information of individuals
visiting the site, in order to use the information for nefarious purposes, including fraud,
phishing attacks, and/or deployment of malware.

Airrika N. Anthony; Nicole L. Groves;  3/5/2021 UsDOJ Unemployment fraud  Airrika N. Anthony, Nicole L. Groves, and Kevin €. Pearson were charged, inter alia, with 18 USC § 1349 Ohio 5.0.0hio Criminal Yes No No 2201-00203-50M - - https://wwwusti Anthony etal -
Kevin E. Pearson mail piracy gedly  filing enforcement superseding

Unemployment Assistance. Mave allegedly received $7,400 from the state of Ohio and ment

$10,000 from Wichigan.Inisappicaions,he aleedlyclaimed he ws unemployed due to

d in one application falsely he lived in Michigan.
received $13,900 unable to reach her place
of employmant due to  COVID-19 quaranine. Groves allgedlycsmed t be unemployed
because she s the primary caretaker of a child who was unable to attend school because of thousands-dollars

the coronavirus, but Groves was actually employed and earned income at the time she.
received $11,800 in assistance funds. Maye, Anthony and Groves also allegedly used the
personal information of other individuals to apply for additional pandemic assistance funds.
Maye received all or a portion of the others’ benefits.

Nosayamen lyalekhue; Esogie Osawaru  3/5/2021  USDOJ Nosayamen lyalekhue and Esogie Os 18USC 56 1349, 1957 Massachusetts D, Mass. Criminal Yes No No 1:20-10208-RWZ; - Iyalekhue received 63 https://www.usti Iyalekhue and  Iyalekhue
and wire raud and unlawful monetay ransactions for allgedly defrauding icims using enforcement 1:20-cr-10209-0PW months inprisonand  ce.gov/usao-  Osawaru and Osawaru
insurance in the name of others three years of ma/pr/nigerian- informations  plea
during the COVID-19 pandemnic. Both later pleaded guilty to both counts. supervised release  national agreements
sentenced-more-
five-vears:
defrauding:
victims-using:
online-scams
Shane Spierdowis 3/5/2021 UsDOJ PPP fraud; EIDLfraud  Shane Spierdowis was charged with wire fraud for allegedling obtaining an Small Business 18 USC § 1343 Massachusetts D, Mass. Criminal Yes No No 121mi-01074-0lC - - https://wwwusti Spierdowis -
Administration (SBA) Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) loan of $101,517 by providing a enforcement cegov/usao-  complaint
fraudulent corporate bank statement reflecting a balance exceeding $220,000; in fact, this mafor/hul-man.
statement was dated before the pertinent bark account was ever opened. Sperdowis also raud:
y obtained an SBA loan (EIDL) of $89,900 in connection charge-arising
with pany. In both loans, fraudulent-cares-
from ity number. Spierdows also a
submited fraudolent federa o forms or both o thse companies. business-loans
Imran Selcuk 3/5/2021  USDOJ Price gouging Imran Selcuk pleaded guilty to hoarding and price gouging in violation of the Defense 50 USC §5 4512, 4513 New York NDN.Y. Criminal Yes No No 121¢-00060-CFH - - hitps://wwwusti Selcuk Selcuk plea
Production Act of 1950 (DPA) after allegedly purchasing approximately 100,000 KN95 enforcement cegov/usao: information  agreement
facemasks and 25,000 surgical-style facemasks for $1 per mask and 50 cents per mask, ndny/pr/troy-
respectively. Selcuk then allegedly offered these masks for sale at his Troy pizza restaurant businessman
and through a website at markups of as high as 500%. Selcuk also adrmitted that his website pleads-guilty-
falsely represented that the KN95 masks he offered for sale were certified by the U.S. Food hoarding-and-
& Drug Administration (FDA). In fact, the FDA does not “certify” facemasks. price-gouging:
facemasks
Jason Vertz; Alana Powers 3/3/201  USDO) Unemployment fraud  Jason Vertz and Alana Powers were charged with conspiracy to commit mail fraud and 18 USC §§ 10284, 1349 California ED. Cal. Criminal Yes No No 1:21¢-00054-DAD- - - hitps://www.usti https://www.ju -
aggravated identity theft for g fraudulent insurance enforcement BAM cegov/usao-  stice.gov/usao
Clms in Powers’and other Central Calfornia Womerfs Facilty inmates’ names o the edcafor/covid-19: edca/press-
California Employment Development Department. unemployment-  release/file/137
benefitfraud-  3316/download

scheme-charged

Lakisha Swope; Treisha Pearson 3/3/2021 UsDOJ PPP fraud Lakisha Swope and Treisha Pearson were charged with conspiracy, wire fraud, bank fraud, ~ 18 USC §6 371, 1343, 1344, 1956, 2 Georgia N.D.Ga. Criminal Yes No No 1216100072 TWT- - - hitps://wwwusti Swopeand -
and money laundering after allegedly participating in a scheme to steal over $3.5 million enforcement RGV cegov/usao:  Pearson
from the Paycheck Protection Program (PPP). The two, together with others, allegedly ndgafor/defenda indictment
submitted false PPP applications for a number of entities claiming over $5 million in loans. nts-charged-
These PP apvhcaunns anegemv contained materially false information such as false stealingmillions
otal number of emplg d average dollars-paycheck-
monthly payrll.As esutof these s statements, enders sued aver 3. milion protection
PPP loans to these various entities. Swope and Pearson, along with other members of the program-ppp

conspiracy, then allegedly used the fraudulently obtained funds for unauthorized
expenditures including luxury clothing, restaurants, personal rent, hotels, and vacation

rentals,
LaDonna Wiggins 32201 USDO) PPP fraud LaDonna Wiggins was charged with bank fraud, making a false statement to a bankand - Texas 5.D. Tex. Criminal Yes No No - - - https://wwwjusti - -
money laundering for allegedly submitting two Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) loan enforcement ce.gov/usao
applications, whose proceeds she allegedly used to make personal purchases such as for sdtw/pr/local-
two homes, multiple vehicles and luxury goods, rather than for any legitimate business ‘woman:charged.
purposes. fraudulently-
receiving-millions
under-cares-act
Rafael Maturino 3/2/201  USDO) PPP fraud Rafael Maturino pleaded guilty to bank fraud after executing a scheme to defraud First - Oklahoma N.D. OKla. Criminal Yes No No - - - https://wwwjusti - -
Bank of Owasso when applying for a Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) loan under false enforcement ce.gov/usao
pretenses on April 28, 2020, Maturino allegedy falsely represented in a PPP “Borrower ndok/pr/broken-
Applicaton Form” submited tofirstBark of Owassothat Maturino En(erpnses hadan arrow-man-
average v p 539,152.92; had 5 empl February pleads-guity-
15,2020 fraudulently
remdesivirmx.com 3/1/2021  USDO) Consumer fraud The US Attorney's Officefor the Distictof Maryland seized “remdesivirmx.com,” which - Maryland .Md. Criminal No Yes No - - - -
purported to sell Remdesivir, an antiviral i d for enforcement

the COVID-19 virus, in Mexico. However, the website was allegedy fraudulent and instead
appeared to have been used to collect the personal information of individuals visiting the
site, in order to use the information for nefarious purposes, including fraud, phishing
attacks, and/or deployment of malware.




‘Thomas Smith 2/23/2021  UsDO) PPP fraud fraud for his alleged role in e - Wisconsin E.D. Wis. Criminal Yes No No - - - hitps://www justi - -

over $1 millon n Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) loans guaranteed by b smal enforcement ce gov/usao:
B rt of his guilty plea, Smith that edwi/pr/pewauk
sought over $1.2 million in PP loans through applications to an insured financial institution ee-man-pleads-
on behalf of eight different companies. According to his plea agreement, Smith caused guilty-directing.
fraudulent be submitted that false and misleading covidrelief-fraud-
statements about the companies’ respective payroll expenses, scheme
Jasmine Johnnae Clifton 2/22/2021  USDO) EIDL fraud Jasmine Johnnae Clfton was charged wire fraud in relation to a disaster benefit, and fraud - North Carolina ~ W.D.N.C. Criminal Yes No No 3:21-¢r-00046 - - https://wwwjusti - -
major disaster gency benefits, gedly engaging in a enforcement ce gov/usao:
scheme to defraud the Small Business Administration (SBA) by obtaining an Economic Injury ‘wang/pr/charlott
Disaster Loan (EIDL) based on . Asa result of an
application, which included false information about revenues for a dissolved business and a
fraudh ciif 4 $149,900 in were

intended to be provided to an existing business harmed by the COVID-19 pandemic

Rashawn Prioleau /222021 USDO) Unemployment fraud;  Rashawn Prioleau was indicted for financial institution fraud and aggravated identity theft - North Carolina ~ W.D.N.C. Criminal Yes No No 3:21-¢1-00049 - - -
EIDL fraud charges, for allegedly stealing more than $60, ovID-19 enforcement
benefit programs. Prioleau allegedly engaged in a scheme to defraud the U.S. Department wdnc/pr/federal-
of Labor (DOL), the Small Business Administration (58A) and other North and South Carolina indictment
state ag for COVID-19 insuran charges-charlotte.
(U1 benefsusing stlen nformatio of denty thef vietm, and s alegedly man-defrauding:
y appl Economic Injury (EIDL) based on false covid
information. government
benefits
Mold Remediation, LLC (d/b/a 2/22/2021  Washington AG  Consumer fraud PurEnvironment pleaded guilty to violating the Washington Pesticide Application Act by RCW 17.21.150 Washington ~ Kings County  Civl No Yes No 521PAS022 - $15,000 fine; must file  https://www.atg. htps://agportal https://agoor
PurEnvironment) allegedly applying a worthless or improper pesticide that the company falsely claimed District Court  enforcement monthly compliance  wa.go/news/ne s3bucket.s3.am tal-
provided "90+ day protection” against COVID-19. reports with ws-releases/ag: azonaws.com/C s3buckets3.a
Washington ferguson- omplaint%20an mazonaws.co
Health %2 m/PurEnviro
pleads-guilty:  Causepdf  nment%20iu
environmental dgment%20a
criminal-charges- nd%20sente
covid nce.pdf.
Christian Johnson 2/19/2021  USDO) PPP fraud Christian Johnson was charged with wire fraud, bank fraud, and false statements to a 18USC §6 1014, 1343, 1344 New York W.DNY. Criminal Yes No No 121mp01054-UM - - hitps://www.justi https://www.ju -
finanial institutionfor allegedlysubmitting multlefraudule paycheck Protection enforcement ce.gov/opa/pr/m_stice.gov/opa/p
half of a company called Million Man LLC (Million an-charged-covid- ress-
Man) to at least three financial institutions. These applications allegedly contained telief-fraud release/file/136
numerous false and misleading statements about Million Man's business and operations, 9081/download
incudingthe number of mployees and sverage menthly payrol. I suppert of the
fraudulent submitted
payroll records,
Bonifacio Jastilana Marinas 2/18/2021  USDO) Unemployment fraud  Bonifacio Jastilana Marinas pleaded guilty to mail fraud for allegedly filing 85 18USC 55 1341, 2 California co.cal. Criminal Yes No No 220r-00587-FMO - - https://wwwjusti Marinas -
with the California Employment Department enforcement cegov/usao:  information
(E0D) the name loyed real cdca/pr/san-
in Los Angeles County whose jobs had been adversely impacted by the COVID-19 gabriel-valley
pandemic. Marinas often listed his own real estate business - Vintage Realty & Finance Inc., man-pleads-guilty
located in West Covina — as the purported workplace of the named claimants. mail-fraud-charge
fraudulently-
obtaining-over
Farouk Appiedu; Fred Asante; Celvin  2/17/2021  USDOJ EIDL fraud Farouk Appiad,Fred Asante, Celvin Frasman, Lord Anin, Sadick Edusei Kiss and Fasa Al - New York SONY. Criminal Yes No No - - - https://wwwjusti - -
Freeman; Lord Aning; Sadick Edusei Kissi; v of a Ghanian-b Enterprise) that enforcement ce gov/usao:
Faisal Al (a/k/a Clarence Graveley) of frauds includi submitting fraudulent loan sdny/pr/six
Spplictions through aloan program of the SmallBusinss Administrotion 664) designed to defendants-
provide relief to small businesses during the COVID-19 pandemic, namely the Economic arrested-multiple-
v Loan (EIDL) Program. fraudulent EIDL applications states-laundering:
in the names of actual companies o the S84 an when an EIDLloan was approved, the proceedsfraud
funds posited in bank by members of th prise, schemes-
including certain of the defendants. Appiedu, Asante, Freeman, and Aning were charged targeting

with conspiracy to commit wire fraud, wire fraud, conspiracy to commit money laundering,
conspiracy to receive stolen money, and receipt of stolen money; Kissi was charged with
conspiracy to commit wire fraud, conspiracy to commit maney laundering, conspiracy to
tolen money, stolen and Al was charged to
mmit ', making t0.a bank, conspiracy.
money, and aggravated identity theft.

Save Philly Darby LLC 2/16/2021  Pennsylvania AG  Price gouging Save Philly Darby LLC Consumer  73PS§§201-1etseq; 2321 etseq Pennsylvania  Philadelphia  Assurance of  No Yes No 210201502 - - - - -
Protection Law and Price Gouging Act er alegedly clingcasesof beer Park and cy Pure County Court of  voluntary
water d tate of disaster for prices Common Pleas  compliance

Donald Franklin Trosin 2/16/2021  USDO) PPP fraud; EIDL fraud  Donald Franklin Trosin pleaded guilty against the 18USC 56 1031, 1956 lowa N.D.lowa Criminal Yes No No 5:20-¢r-04066 - - https://www.usti Trosin -
and one count of maney undering conspiracyfor alegedly particpatingn  scheme to enforcement cegov/usao:  information

defraud the United States out of Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) and Economic Injury.
Disaster Loans (EIDL) funds, and conspired to launder funds from over $1.2 million in
illegally obtained loan funds.

2/12/2021  USDO) PPP fraud inda Deviin was charged with false statements on an application and mail fraud for, - california N.D. Cal Criminal Yes No No 321mi70212-MAG - - -
inter alia, allegedly submitting an application for a Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) loan enforcement
inthe amount of $32,700 onbehslf of an entitysh crated,the Comman Nucleus of
Cancer, LLC (CNC). In CNC's appli Devlin made mul
provided false IRS documents to support the statements.
fraudulently-
obtaining
pandemic-relief-
funds-and
Arrayit Corporation; Rene Schena 211/201  seC Securities fraud Arrayit Corporation was charged with violating the antifraud provisions of Section 10(b) of 15 USC §§ 78, 78m; 17 CFR§§ California N.D. Cal. ciil Yes Yes Yes 5:21-0v-01053 - - hitps://www.sec. https://www.se -
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and Rule 10b-5 thereunder for allegedly making false  240.10b-5, 240.13a-1, 240.13-13 enforcement gov/itigation/litr¢.gov/iitigation/
and misleading statements about the development of a COVID-19 test, and with violating. eleases/2021/r2 complaints/202
reporting provisions of Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act and Rules 13a-1 and 13a-13 5029.htm 1/comp25029.0
gedly failing to file req reports. In fact, as alleged, at the df
time, Arrayit had terials needed to make a test.
founder and CEO Rene Schena ged with allegedly
investors about the financial reports, and for her role as a control person of the company.
Amina Abbas 2/11/2021  USDO) Embezzlement Amina Abbas was charged with embezzlement of government property for allegedly - Michigan ED. Mich. Criminal Yes No No 2216120103 - - https://wwwusti Abbas -
vernment funds that toaid medical enforcement
providersn the restmentof patientssuferingfrom COVID-19 and used therfor hr own
P a business that received
/656,95 designated or the medical covip-19 misappropriating:
patients, even though it was p during bbas then alleged monies-designed-

misappropriated the funds by issuing checks to her family members for personal use.

covid-medical
provider-relief




Olakitan Oluwalade; Odunayo Baba
Oluwalade; Kelly Lamont Williams

Tracy Ann Stankiewicz

Christoph Geisler; Pooja Gupta

Sean M. Andre

Don V. Cisternino

Any and all funds up to the amount of
$212,742.63

Christina Burden

Larry Jordan; Sutukh El (a/k/a Curtis
Jordan a/k/a Hugo Hurt)

Robert S. Stewart, Jr.

Amber L. Bolen

Paul Penn

Patricia Ashton Derges

Rodericque Thompson; Micah K.
Baisden; Travis C. Crosby; Keith A.

Maloney; Tabronx W. Smith; Thomas D.

Wilson

Antonio D. Hosey; Timothy Williams;
Stanley Dorceus; Kenneth L Wright;
Mark A. Stewart

2/11/2021

2/11/2021

2/11/2021

2/10/2021

2/8/2021

2/8/2021

2/5/2021

2/4/2021

2/3/201

2/3/2021

2/2/201

2/1/2021

1/28/2021

1/28/2021

UsDO)

UsDo)

Wyoming AG

UsDo)

UsDo)

UsDo)

UsDo)

UsDO)

UsDoJ

UsDo)

UsDO)

UsDo)

UsDo)

UsDo)

Consumer fraud

Unemployment fraud

Olakitan Oluwalade, Odunayo Baba Oluwalade, and Kelly Lamont Williams were charged -
a

purported C( ines. The i a told
visitors they may be able to buy a COVID-19 vaccine ahead of time.

‘Tracy Ann Stankiewicz pleaded guilty to one count of fraud in connection with emergency -
benefits for allegedly filing an unemployment assistance application in the name of an
inmate at State Correctional Institution-Greene, where she represented that she was the
inmate, and that direct result of the pand d that
the inmate could accept a job if one were offered.

PP fraud

PP fraud

EIDL fraud

PPP fraud

PPP fraud

Consumer fraud; PPP
fraud; EIDL fraud

EIDL fraud

Consumer fraud

Consumer fraud

PPP fraud

PPP fraud

Christopl and Pooja Gupta
Protection Act for allegedly using University of Wyoming resources to sell N95 respirators at
substantial markups approaching 1,000% on eBay in the early days of the pandemic when
personal protective equipment was in especially short supply.

Sean M. Andre was charged with conspiracy to commit bank fraud, conspiracy to commit 18 USC §§ 1343, 1344, 1349, 1957

wire fraud, and engaging in transfers of wire fraud and bank fraud proceeds of a value
greater than $10,000 for allegedly fraudulently obtaining at least $4,184,781 in Paycheck
Protection Program (PPP) loans. The applications for the loans allegedly fraudulently
claimed that the companies for the loans each employed dozens of people and paying out
millions of dollars i salaries per year, when in fact, none of these companies has ever
reported employees to the New York State Department of Labor, nor reported income to
the IRS.
Don V. Cisternino was charged with wire fraud, aggravated identity theft, and illegal

¥ re than $7.2 million in
emergency funds through a Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) loan, which falsely claimed
that Cisternino’s New York business, MagnifiCo, had 441 employees and monthly payroll
expenses in 2019 of more than $2.8 million.

monetar legedly

‘The Department of Justice brought a civil forfeiture action against $212,742.63 in two bank 18 USC §6 641, 1341
accounts that were proceeds allegedly traceable to a violation of theft of government funds
and of wire fraud. The monies were provided as part of the Economic Injury Disaster Loan
(EIDL) program, b applications for whose
alleged business addreses were storage units and whose registered agents were receiving
unemployment benefits.
Christina Burden was charged with bank fraud for allegedly applying for and later receiving 18 USC§ 1344
$684,375 in a forgivable loan from the government's Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) for
her shell entity “Blessing Box Co LLC.” Burden also allegedly submitted nine other
fraudulent appli for PP loans bet i1and June of 2020, one of which
resulted in her receiving an additional $307,916 in PPP funds. I total, Burden attempted to
obtain over $4.5 million in PP forgivable loans for four different shell entities. Burden also
gedly fraudulent i Program (EIDL)
application for one of the same shell entities, for which she received $150,900 in funds,

Larry Jordan and Sutukh €l were charged with wire and bank fraud conspiracy, bank fraud, 18 USC §§ 1344, 1349, 1957
and engaging in monetary prop g
participation in a scheme to file fraudulent loan applications seeking nearly $7,000,000 in
forgivable Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) loans guaranteed by the Small Business
ion (58A). Jordan and El allegedly to submit at least eight fraudulent
loan applications in an attempt to obtain nearly $7,000,000 for their company, 5 Stems Inc.,
involving numerous false and misleading statements about the companies’ respective
business operations and payroll expenses.

Robert 5. Stewart was charged with making false statements, wire fraud, and theft of
government funds for allegedly making false statements to the Federal Emergency

) ifairs (VA) in order to
obtain to provide Ct P P (PPE),
Stewart also allegedly fraudulently obtained loans under the federal Paycheck Protection
Program (PPP) and the Economic Injury Disaster Loan (EIDL) Program, among other charged
conduct.
Amber L. Bolen was charged with wire fraud and fraud in connection with major disaster or 18 USC §§ 1040, 1343
emergency benefits for allegedly submitting an application for an Economic Injury Disaster
Loan for a business, known as “amber bolen,” which did not exist. The SBA wired
approximately $41,000 in loan proceeds into Bolen's bank account.

18 USC 85 641, 1001, 1343

Paul Penn was sentenced to five months and 29 days of home confinement after pleading -
guilty to conspiracy to commit wire fraud for attempting to sell 50 million non-existent
facemasks to a foreign government.

Patricia Ashton Derges was charged with wire fraud, making false statements, and
distributing by means of the Internet without a valid prescription for allegedly participating 841
ina false claims about a d stem cell treatment
marketed through her clinics in southern Missouri, and then illegally providing prescription
drugs to clients of those clinics,

'8 the Wyoming Consumer  Wyo, Stat. Ann. §6 40-12-101-114.

18 USC §5 10284, 1343, 1957

18 USC §6 1001, 1343; 21 USC §

Maryland

Pennsylvania

Wyoming

New York

Florida

Louisiana

California

New York

Virginia

Hinois

Georgia

Missouri

Rodericque Thompson, Micah Baisden, Travis Crosby, Keith Maloney, Tabronx Smith, and 18 USC §6 1014, 1344, 1349, 1956, Georgia

Thomas Wilson were charged with bank fraud, making false statements, money laundering, 2
and conspiracy to commit bank fraud for allegedly participating in a scheme to submit $1.5
million in fraudulent Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) loans on behalf of five businesses
based in Georgia and South Carolina.

Timothy Williams, Stanley Dorceus, Kenneth L. Wright, and Mark A. Stewart pleaded guilty -
to conspiracy it wire fraud and making 3 D. Hosey

conspiracy. d and laundering, for allegedly
participating in a scheme to submit $1.5 million in fraudulent Paycheck Protection Program
(PPP) loans on behalf of five businesses based in Georgia and South Carolina.

Georgia

W.D. Pa.

Albany County
District Court

N.DLY.

M.D. Fla

MD. La.

N.D. Cal.

WONY.

ED.Va

co.il.

SD.Ga.

N.D. Ga.

N.D. Ga.

Criminal Yes No No
enforcement

Criminal Yes No No
enforcement

civil Yes No No
enforcement

Criminal Yes No No
enforcement

Criminal Yes No No
enforcement

Civil forfeiture  No No -
Criminal Yes No No
enforcement

Criminal Yes No No
enforcement

Criminal Yes No -
enforcement

Criminal Yes No No
enforcement

Criminal Yes No No
enforcement

Criminal Yes No No
enforcement

Criminal Yes No No
enforcement

Criminal Yes No No
enforcement

1:21-mj-346, 1:21-mj- -
347, 1:21-mj-348

2:20-cr00249DSC -

cv-35399 -

1:21-m-00048-CFH -

6:21-cr00016-WWB- -
ocl

3:21-01-00086-BAIRLB -

421mT0194MAG -

1:21-cr-00009-JLS-HKS -

1:21-cr00005RDA -

3:21-cr-30013-RM-TSH -

4:20-¢4-00046 -

21-3016-01-CRS-BCW -

121-cr00011-UNA -

Dorceus-1:20¢r- -
00320; Hosey - 1:20-cr-
00396; Stewart - 1:20-
r-00319; Williams -
1:20-cr-00339; Wright -
1:20-cr-00285

Five months in prison;
29 days of home
confinement
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Didier K. Kindambu

Jorge Abramovs

Mitchacole Johnson; Larry Witherspoon

Jordan Armstrong.

Joseph Ransome

Keith Nicoletta

Kenneth Bryan Ritchey

PPE Supplies, LL; Casey Bradford

US Fed Group, LLC (a/k/a United States
Fed Group, LLC Treasury Department, US
FED Treasury Department, United States
FED Group, US Fed Group, United States
FED Group, United States FED Group
Consortium Syndicate, US FED Group
Business Solutions); Trade-Backed Equity
LLC; Alex St. James Raley Cisco (a/k/a
Alexst. James, William Sir Knight Alexst.

James)
Dennis George Chinn

Johnny T. stine

Lucy Oworae and Richard Oworae

Gauraviit Singh

P&K Brothers, LLC, d/b/a Boxofresell;
Phan Tran

1/28/2021

1/28/2021

1/28/2021

1/28/2021

1/27/2021

1/27/2021

1/27/2021

1/26/2021

1/22/2021

1/21/2021

1/21/2021

1/21/2021

1/20/2021

1/19/2021

UsDO)

UsDo)

UsDO)

UsDO)

UsDO)

UsDO)

UsDO)

Oklahoma AG

UsDo)

UsDO)

UsDOJ

UsDo)

UsDO)

Pennsylvania AG

PPP fraud

PPP fraud

Unemployment fraud

Unemployment fraud

Didier K. Kindambu pleaded guilty to bank fraud for allegedly fraudulently obtaining two 18 USC §6 1001, 1344, 1957 Virginia
foans for over $2.5 million under the Paycheck Protection Program (PPP), which he then

spent o gt luding a Lexus essna aircraft,

persunal laxex, the down-payment on a luxury residence in Leesburg, and his day-to-day

living expenses.

Jorge Abramovs was charged with bank fraud, making false statements, and money 18USC 56 1014, 1344 Nevada
laundering for allegedly obtaining nearly $2 million in Paycheck Protection Program (PPP)
Joans fomseven ifrentenders by, amang other thins, submiting multple oan

the names of ¥ g to have

{1 PPP funds orpersona rather than busines) purposes,including purchasing »Tes,
Bentley, two condominiums, and paying his home mortgage.

Mitchacole Johnson and Larry Witherspoon were charged with mail fraud, wire fraud, and 18 USC §§ 1341, 1343, 1349 Michigan
conspiracyto commit mail and wire fraud for allegedlyfing t least 66 lims or fraudulen

Michigan benefits, causing a r$150,

Jordan Armsrons ws charged with wire faud, raud nconection with seces devices, 18 USC 56 10264, 1029, 1343 Micigan

and aggravated identity theft
insurance benefison bt o nvidusls n Michigan,Cafornis, and pennsywama

fraud  Joseph ity to wire fraud for defrauding the COVID-19 Unemployment 18 USC § 1343 North Carolina
Insurance (U) benefit program in multiple states after fling for Ul benefit based on
, including d false reason for termination.
PPP fraud Keith Nicoletta pleaded guilty to conspiracy to launder stolen COVID relief funds after 18 USC 8§ 1344, 1957 Florida

Price gouging

Consumer fraud

Consumer fraud

Unemployment fraud

Consumer fraud

EIDL fraud

Consumer fraud

Price gouging

participating in a scheme to steal more than $1.9 million in emergency loan funds from the
Paycheck Protection Program (PPP). The fraudulent PPP loan application claimed that
Nicoletta's local business had 69 employees with a purported monthly payroll exceeding
$760,000—or more than $9 million annualy. In fact, the business had no employees and its
address was actually Nicoletta's home.

Kenneth Bryan Ritchey was charged with conspiracy to commit wire fraud and mail raud, 18 USC §§ 371, 1349, 4512 Mississippi
conspiracy to defraud the United States, conspiracy to commit hoarding of designated
scarce materials, and hoarding of designated scarce materials for allegedly participating in a
scheme to defraud health care providers, including the VA, of more than $1.8 million by
acquiring PPE and other designated materials from all possible sources, including home
3 g the same.

PPE Supplies breached its contract with Health after - Oklahoma
failing to deliver four orders of personal protective equipment (PPE) and Casey Bradford
allegedly misrepresented facts to the state that if he were paid up front for half the cost of
. he he shi of pr for delivery to the
state within two weeks.

‘The Department of Justice sought to enjoin US Fed Group, LLC, Trade-Backed Equity LLC, 18 USC § 1343 lowa
and Alex st. James Railey Cisco from further committing wire fraud for allegedly

participating in a scheme to induce a US company to wire $2,432,250 to US Fed Group to

purchase 3M N9S face masks from US Fed Group. But US Fed Group allegedly did not

provide the masks and did not return the money, although it did transfer the money to an

account controlled by Trade-Backed Equity that was owned by St. James.

Dennis George Chinn has pleaded guilty and has been sentenced to three months in federal 18 USC § 641 lowa
prison in connection with unempluvmen( fraud to obtain benefits related to COVID-1

relief funds. Chinn $13,000in benefits. He has

been sentenced tothree months i pison and  two-year term of supervised rele,along

with being ordered to pay $12,231 i restitution.

Johnny Stine has been charged with introducing misbranded drugs into interstate - Washington
commerce. Starting in March 2020, Stine made representations that he had a COVID-19

vaccine available for sale. An undercover investigation revealed that Stine claimed to have

avaccine and injected or offered to inject multiple people with the purported vaccine.

Lucy and Richard Oworae have been arrested and charged in connection with allegedly ~ 18USC§1343,18USC§1001  Massachusetts
fraudulent applications for business loans in violation of the CARES Act. They allegedly

spent the loans that they obtained on personal expenses. According to charging

documents, the Oworaes created fictitious companies in order to applie for EIDL loans

totaling approximately $194,700.

has been charged wit wire fraud ion with his 18USC§1343 New Jersey
dlaims o be apurveyor of PE. Singhand is itims entred no an agreement whercby
would provide 1.5 million medi for
$7.125 million. Singh never purchased or delivered the medical gowns, instead using the
deposit paid by the victims for online gaming and other

P&K Brothers LLC and its managing member Phan Tran have been charged with selling N95 73 P.S. §§ 232.1,201-1 Pennsylvania
masks at unconscionably excessive prices through Amazon.
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$365,600.00 from Investar Bank 1/18/2021  USDO) PPP fraud The i ight a civl forfeiture acti 1 $365,600.00 from 18 USC §6 1343, 1344 Louisiana M. La. Civil forfeiture  No No No 3:21-0v-00042:WD- - - - $365,60000 -

Investar Bank as property traceable to wire fraud and bank fraud. The fraud was allegedly EWD from Investar
committed by Richard Hebert and Elvin Sterling after they auegEdly submitted fraudulent Bank complaint
Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) behalf of

which were then approved and funded for $365,600
Colonial Automotive Group, Inc. 1/15/2021 Fraud that Colonial i has agreed to pay $1 - Massachusetts ~ Suffolk Superior  Assurance of  No Yes - - - $1million payment to ~ Colonial - -
million in penalities for allegedly taking advantge of unemployment benefits during the Court Discontinuance the state general find ~ Automotive to
COVID-19 pandemic. Colonial ged furloughed employees to apply for Pay $1 Million for
benefits through the state Department of Unemployment Assistance and requested that Exploiting State
these same employees continue to work without pay. Unemployment

Colonial Automotive Group, Inc 1/15/2021 A6 fraud that Colonial i has agreed to pay $1 - Massachusetts ~ Suffolk Superior  Assurance of  No Yes - - - $1million payment to  Colonial - -
million in penalities for allegedly - benefits during the Court Discontinuance the state's general fund Automotive to
COVID-19 pandemic. Colonial allegedly encouraged furloughed employees to apply for Pay $1 Million for
benefits through the state Department of Unemployment Assistance and requested that Exploiting State
these same employees continue to work without pay. Unemployment
System During
the Pandemic
Mass.gov

Samuel Yates 1/15/2021  USDOJ PPP fraud Samuel Yates was charged with wire fraud for allegedy filing bank loan applications 18USC 51343 Texas £D.Tex. Criminal Yes No No 521cr-00003-RWS- - - hitps://wwwjusti https://www.ju -
fraudulently seeking more than $5 million dollars in forgivable loans through the Paycheck enforcement eme ce.gov/opa/pr/mstice.gov/opa/p
Protection Program by the Small B (58A) under the an-charged5-  ress:

[ d, Relief, and E ity (CARES) Act. Yat claimed to have million-covid:  release/file/135
over g in fact, no employe for his purported relief-fraud 5586/download
business.

Rodney L. Stevenson Il 1/14/2021  USDO) Consumer fraud Rodney L. Stevenson Il was charged with wire fraud, mail fraud, and money laundering for 18 USC §§ 1341, 1343, 1956, 1957 California N.D. Cal. Criminal Yes No No 321c-00018-CRB - - hitps://wwwusti Stevenson -
allegedly operating an e-commerce site that claimed to have N9S masks for sale during the enforcement cegov/usao-  complaint
current COVID-19 pand d his company allegedly ndca/pr/michigan
almost none of the masks and generally refused to refund customers.

Ciifton Pape; Sally Jung /132021 USDO) EIDL fraud Clifton Pape and Sally Jung were charged with major fraud against the United States for 18 USC§ 1031 Texas £D.Tex. Criminal Yes No No 5:21-MJ-00007-CMC - - https://wwwusti Pape, Jung -
allegedly fling falsified Emnnrm: In|ury Disaster Loan (EIDL) applications with the Small enforcement cegov/usao-  complaint
B mple, in June and July 2020, Pape and Jung alleged

filed 222 EIDL applications, all ol ich purported to be for businesses with exactly ten
employees - the minimum number of employees required to obtain the maximurm EIDL
advance of $10,000. From those 222 applications, the SBA allegedly issued 130 EIDL
advances in the amount of $10,000—$1.3 millon total.

Roosevelt Fernandez 1/12/2021  USDO) Identity theft Roosevelt fraud identity theft for, inter 18 USC §§ 10284, 1343 Massachusetts D, Mass. Criminal Yes No No 1:20-m-04290-DHH - - hitps://www.usti Fernandex. -
alia, 's i Payment provided by the enforcement cegov/usao-  complaint
Coronavirus A, Rele, and Economic Securty Act ma/pr/salem-

returns
SlideBelts Inc.; Brigham Taylor 1/12/2021  USDO) PPP fraud SideBelts Inc. and its president and CEO Brigham Taylor entered into a settlement with the 12 USC§ 1833a; 31 california ND. Cal. civil Yes Yes No - - ) b i - hitps://www
government to resol fraud. As part of . USC§§3729-3733 enforcement ‘which includes $17,500 ce gov/usao- ustice.gov/u
Taylor that they made federally insured banks of restitution from  edca/or/eastern sa0:
that SlideBelts was not in bankruptcy in order to influence those banks to approve, and the Taylor district-california- edca/press-
Small Business Administration (SBA) to guarantee, a Paycheck Protection Program loan to obtains-nations release/file/1
SlideBelts. first-civil- 352031/dow
settlement-fraud nload
cares-act
Joule Pharmacy Group, Inc. (d/b/a Joule  1/12/2021  Virginia AG Price gouging The Virginia AG entered into a settlement with Joule Pharmacy Group, Inc. after Joule  VC§§59.1-5251059.1-529.1  Virginia Arlington County  Assurance of  No Yes No - - Pay$2,500incivil  https://www.oag. - hitps://www
Wellness Pharmacy) Virginia Post-Disaster Act by charging Circuit Court  voluntary penalties and state.va.us/index oag.state.va.
$22 per bottle for 16-0z bottles of mbbmg alcohol,a ricefeve that greatly exceeded the compliance attorneys' fees; ‘ho?option=com usffiles/2021
price level at which the same were offered for sale in disgorge allprofits content&uiey [AVC-loule-
{rade area during the 10-day priod befor the sate of emergency was decared made from the ticleid=1920&c Pharmacy-
offending sales a Filed.pdf
Giraldo Caraballo 1/8/2021 UsDOJ PPP fraud Giraldo Caraballo was :harged with bank fraud, mikmg false statements, and money 18 USC 88 1014, 1344, 1957 Florida 5.0.Fla. Criminal Yes No No 121mi-0201498 - - https://www.usti Local copyof -
,000in a Paycheck enforcement Caraballo
Protection rogram (P9) loa fom a bank on bealf o Profesiona il i,  compary complaint
that he controlled. Caraballo allegedly falsely claimed on the PPP loan application that the
company had 28 employees and an average monthly payroll of $168,000. Caraballo also
allegedly applied for and ,000in
{EIDLrleh. n s 0L applictio, Carabaloalegedl asey aimed that his compary programs
had four employees and a 12-month gross revenue of $180,000, when in fact, Caraballo's
company had zero employees and no payroll expenses.
Andrew Aaron Lioyd; Russell A. Schort  1/7/2021 UsDOJ PPP fraud Andrew Aaron Loy and Russel &, Schort were charged with wire faud,bank raud, and 18 USC 6 1343, 1344, 1957 Oregon o.0r. Criminal Yes No No 621-mi-00001 MK - - https://www.usti Local copyof -
money laundering for allegedly enforcement cegov/usao-  Lloyd and
by the Small Business Administration (SBA), including Economic Injury Disaster Loans mms; or/or/two- schort
and the Paycheck Protection Program (PPP). The two allegedly applied for and received at oregon-men-face- complaint
least three PP loan payments using three separate entities, totaling more than $2.2 million federal-charges
and after receiving the funds, Lioyd transferred at least $1.8 million to a personal online pocketing:
brokerage account and purchased various secur millions-covid:
relief-fraud
scheme
Carlos Smith 1/7/2021 UsDOJ PPP fraud Carlos Smith was charged with wire fraud, making false statements, and money laundering 18 USC §§ 1014, 1343, 1957 Hlinois NI Criminal Yes No No 20cr922 - - https://wwwusti https://www.iu -
for allegedly engaging in fraud related to the Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) and the enforcement cegov/usao:  stice.gov/usao-
Economic Injury Disaster Loan Program (EIDL). Smith allegedly applied for and obtained ndil/or/suburban- ndil/press-
$270,000 in PPP funds for CLS Financial Services Inc., an Indiana-based company that he chicago- release/file/135
owned. In his loan application, Smith allegedly stated that the company had 61 employees businessman:  1256/download
andan payroll of $108,000, even knew the company had no charged-covid-
actual empl dno Smith telief-fraud-0
in the application that he was a
offens withi the st e year, eve though he knew he had been canviced o uch an
offense. Smith similarly allegedy obtained $151,900 in EIDL loans by stating in the
application that his company had two employees and $1.8 million in gross revenue last
year, even though he knew the company had no such employees or revenue, the
indictment states.
David Unitan (a/k/a Danny Cohen) 12/22/2020  USDO) PPP fraud David Unitan, 2/k/a Danny Cohen, was charged with aggravated identity theft, wire fraud, - Oregon o.0r. Criminal Yes No No 3:20-m}-00293 - - https://wwwjusti Unitan -
and money g for ix Economic Injury Loan (EIDL) enforcement cegov/usao-  complaint
licat another individual' number. Of two orfpr/two-
were funded for a total of $295,000, and the funds were allegedy routed to bank accounts oregon-men-face-
that were then used to purchase personal vehicles for Unitan. federal-charges-
covid-relief-fraud
Jeremy Clawson 12/22/2020  USDO) PPP fraud Jeremy Clawson was charged with theft of government property for allegedy using - Oregon o.0r. Criminal Yes No No 3:20-m}-00294 - - https://wwwjusti Clawson -
proceeds from a Small Business Adminstration (SBA) Economic Ijury Disaster Loans (EIDL) enforcement cegov/usao-  complaint
Toan totaling $145,200 to withdraw $49,905 in the form of a cashier's check to purchase a or/or/two-
2016 Dodge Challenger. The loan was made for the benefit of Halperin Manufacturing oregon-men-face-

Company in San Diego, California, though there is allegedly no record of any such company.




‘Smokehouse Distribution

Bryan Robinson

Leon Miles

Markhwan Berning

Peter Khaim; Arkadiy khaimov

Big Brother Security Programs, Inc.;

Shelley Palmer

Decision Diagnostics Corp.; Keith Berman 12/18/2020

‘Adam Winston James

Keith Berman

mordernatx.com;
regeneronmedicals.com

Rafael Maturino

Tiffany Pacheco (a/k/a Tiffany Tavery);

Arthur Pacheco

Smokehouse Distribution entered into an assurance of voluntary compliance with the  MCL445.901 et seq Michigan
Michigan g priced face masks for sale
on a website called Beamersmoke.

Bryan Robinson was charged with wire fraud and engaging in transactions in unlawful - Nevada
proceeds for allegedly perpetrating a scheme to submit a fraudulent Economic Injury

Disaster Loan (EIDL) application to the SBA and a fraudulent Paycheck Protection Program

(PPP) loan application to a financial gY company. Robinson

fraudulent applications in the name of ATeam LLC, which is a dance company, for: (1) a PP

Toan for approximately $1,502,000; and (2) an EIDL for approximately $150,000. The loan

applications represented that ATeam had 37 employees, significant payroll expenses, and

substantial revenue. But ATea in fact was a dance company and did not pay any wages

Leon Miles ged with wire fraud for ing a tothe 18USC§1343 New York
Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) for a $1,904,593.00 PP loan on behalf of a limited

liability company he owns in Brooklyn, New York, falsely claiming that the company had 50

employees and a total average monthly payroll of $761,838.00.

Markhwan Berning was charged with false representation of a social security number for - New York
allegedly obtaining unemployment insurance benefits, including newly created federal

pandemic-related benefits, by falsely representing to the New York State Department of

Labor a fake social security number s his own.

Peter Khaim and Arkadiy Khaimov were charged with conspiracy to commit health care 18 USC §§ 1028A, 1349, 1956, New York
fraud and wire fraud and conspiracy to commit money laundering, Khaim was charged with 3551, 2
concealment money laundering and aggravated identity theft, and Khaimov was charged
with concealment money laundering for their roles in a $30 million health care fraud and
mon inwhich o gency codes and edits in the
that went tothe C demic in order to submit
fraudulent claims for expensive cancer drugs that were never provided, ordered, or
authorized by medical professionals

Big Brother Security Programs, Inc. and Shelley Palmer were charged with violatingthe 9 V.S.A. § 2451 et seq. Vermont
Vermont Consumer Protection Act for alegedly engaging in price gouging of personal

protective equipment during the COVID-19 crisis by importing surgical masks that cost 10

cents each and re-sold them to Central Vermont Medical Center for $2.50 each

Decision Diagnostics Corp. and its CEO Keith Berman were charged with allegedly making 15 USC§ 78]; 17 CFR § 240.10b5  New York
false and misleading claims in numerous press releases that the company had developed a

working, break-through technology that could accurately detect Covid-19 through a quick

blood test, when Decision Diagnostics allegedly lacked a proven method for detecting the

virus and had no physica testing device and its advisors had warned that the testing kit

they were trying uld not i i ibed.

Adam Winston James was charged with ted identity theft for for 218 USC§ 10284 Oklahoma
Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) loan under false pretenses. James allegedly applied on

behalf of a company he claimed to own and operate, Velocity Innovations LLC. As part of

h of

i I other people
without their knowledge, fraudulently claiming they were employees of Velocity

[ uc. received the bank as a result the scheme.

Jiule Lin pleaded guilty ing and selling an ide after he listed 7 USC§ 136} Massachusetts

for sale on eBay an unregistered pesticide, “Toamit Virus Shut Out,” to buyers across the
United States. Based on Lin's eBay listing, the pesticide took the form of a card-shaped
device to be worn as a lanyard around the user’s neck.

Keith Berman was charged wit ities fraud and making llegedly 15 USC §6 78], 78ff; 18 USC § 1001; District of
engaging in a scheme to defraud investors by falsely claiming his company Decision 17 CFR § 240.10b-5 Columbia
o Inc. had developed a 15-second COVID-19 in a finger prick sample

of blood. In truth, Berman allegedly knew his test was merely an idea and not a validated
method of accurately detecting COVID-19, much less an actual product ready for
manufacture and sale.

The US Attorney’s Office for the District of Maryland seized “mordenatx.com” and - Maryland
“regeneronmedicals.com,” which purported to be the websites of actual biotechnology
companies developing treatments for the COVID-19 virus, but instead appeared to have
been used to allegedly collect the personal information of individuals visiting the sites, in
i u hishing attacks,

order for nef
and/or deployment of malware

Rafael Maturino was charged with bank fraud for allegedly applying for a Paycheck 18USC § 1344 Oklahoma
Protection Program (PPP) loan under false pretenses. Maturino allegedly applied for a PP

Toan on behalf of a company he claimed to own and operate, Maturino Enterprises, Inc.,

and submitted forms that alleg the company' il expend

amount of taxes paid, and the number of people employed. As a result of his alleged

scheme, he received $97, 800 from the bank.

Tiffany Pacheco (a/k/a Tiffany Tavery) and Arthur Pacheco were charged with conspiracy to 18 USC §§ 1343, 1349 Massachusetts

commit wire fraud, and Tiffany Pacheco was charged with wire fraud, for allegedly claiming
Pandemic (PUA) funds for which they eligible. Tiffany

tance claims for herself and Arthur, even
though Arthur was ineligible because he was incarcerated in Texas at the time Tiffany.
submitted his claim.
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Andrea M. Gervais (a/k/a Andrea M. 12/17/2020
Dangerfield)

Celestine Coletta Strong; Jawuan Polk;  12/17/2020
Patrick Earl Lewis; Ty'zhaun Marqui Lewis

lzzat Freitekh; Tarik Freitekh (a/k/a Tareq 12/17/2020

Freitekh)

Nyika Gomez 12/17/2020
Sholanda Thomas; Christina Smith 12/17/2020
Bryon lones 12/16/2020
(Cara Marie Kirk-Connell 12/16/2020
Maurice Mills 12/16/2020
Melvin Stout 12/16/2020
Matthew Jason Welch 12/15/2020
Azhar Sarwar Rana 12/14/2020
Robert Sloan Mateer 12/11/2020
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UsDO)

UsDo)

UsDo)

UsDo)

UsDO)

UsDO)

UsDO)

UsDO)

PPP fraud

PPP fraud

Andrea M. Gervais g mail fraud for allegedly participating in a scheme 18 USC § 1341 california
Pandemic claims

in the names of persons other than Gervais. At least 12 of the 100 claims were allegedly

processed for payment, and over $200,000 in PUA benefits were allegedly paid out to

Gervais’s Roseville address in the form of Bank of America debit cards

Celestine Coletta Strong, Jawuan Polk, Patrick Earl Lewis, and Ty'zhaun Marqui Lewis were 18 USC§ 1343, 1349, 1957 Arizona
charged with conspiracy, wire fraud, and money laundering for allegedly participating in a

scheme to raudulently obtain loansfrom the CARES Act Paycheck Protection Program

(PPP). The four allegedly conspired to submit I

wage information, fake bank statements, and other false information in an attempt to

obtain 15 different loans totaling more than $3.5 milion in loan proceeds.

Izzat Freitekh and Tarik Freitekh were charged with conspiracy to commit wire fraud and 18 USC §§ 1001, 1343, 1344, 1349, North Carolina
bank fraud, and lzzat Freitekh was charged with making false statements, for allegedly

participating in a scheme to obtain, through multiple fraudulent loan applications, more

than $1.7 million in COVID-19 relief guaranteed by the Small Business Administration

through ion Program (PPP). Both allegt and caused to be

Unemployment fraud

EIDL fraud

Unemployment fraud

Unemployment fraud

PPP fraud

PPP fraud

PPP fraud

Unemployment fraud

submitted fraudulent PPP | half of three sets ipanies, and lzzat
t thata
ipany called “Kyber Capital” was resp g the PPP
issue.
Nyika fraud and y conspiring to submit - California
fraudulent for California stat d out

of-state resndenls whose identifying information was stolen.

Sholanda Thomas and Christina Smith were charged with conspiracy to commit mail fraud 18 USC §§ 10284, 1349 california
and aggravated identity theft charges for the submission of several fraudulent California

Employment ims in Thomas’

and other Central California Women'’s Facility (CCWF) inmates’ names.

Bryon Jones was charged with wire fraus, makmg false statements, and eresing in 18USC §6 1014, 1343, 1957 North Carolina

loan application for an Economic njury sener Loan (1D sponsored by the United Ststes
Small B (58A) that resulted in 0f$142,900in
federal emergency relief funds. Jones, who at the time was on federal supervised release
foraprevious feony convcton, submitted s loan appicaton that contined alse

s revenues, costs, and

employees and his prior criminal record.

Cara Marie Kirk-Connell pleaded guity to fraud and related activity in connection with 18 USC'§ 1029 California
for knowingly using unauthorized . Kirk-
c h as dates of birth and Social
oy for i in the names of other

people,and ah!amed fromthe alforna Employment Development Department (EOD)
in COVID-related

benefits to which she was not entitled.

Maurice Mills was charged with wire fraud for allegedly submitting unemployment 18USC§1343 New Jersey

insurance benefits cl behalf of tothe State of New

York, although many of these claims were in the names of individuals located in Texas and

directed the benefits to be sent to locations in New Jersey.

Melvin Stout pleaded guilty to making a false statement on a loan application to obtain - Arkansas
Paycheck Protection ) in

connection with a scheme that falsely represented ownership of small businesses, which he
and others alleged were eligible for PPP funds.

Matthew Jason Welch pleaded guilty to wire fraud for attempting to ilegally obtain $35,00018 USC § 1343 Montana
from the Paycheck Protection ngram (PPP) by submitting a false PP loan application to
one of the p g lenders. Welch in that he was not

“cubject toan inlctment, Ciminal nformaton, arraignment, or other means by which
formal criminal charges are brought in any jurisdiction” when he was actually subject to
felony criminal charges in Montana and Wyorning.

ged with bank fraud Taundering for allegedly 18 USC §§ 1344, 1957, 2 New Jersey
lraudulenlly ublammg a federal Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) loan of over $5 million.
Rana allegedly submitted a fraudulent PP loan application to a lender on behalf of a
LLC, that in real estate
development.
Robert Sloan Mateer was charged with possessing unauthorized access devices with intent 18 USC § 1028A california

to defraud and aggravated identity theft, inter alia, for allegedly using stolen identities to
fraudulently obtain unemployment insurance benefits, which he later used to purchase a
Maserati luxury SUV.
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Besim Kukaj 12/10/2020

Ngoc Manh Nguyen (a/k/a Peter 12/10/2020
Nguyen); Victoria Dieuy Ho (a/k/a Vicky
Hol; Dat Tat Ho

Zachary Puznak; Zenger LLC. 12/9/2020
Scott Suber 12/9/2020
Robert Decker 12/7/2020
Charles ). Jones. 12/7/2020
Desmond Fodje Bobga 12/7/2020
Peter Garrido-Baez 12/7/2020
Tiffany Acuff 12/2/2020
Valarie Watson 12/2/2020
Naya Austin; Shanay Outlaw 12/1/2020

Maverik, Inc.; Jacksons Food Stores, Inc.; 11/30/2020
Stinker Stores, Inc.

UsDO)

UsDO)

Indiana AG

UsDo)

New York AG

UsDo)

UsDO)

UsDo)

UsDo)

UsDO)

UsDO)

Idaho AG

PPP fraud

PPP fraud

Consumer fraud

PP fraud

Unemployment fraud

EIDL fraud

Consumer fraud

EIDL fraud

PP fraud

PP fraud

Besim Kukaj was charged with bank fraud conspiracy, inter ala, for allegedy participating in 18 USC 8§ 371, 875, 1349 New York
a scheme to obtain Government-guaranteed loans from FDIC-insured banks through the

Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) by means of false and fraudulent pretenses,

representations, and documents.

Ngoc Manh Nguyen, a/k/a “Peter Nguyen,” Victoria Dieuy Ho, and Dat Tat Ho were charged 18 USC §§ 371,1031,1349,2  New York
with major fraud against the United States, conspiracy to commit wire fraud and bank

fraud,and conspiracy o make fls satements for allegedly partcipatingn s raudulent

scheme $13 million in to provide

relief to small businesses during the novel coronavirus/COVID-19 pandemic. In connection

with loan applications for COVID-19 relef available from the Paycheck Protection Program

(“PPP") of the Small B the defendants fal

e number of employecs and payrol at thel nall salons and other businesss through

fraudulent and doctored payroll and tax records in order to obtain larger loans.

The Indi hary Puznak and UCunderthe Indiana  Indiana Code §§ 24-5-0.5-1 et seq; Indiana
Deceptive Consumer Sales Act and Indiana False Claims Act for allegedly undertakinga  5-11-5.5-1 et seq

scheme to fraudulently obtain hundreds of millions of dollars from the State of Indiana

during the COVID-19 pandernic by offering to sell N95 respirator masks on behalf of 3V,

when they had no intention to do so.

Scott Suber pleaded guilty to bank fraud 18USC 51388 Virginia
Paycheck Protection rogram (PP) loa, and thr using sthelom proceeds for his own

personal benefit, including making large cash withdrawals and travel to Las Vegas. The

application falsely represented that Suber’s business, Debris or Not Debris Property

Preservation, Inc., d an average v p $140,000, and in

support of the fraudulent application, a false Form 941, Employer's Quarterly Federal Tax

Return was submitted.

Robert Decker faced an 11-count indictment in connection with his alleged theft of more - New York
than 56,000 in unemployment insurance beneit ssied by the state of New York under

the C id, Relief, and Act. ig almost every day

uring  10-week perod, Decker allgedly st fled 10 flse weekly re-cerications or

eligibility for unemployment insurance, asserting that he had not worked a single day

during any of those weeks

Charles J.Jones was charged with fraud with major disaster or emergency 18 USC §§ 1040, 1343 Hinois
benefits as well as wire fraud for allegedly submitting an application for an Economic Injury
Disaster Loan for a business, known s “Just Like Jlla,” which did not exist. In addition,
Jones allegedly denied having been convicted of a felony within five years of when he
o Small B
approximately $160,000 in loan proceeds into Jones’ bank account.

Desmond Fodje Bobga was charged with fraud conspiracy, wire fraud, forging and
counterfeiting the seal of a court of the United States, and aggravated identity theft for his
alleged involvement in a puppy fraud scheme perpetrated against American consurmers.
From around June 2018 to December 2020, Fodje Bobga allegedly conspired with others to
offer puppies and other animals for sale on Internet websites, convinced victims to
purchase the pets, and then claimed the pet transport was delayed and additional money
was needed for delivery. More recently, Bobga and others claimed more money was
needed because the pet had been exposed to the coronavirus.

18 USC §6 505, 10284, 1343, 1349 Pennsylvania

Peter Garrido-Baez was charged with fraud in connection with major disaster or emergency 18 USC §§ 1040, 1343, 1957 Hlinois
benefits, wire fraud, and money laundering for allegedly applying iar and receiving two
Small B ion COVID-19 related loans for rtments;” one fo
000 and 500 Gamda ez hen allegedly
transferred $72,500 of the proceeds into a different account at a local bank and had
$79,800 wired from the local bank to a bank account in the Dominican Republic, even
though the loan agreement required proceeds be solely used as working capital to alleviate
economic injury caused by disaster and expressly prohibits using any portion of the loan
proceeds to relocate outside the disaster area.
Tifany Acuff pleaded guity to making  falsestatement on 2 loan application toobtain 18 USC § 1001 Arkansas
money through the Small By Paycheck Protection Prog ) in
connection with a scheme that falsely represented ownership of small businesses, which
she and others alleged were eligible for PP funds.

Valarie Watson pleaded guilty to making 2 alsestatement on a loan appnm.on toobtain 18 USC§ 1001 Arkansas
money through the Small By Paycheck Protection

connection with a scheme that flsly represented ownershp of smallbusinesses, which

she and others alleged were eligible for PPP funds.

Price gouging.

Naya Austin and  inter alia, aggravated identity theft for 18 USC'§ 1028A, 2 New York
allegedly using the names and social security numbers of other persons to file fraudulent
applications for COVID-19-related unemployment benefits.

Maverik, Inc., Jacksons Food Stores, Inc,, and Stinker Stores, Inc. entered into a settlement - Idaho
with the Idaho following an during the

state’s COVID-19-related state of emergency declared in March 2020. Under the

agreement, g apr it can earn

credits when the margin between the gas retailer's retail price and the wholesale price for

its product is less than the existing average margin of the states surrounding Idaho.
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$319,113.11 in funds seized from United
Community Bank account number
0001408 held i the name of Flame
Trucking; $14,169.57 in funds seized
from Navy Federal Credit Union Bank
‘account number x000x0090 held in the
name of Maurice Fayne; $169,650.90in
funds seized from Wells Fargo bank
‘account number xxxx0467 held in the
name of Cawanza Wilkins; $79,482.00 in
United States currency; miscellaneous
jewelry; $15,195.62 in funds seized from
Navy Federal Credit Union Bank account
number xo00x1000 held in the name of
Maurice Fayne; $136,000.00 in funds;
One Great Dane, VIN
1GRAAO62XFW703501; One Great Dane,
VIN 1GRAAO620FW703748; One Great
Dane, VIN 1GRAAO629FW703750; One
Great Dane, VIN 1GRAAO626FW703754;
One Great Dane, VIN
1GRAAG21FW703743; One Great Dane,
VIN 1GRAAO621FW703760

Paschal Ngozi Eleanya; Arael Doolittle

Fusion Health and Vitality LLC; Fusion
lonz LLC; Matthew Ryncarz

Rocco A. Malanga

Federal Resources Supply Company

EMC Group, Inc. d/b/a Supreme
Suppliers (EMC)

Mobile Rush, Inc. d/b/a Best_Deals 27
(Mobile Rush)

Yvette Chaya d/b/a Northwest-Lux
(Northwest-Lux

711 (seven Eleven Stores)

EF Tours

11/26/2020

11/24/2020

11/23/2020

11/19/2020

11/18/2020

11/17/2020

11/17/2020

11/17/2020

11/17/2020

11/17/2020

UsDo)

UsDO)

UsDo)

UsDO)

PPP fraud

Consumer fraud

Consumer fraud

PP fraud

The brought a civi t asset toa  18USC§1344 Georgia
v ne, who Iy charged with bank fraud for allegedly

seeking millions in forgivable loans guaranteed by the Small Business Administration that he

certified he would use to retain workers and I

used over $1.5 million of the loan proceeds for personal expenses, including jewelry and

child support.

Paschal Ngozi Eleanya and Arael Doolittle were charged with wire fraud for allegedly
attempting to fraudulently sell 50 million non-existent N95 facemasks to a foreign
government.

18USC§ 1343 Texas

The USDOJ sought to enjoin Fusion Health and Vitality LLC, Fusion lonz LLC, and Matthew 21 USC § 331 Georgia
Ryncarz for alleged manufacturing and selling unapproved treatments for COVID-19 an
other diseases in violation of the Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act.

Rocco A. Malanga was charged with wire fraud, bank fraud, and money laundering for
allegedly fraudulently obtaining nearly $2 million in federal Paycheck Protection Program
(PPP) loans. Malanga allegedly submitted at least three PPP loan applications on behalf of
three different business entities that fabricated their number of employees and average
monthly payroll. He then diverted the PPP loan funds to accounts under the control of his
relatives, nor children, and to another company that did not obtain a PPP
foan.

18USC652,1343,1344,1957  New Jersey

NYAG

NYAG

NYAG

Oregon AG

Oregon AG

Price gouging

Price gouging

Price gouging

Price gouging

Consumer fraud

The Maura False Claims Act;  Massachusetts
entered intt ith Federal R ly Company. onsumer

Federal Resources Supply Company allegedly sold thousands of dollars' worth of hand  Protection Act

sanitizer to the ay i v (MBTA) he key

ingredient - alcohol.

v that she has stopped three - New York
EMC Group d/b/a
the price at which the

The New York v Letitia Jam
i

(EMC) allege I
same or similar products were readily obtainable in the trade area.

The New York Attorney General Letitia James today announced that she has stopped three - New York
Amazon sellers from price gouging hand sanitizer. Mobile Rush d/b/a Best_Deals_27

gedly at prices that g the price at which the same or
similar products were readily obtainable in the trade area.

v that she has stopped three - New York
Yuette Chaya d/b/a
the price at which the same or

The New York v Letitia Jam
i

gedly i prices that grossly
similar products were readily obtainable in the trade area.

The Oregon Attorney General Ellen Rosenblum entered into an Assurance of Voluntary - Oregon
o i in Portland, Salem and Eugene. 7-Eleven alleged
charged excessive prices for individual face masks.

‘The Oregon Attorney General Ellen Rosenblum entered into an Assurance of Voluntary - Oregon
Tours. EF Tours providing refunds in

Oregon law.

N.D. Ga.

S.D. Tex.

5D.Ga.

Suffolk Superior
Court

civil Yes
enforcement
Criminal Yes
enforcement

civil Yes
enforcement
Criminal Yes
enforcment

Assurance of  No
Discontinuance

1:20-cv-04810-MHC

4:20¢r-00621

4:20v-00296-WTM-

Mag. No. 20-8452

March 2020 - unknown

February 10, 2020 to
March 4, 2020

February 10,2020 to
March 11, 2020

March 1, 2020 to March
6,2020

$550,000

EMC consumers will
receive partial refunds
— ranging from $6.10
10$403.67 —
depending on the
product purchased,
‘amount paid, and
quantity ordered.

Mobile Rush
consumers will receive
partial refunds —
ranging from $3.16 to

on the product
purchased, amount
paid, and quantity
ordered
Northwest-Lux
consumers will receive
partial refunds —
ranging from $13.78 to
$209.27 — depending
on the product
purchased, amount
paid, and quantity
ordered.

pay amounts ranging
from $12,500 to
$21,500, depending on
the severity and
number of violations.
Agreement to stop
charging excessive
prices for face masks
and comply with
Oregon's price-gouging
law.

pay amounts ranging
from $12,500 to
$21,500, depending on
the severity and
number of violations.
Agreement to increase
the amount of refunds
offered to consumers
in accordance with
Oregon law, which
requires businesses to
refund prepaid
‘amounts if they do not
provide goods or
services and do not
have a good-fatt
reason for keeping the
money.
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Live Your Colour, Inc.

Plaid Pantry

Sher-Ray, Inc.

Amir Aqeel, Siddiq Azeemuddin, Rifat

Bajwa, Pardeep Basra, Mayer Misak,
Mauricio Navia, and Richard Reuth

Aditya Raj Sharma

Kadiedra Ra'Shawon White

Natural Solutions Foundation; Rima
Laibow; Ralph Fucetola

Capitol Petroleum Group, LLC

DOC Disinfectant LLC

Darryl T. Williams, Sr.

Jada s. Nelson; Sonya Barnes

11/17/2020  Oregon AG Consumer fraud The Oregon Attorney General Ellen Rosenblum entered into an Assurance of Voluntary - Oregon
Complaince with Live Your Colour, Inc. Live You Colour, Inc. allegedly advertised that its silk

socks could protect against COVID-19,

11/17/2020  Oregon AG Price gouging The Oregon Attorney General Ellen Rosenblum entered into an Assurance of Voluntary - Oregon
Plaid Pantry. Plaid prices for individual
face masks
11/17/2020  Oregon AG Consumer fraud The Oregon Attorney General Ellen Rosenblum entered into an Assurance of Voluntary - Oregon
Compl Inc. Sher-Ray, Inc. allegedly its products, an
blend called “Respi /a5 a possi mitigation
for COVID-19.

11/17/2020  USDO) PPP fraud Amir Aqeel, Siddia Azeemuddin, Rifat Bajwa, Pardeep Basra, Mayer Misak, Mauricio Navia, 18 USC §6 1349, 1343, 1956, 1957 Texas
and Richard Reuth have been charged in connection with an alleged scheme to fraudulently

obtain $16 million in PP loans. The defendants are charged with conspiracy to commit

wire fraud and wire fraud. Ageel and Azeemuddin are also charged with money laundering.

Defendants allgedly submitted at least 80 fraudulent loan applications, and spent the

proceeds on items such as luxury cars.

11/16/2020  USDO) PPP fraud Aditya Raj Sharma, the founder and former CEO of Crosscode Inc, has been charged with 18 USC 65 1349, 981, 28USC§  Minnesota
wire fraud in connection with a false PP loan application. After being fired from 461

Crosscode, Sharma formed a new, separate company calls Kloudgaze Inc., and submitted a

false PPP Ioan application in the name of "Crosscode dba Kloudgaze.” Based on fraudulent

mistatements regarding employees and payroll, Sharma received $562,500 in PPP funds,

which he then spent transferred to his personal bank account, spending portions of the

funds on a down payment on a pool for his personal residence, among other expenses.

11/16/2020  USDO) Unemployment fraud;  Kadeidra Ra'Shown White is charged with wire fraud, aggravate identity theft, and

Identity theft possession of fifteen or more unauthorized access devices. White allegedly filed fraudulent
online applications for unemployment benefits in Arizona, Ohio, and Nevada using personal
information of the victims without their permission.

18USC5 1343 Georgia

11/13/2020  USDO) Consumer fraud According to a civil complaint, Natural Solutions Foundation, Or. Rima Laibow, and Ralph 21 USC §332 New Jersey
Fucetold sold a nano silver product they claimed would cure, mitigate, treat, or prevent
COVID-19.  The complaint alleges the the claims made about the drug lacked support from

clinical studies or other credible scientific support.

11/12/2020  District of Price gouging Capitol Petroleum Group, LLC was sued for violating the District of Columbia Natural D.C. Code §§ 28-4101, et seq; 28-  District of
Columbia AG Disaster Consumer Protection Act and the District of Columbia Consumer Protection 3901, et seq. Columbia
Procedures Act for allegedly doubling the normal mark-up they obtained from gasoline
sales immediately prior to
the pandemic.

11/12/2020  TennesseeAG  Consumer fraud DOC Disinfectant LLC entered into a settlement with the Tennessee AG after allegedly  Tenn. Code Ann. §47-18-104  Tennessee
making allegedly deceptive and misleading claims related to its cleaning products and

services throughout the COVID-19 pandemic. Without admitting wrongdoing, DOC

Disinfectant agreed to pay $5,000 and not make any deceptive or misleading claims that

products or services are effective against COVID-19.

11/12/2020  USDO) PPP fraud Darryl T. Williams was charged with wire fraud for allegedly making false representations to 18 USC § 1343 Georgia
the SBA and to a financial lender regarding the gross revenue and number of employees of
his businesses,

11/12/2020  USDO) EIDL fraud Jada S. Nelson and Sonya Barnes were charged with wire fraud and aiding and abetting for 18 USC §§ 1343, 2 Georgia

8 e SBA regarding their businesses’ existence,
gross revenue, and number of employees.

Southern District
of Texas

District of
Minnesota

Northern District
of Georgia

District of New
Jersey

District of
Columbia
Superior Court

Davidson County
Circuit Court

5. Ga.

5D.Ga.

- No
- No
- No
Criminal Yes
enforcement
Criminal Yes
enforcement
Criminal Yes
enforcement

Civil complaint  Yes
for injunction

civil No
enforcement
civil No
enforcement
Criminal Yes
enforcement
Criminal Yes
enforcement

pay amounts ranging
from $12,500to
$21,500, depending on
the severity and
number of violations.
Agreement to not make
any representation that
relates to COVID-19in
connection with the
advertising, promotion,
sale or distribution of
its products without
competent and reliable
scientific evidence to
support the claims.

pay amounts ranging
from $12,500to
$21,500, depending on
the severity and
number of violations.
Agreement to stop
charging excessive
prices for face masks
and comply with
Oregon's price-gouging
Taw.

pay amounts ranging
from $12,500 to
$21,500, depending on
the severity and
number of violations.
Agreement to not make
any representation that
relates to COVID-19in
connection with the
advertising, promotion,
sale or distribution of
its products without
competent and reliable
scientific evidence to
support the claims.

4:20-cr-583 April 2020 through -
October 2020

CR20261 April 26,2020to May -
2020

120CR413 June 2020 through -

October 8, 2020

Civil Action No.20-  May to November 2020 -
16016

20c2438 - -

1:20-cr-00105-JRH-BKE - -

1:20-cr-00103-JRH-BKE - -
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augusta-area



Michael Bischoff

Orell Plummer

Rose Mary Coleman

Whitney Adwan Mack

Dennis W. Haggerty

Po Shan Wong; Zhen Wu

Princess Terry

One or more unknown parties deceiving
customers into making purchases
through: www.cleanyos.com,
www.arlysol.com, www.broclea.com,
‘www.cadclea.com, www.cleancate.com,
www.cleankler.com, www.cleanula.com,
www.clean-sale.com, www.clean-
sell.com, www.clorox-sale.com,
www.clorox-sales.com,
‘www.cloroxstore.com, www.crlysol.com,
www.elysol.com, wwwlitletoke.com,

‘www lybclean.com, www.lysoiclean.com,

‘www.lysol-clean.com, www.lysol-
cleaners.com, www.lysol-free.com,
www.lysolsales.com,
www.lysolservicebest.com, www.Iysol-
sell.com, www.lysol-wipe.com, and
www.thaclean.com

Judith Ann Middleton

AM. Cleaning & Supplies LLC

Hopelyn Rhiannon Ausk

11/12/2020

11/12/2020

11/12/2020

11/12/2020

11/10/2020

11/10/2020

11/9/2020

11/5/2020

11/2/2020

10/30/2020

10/30/2020

UsDO)

UsDO)

UsDO)

UsDo)

UsDO)

UsDO)

UsDo)

FTC

UsDO)

Michigan AG

UsDO)

PPP fraud

EIDL fraud

EIDL fraud

EIDL fraud

Consumer fraud

Consumer fraud

PPP fraud

Consumer fraud

Michael Bischoff was charged with bank fraud for allegedly submitting Paycheck Protection
contained false lent representations to the
participating lenders, including false representations about the amount of payroll and
Bischoff's entities. Ce
included false documentation, purportedly from the IRS, and others allegedly fraudulently
used another person's personal identifying information to secure approval for the loans,

wire fraud for allegedly making false to
ingthe gross revenue and number of amployees n is business.

Rose Mary Coleman was charged with wire fraud for allegedly making false representations
to the SBA regarding her business's gross revenue and number of employees.

Whitney Adwian Mack was charged with wire irzml and misuse of a social security number
for allegedly making he SB her businesses’ gross
revenue, number of employees, and using a Soc\a\ Security number that did not belong to
her.

Dennis W. Haggerty was charged with wire fraud for allegedly swindling more than $2.6
million from hospitals who paid for scarce personal protective equipment amidst the COVID.
19 pandemic. Haggerty and two business partners allegedy formed a company in March
202010 sell personal Two Chicago
and the other n lowa Ct, lowa —ordered a combined one millon NSS face masks from the
company. As a deposit on the masks, the hospitals paid more than $3 million into a bank
account that Haggerty allege y repr hich was

by Haggerty. Hagg pent part of the hospitals’
funds fo isown personal benef,incuding purchasing two Masert automobils and
Land Rover sport-utiity vehicle.

18USC§ 1343

18USC§ 1343

18 USC §§ 1343, 2

18 USC§ 1343; 42 USC § 408

18USC§1343

Michigan

Georgia

Georgia

Georgia

Hinois

Po Shan Wong and Zhen Wu of JCD Distribution Inc. (JCD) were charged with conspiring to 7 USC §6 136j, 1361; 18 USC§ 371 New York

distribute and sell one or more pesticides that are not registered with the United States
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and that are adulterated or misbranded. Wong and
Wu allegedly advertised “Virus Shut Out Cards” on their company's website and Facebook
page, and marketed and sold these products to customers by phone, making various
untested claims regarding the effectiveness of the cards in killing COVID-19.

Princess Terry fraud and maki for allegedly
executing a scheme todefraud theSmal Busines Administrations (S8A) Paycheck
Protection Program (PPP) by falsely representing to the SBA and two different financial
institutions that Caring Hearts Memphis was still a going business with employees and
payroll obligations, despite the fact that it had not been in active operation since 2017 and
had no employees. Terry also allegedly falsely certified that she was not under indictment,
and submitted forged bank statements to document her loan applications. I this manner,
Terry allegedly fraudulently obtained $290,000 in PP loan funds.

‘The FTC brought st against one or more unknown parties allegedly deceiving customers
into making purchases through 25 counterfeit websites, which had been playing on
consumers' COVID-19 pandemic fears to trick them into paying for Clorox and Lysol
products that the parties never delivered.

Price gouging.

Unemployment fraud

Judith Ann ged with mail fraud, wire fraud, and conspiracy to commit
fraud, and :enverlmg p igina scheme to
using other individuals'

ashington Sttes
names and \dgnui\:auon

AM. Cleaning & Supplies LLC entered into an assurance of voluntary compliance with the
gan Attorey General ate allegedl iolating the Michgan Consumer Protection Act
(MCPA) by engaging in The had allegedly
received several consumer comPIalnls against AM. Cleaning & Supplies tht alleged the
store drastically increased its prices of hand sanitizer. Complaints began after the business
posted a message on social media advertising hand sanitizer at $60 for a 12-ounce bottle,
$40 for an 8-ounce bottle and $20 for a 4-ounce bottle. Days before, the bottles were
reportedly priced at $7.50, $5 and $2.50, respectively.

Hopelyn Rhiannon Ausk was charged with mail fraud, bank fraud, aggravated identity theft,
possession of stolen U.S. mail, unlawful possession of U.S. Postal Service keys, and

obstruction of justice for 1gaging in two separat rst, Ausk
obtained the personally 2 (PI) of atleast and filed
fraudulent i . EDD approved

many of these applications and e benefs he form of prepaid debit cards to
addresses under Ausk's control. Once received in the mail, she activated the cards and
spent the benefits on herself. Second, in 2019 and 2020, Ausk perpetrated a bank fraud
scheme that involved theft of U.S. mail, identity theft, and fraudulent use of stolen bank
cards. Ausk manufactured counterfeit U.S. Postal Service keys to break into cluster
mailboxes and steal mail containing victim P, financial information, and bank cards. She
then used the bank cards and victim accounts to obtain cash and purchase merchandise for
herself. Some of the stolen mail also included U.S. Economic Impact Payment checks (i.e.,
stimulus checks) mailed to California residents.

18 USC 85 1014, 1343

15 USC § 45; 16 CFR Part 435

18 USC §6 641, 1341, 1343, 1349

18 USC §6 10284, 1341, 1344,
1512, 1704, 1708

Tennessee

Ohio

Mississippi

Michigan

California

E.D. Mich,

5. Ga.

50.Ga.

5. Ga.

N.D. il

EDN.Y.

W.D. Tenn.

N.D. Ohio

5.0, Miss,

Washtenaw
County Circuit
Court

N.D. Cal

Criminal
enforcement

Criminal
enforcement

rimin:
enforcement

Criminal
enforcement

Criminal
enforcement

Criminal
enforcement

Criminal
enforcement

civil
enforcement

Criminal
enforcement

Assurance of
voluntar
compliance

Criminal
enforcement

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

Yes

No 2020556 -
No 1:20-cr-00106-JRH-BKE -
No 1:20-cr-00107-JRH-BKE -
No 1:20-cr-00104-DHB-BKE -
No 2000789 -
No 1:20-m-01054-5MG -
No 2:20-cr20194MSN -
No 5:20-cv-02494 -
No - -
No 20338C2 -
No 2:20-cr00204-JAM -

$4,500 payment to the
Attorney General's
office, with $3,500 to
be used to reimburse
affected consumers
through a claims
process
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Steven R. Goldstein; Raymond Magana

Austin Hsu

Johnny Richardson; Micahia Taylor

Michael C. Moller

safeway, Inc.

Antonio De Carvalho Vicente; Angel
Bautista Rossi

Justin Ezeiruaky; Torri Pedro; Akume
Ehoggi; Kassan Knight; Nakirah

Matthews; Qwan Taylor; Kwaeson Watts;

Nasir Johnson; Daeson Monroe; Daron
Curry; Talib Crump; Noah Brent-Magri;
Isaiah White; Al Shoultz

Keith William Nicoletta

‘Thomas Smith; Stephen Smith; Samuel
Davis Jr.; Robert Hamilton; Jonathan
Henley

Amanda Garner

Christina French

Demarcus Evans.

Kayla Giles; Teri Thibodeaux

Jefferson Robert (a/k/a Johny Eto)

Didier Kindambu

UsDOJ PPP fraud
uspos PPP fraud
UspoJ Unemployment fraud
UsDOJ PPP fraud
ContraCosta  Price gouging

ounty DA;

Alameda County

Steven R. Goldstein and Raymond Magana were charged with making false statements to - california
the government, raud in connection with major disaster or emergency benefits, wire

fraud, bank fraud, conspiracy, and the Small Busi 4

allegedly fraudulently obtaining more than $1.95 million in Paycheck Protection Program

(PPP) loans for their companies g fake tax d

information,and then transfrred hundredsof thousands of dollar of th funds nto their

personal bank accounts.

Austin Hsu was charged with wire fraud for allegedly submitting nine fraudulent disaster 18 USC §§ 1343,2 Washington

Toan applicati behalf of through Injury
Disaster Loan (EIDL) and the Paycheck Protection Program (PPP). Hsu also allegedly made
numerous false and misleading statements about the companies’ respective business and

operations.
Johny Richardson and Micahia Taylr were charged with allegedl particpating na muti- 18USC§ 1343 Michigan
million dollar insuran d at defrauding the State of

Michigan and the U.S. Government of funds earmarked for unemployment assistance
during the COVID19 pandemic. Richardson and Taylor allegedly conspired with Brandi
Hawkins, a former contract employee for the State of Michigan Unemployment Insurance
Agency charged in a criminal complaint this past July, to fraudulently release over $2.5
million in government money that was intended to support individuals who lost their jobs.

Michael C. Moller pleaded guilty to bank fraud for applying for and receiving nearly - Massachusetts

$600,000 in Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) forgivable loans guaranteed by the Small
Business Administration (SBA), which he claimed were to be used to pay employees for a
businesses he operated, “Top Notch Tile.” F8l and IRS Criminal Investigation agents.
determined that “Top Notch Tile” was not incorporated with the Massachusetts Secretary
of State, nor could investgators locate any taxor bank records for the company. Moller

lone, or with d tes, he caused eleven
fraudulent PPP loan applications to b fled inthe name of hs glfriend's son. The money
was to pay employees of "Alves Top Notch,” another business for which investigators could
find no records.
Safeway, Inc. was charged with unlawful business practices for allegedly offering for sale  BPC § 17200 et seq. california
and sold two hand sanitizer products at prices greater than 50% above Safeway's cost.
During the period in question, Safeway sold over 22,000 units of one of the hand sanitizer
products and 65,000 units of the other.

UsDO) fraud

uspos Unemployment fraud

UsDO) PP fraud

UsDo) PPP fraud

Louisiana AG  Unemployment fraud

Unemployment fraud

Louisiana AG  Unemployment fraud

Louisiana AG

Antonio De Carvalho Vicents | Bautista Rossi, and four other individuals whose true - Massachusetts

identity has not |, 4 y false
ocial for i
identification documents and other government benefits, including Pandemic
(PUA) under the C d, Relief, and E it

Act.

Justin Ezeiruaku, Torri Pedro, Akume Ehoggi, Kassan Knight, Nakirah Matthews, Qwan 18 USC § 1349 New Jersey

Taylor, Kwaeson Watts, Nasir Johnson, Daeson Monroe, Daron Curry, Talib Crump, Noah
Brent-Magri, Isaiah White, and Al Shoultz were charged with bank fraud for allegedly
scheming to defraud banks and individuals with counterfeit economic stimulus checks
purportedly issued by the tothe d, Relief,
and Economic Security (CARES) Act.

Keith William Nicoletta was charged with bank fraud and illegal monetary transactions for 18 USC §§ 1344, 1957 Florida
allegedly fraudulently securing more than $1.9 million in emergency funds associated with &

Paycheck Protection Program (“PPP”) loan, by falsely c\a\mmg thathehad s locssrap

metal business with

§760,000-or more than $9 millon annually,when n truth,he had reported o wages to

the State of Florida for any employees for 2019 or 2020. Once the emergency loan was

secured, Nicoletta also allegedly did not use the PP funds for qualified expenses.

Thomas Smith, Stephen Smith, Samuel Davis Jr., Robert Hamilton, and Jonathan Henley 18 USC §5 1344, 1957, 2 Wisconsin

were charged with bank fraud and money laundering for allegedly participating in a scheme
to file fraudulent loan applications seeking more than $1.1 million in forgivable Paycheck
Protection Program (PPP) loans guaranteed by the Small Business Administration (S84). The
defendant: several fraudulent PPP toafederally
insured financial institution and the SBA in the names of businesses with no actual
operations or employees, where they allegedly misrepresented the number of employees
and payroll expenses.
Amanda Garner was charged benefit g g fraudulent - Louisiana
COVID-1 related im and weekly . Garner
benefit notaualyfor
because she the COVID19 shutdown and was
not financially impacted.
Christina French was charged with money laundering, government benefits fraud, and - Louisiana
computer fraud for allegedly hacking the Louisiana Workforce Commission's online account
of a Shreveport resident. French allegedly redirected the victim’s benefits to an out-of-
state bank account that she lled and that French ,000
into that fraudulent account.
Demarcus Evans was charged with identity theft and government benefits fraud for - Louisiana
allgedlyfemaleacquaintance’spersonal information tofile fraudlent COVID-19 related
llegedly defrauded the State of Louisiana of

$8,600.

uspoJ Unemployment fraud

UsDO) PPP fraud

Kayla Giles and Teri harged with identity theft, money e - Louisiana
d, and criminal conspiracy for allegedly using appre 25

Stoln dentites 0 e fraudulent COVID-19 reate unemployment claims - valued at

approximately $300,000 - in multiple states. In addition to the identity theft scheme, the

two allegedly made fraudulent claims in their own names in multiple states — with Giles

receiving approximately $13,000 and Thibodaux receiving $37,000.

Jefferson Robert was charged with wire fraud for allegedly opening bank accounts usinga 18 USC §6 1343, 1349 New Jersey

fake name, "Johny Eto,” that he used to apply for Washington State unemployment
benefits using the personal information of another individual.

Didier charged with bank fraud for allegedly 18USC § 1344 Virginia
loans issued under the CARES Act Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) thatwere worth over

$2.5 million. Kind:

that he owns by creating fraudulent payroll documentation for each business, and then

submitting that documentation in support of the PP loan applications.
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Criminal
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Criminal
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Criminal
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Criminal
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Brandy . Scaife; Janisha L. Jones; Sharika 10/19/2020

L. Carpenter

Fontrell Antonio Baines

Antwine D. Hunter

Delashaun Dean

Jasmine-Royshell Kanisha Black

Joseph Holmes; Emelio Rochester

Keheir Jordan Parker; Robert Barber

Kenneth Greenland; Brittany Griesel;

Paul Naeger

Junior Mertile

Cara Marie Kirk-Connell

Dinesh Sah

Hugo Chico

Jeremy Trapp

Krikor Topouzian

10/16/2020

10/15/2020

10/15/2020

10/15/2020

10/15/2020

10/15/2020

10/15/2020

10/14/2020

10/9/2020

10/9/2020

10/8/2020

10/8/2020

10/8/2020

UsDO)

UsDo)

UsDO)

UsDO)

UsDO)

UsDO)

UsDo)

UsDO)

UsDO)

UsDO)

UsDo)

UsDO)

UsDO)

UsDO)

EIDL fraud

Unemployment fraud

Unemployment fraud

Unemployment fraud

Unemployment fraud

Janisha i d Shakira Carpenter wire fraud and
conspiracy to defraud the United States for allegedy participating in a scheme that resulted
in 401 raudulenty e apications seeking Economic njury Diasteroans made avaable
to those impacted by

submitted using false information for the purpose of faciltating the fraudulent activity, and
approved loan applications allegedly netted approximately $1.1 million in fraudulently
obtained funds.

Fontrell Antonio Baines was charged with fraud in connection with access devices,
sggravated denthy theft,anditerstate ransporttionof stolen properyfor llegedly
possessing and using d -loaded with

the California Emvlu‘/mem . The debit cards

fssued in the names of third-partie, incuding dentitytheft vicims, and the applicatons for
these debit cards allegedly listed addresses to which Baines had access in Beverly Hills and
Koreatown.

Antwine D. Hunter was charged with mail fraud and aggravated identity theftfor allegedly
possesin ot least eght Nevada Emy ing &
(DETR) d ds and at least 15 g

yment, Tr

Delashaun Dean was charged with possession of counterfeit and unauthorized access
devices and |denuly thet or allegedly possessing t least 15 Caifornia Employment

rtment benefits
issued in other peap\e s names,

Jasmine-Royshell Kanisha Black was charged with conspiracy to commit mail fraud,
aggravated identity theft, and obstruction of mail for allegedly using her position as a mail
carrier tohelpa p to whit v

cards could be sent. Black th i d delivered <o
conspirator in person.

Unemployment fraud

Joseph Holmes and Emeli iracy to
and unauthorized access d d

least 1 Calfornia Empleyment Development Deparatment (E0D) deit crds ssued me
names of other people.

Keheir Jordan Parker and Robert Barber were charged with conspiring to effectuate ilegal
transaction with an access device and aggravated identity theft for allegedly possessing 12
California Employment Development Deparatment (EDD) debit cards issued in the names of
other people.

, and Paul Naeger iracy to
ffectlegal transactions with access devices aggravated identity thet for allegedly using
Calfornia Employment Development Deparatment (EDD) debit cards containing

issued in other peoples names. Greenland and Griesel
were also charged with illegal transactions with access devices for allegedly making ATM
withdrawals with the cards.

Unemployment fraud

PPP fraud

Consumer fraud

fraud, bank fraud, conspiracy to commit wire fraud
and bank fraud, access device fraud, money laundering, conspiracy to commit money
laundering, aggravated identity theft, theft of public money, conspiracy to commit access
device fraud and theft of public money, and conspiracy to commit aggravated identity theft
for allegedly participating i a scheme to use stolen personal identifying information
belonging o Rhode slanders, and others toapply onlie fo unemployment benefits, and
toh: into one accounts opened expressly
iving v urance benefit payments, as well as
fraudulently obtained federal and state tax refunds.

Cara Marie Kirk-Connell was charged with identity theft, mail fraud, and access device fraud
for alifornia’ v
personal from the darknet v
million dollars in COVID-19 unemployment benefits.

more than a haf-

Dinesh Sah was charged with wire fraud, bank fraud, and money laundering for auegEdlv
ascheme to file applications seeking
illon inforgiable Paycheck Protection Program (?PF) oans suaranteed by the Small
Aid, Relie

(CARES) t.Sah submitted 15 ,fied under the names of
various purported businesses that he owned or controlled, to eight different S8A-approved
lenders seeking approximately $24.8 million in PPP loans.

e ight to enjoin Hugo Chico in wire fraud for
allegedly participating in a scheme to mislead members of the public that he could provide
valid COVID-19 prevention treatments and that he was qualified to administer said COVID-
19 prevention treatments.

EIDL fraud Jeremy Trapp was charged with wire fraud for allegedly applying for a $42,500 Economic
Injury Disaster Loan prograrm (EIDL) loan and $10,000 grant, claiming that he was the sole
proprietor of a car wash business located at his home address in Brookiyn, when such car
wash business did not actually exist.

gouging Krikor Topouzi charged wi the

Act of 1950 for
allegedly selling masks for prices as high as $19.95 per mask —a markup from the purchase
prices of approximately 185% to 367% per mask. Topouzian engaged in the alleged criminal
8, 8 . about the illegal

pe
nature of his conduct.

18 USC 86 371, 1343, 2

18 USC §5 10284, 1029, 2314

18 USC 55 10284, 1341

18 USC §6 10284, 1029

18 USC §5 10284, 1349, 1702

18 USC §6 10284, 1029

18 USC 55 10284, 1029

18 USC §6 10284, 1029

18 USC 85 371, 641, 1028, 1028A,

1343, 1344, 1349, 1956

18 USC §5 10284, 1029, 1341

18 USC 66 1343, 1344, 1957, 2

18USC§ 1345

18 USC §§ 1343, 2

50 USC §§ 4512, 4513
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Insurance-fraud
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cegov/usao-  stice.gov/usao-
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defendants:  release/file/132
charged. 8126/download
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Unemployment-
federal-state:  Fraud.pdf
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relief-fraud 6391/download
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ednyfor/brookly - edny/press
n-man-charged- release/file/132
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chicago- release/file/132
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Diamond Blue Smith; Tonye C. Johnson  10/6/2020  USDOJ PPP fraud Diamond Blue Smith and Tonye C. Johnson were charged with wire fraud, bank fraud, and 18 USC §§ 1343, 1344, 1349 Florida S0, Fla. Criminal Yes No No 0:20-mj-06450-A0V - - https://wwwjusti Smith and -

conspiracy to commit wire fraud and bank fraud for allegedly participating in a scheme to enforcement ce.gov/opa/pr/fl Johnson
file fraudulent loan applications seeking more than $24 million in forgivable Paycheck orida-recording: ~ complaints

Protection Program (PPP) loans guaranteed by the Small Business Administration (S8A). The artist-and-
scheme allegedly involved the preparation of at least 90 fraudulent applications, most of ‘pennsylvani
which were submitted. man-charged-

role: ion:
covid-relief-fraud

Ahmad Kanan 10/5/2020  USDO) PPP fraud Ahmad Kanan pleaded guilty, in part, to Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security 18 USC {§ 981, 982, 1956, 1343, Wisconsin W.D. Wis. Criminal Yes No No 3:20cr-00081wme - 42 months in federal  https://www justi Kanan -
(CARES) Act fraud for allegedly applying for Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) loans  2461,2 enforcement prison; restitution in ment
funded by the CARES Act while using a false spelling of his name and indicating that he was the amount of
not under indictment on criminal charges, when in fact he was. $147,060

Attila Colar a/k/a Dahood Sharieff Bey,  10/2/2020  USDOJ PPP fraud Attila Colar a/k/a Dahood Sharieff Bey, a/k/a Sharieff Dahood Bey, a/k/a Dawud Sharieff 18 USC§ 1344 California ND. Cal Criminal Yes No No 320x0913105K - - v justi Colar Complaint -

a/k/a Sharieff Dahood Bey, a/k/a Dawud Bey Ahed, a/k/a Dawud Azadene, a/k/a Atilla Collan was charged with bank fraud for enforcement

Sharieff Bey Ahed, a/k/a Dawud allegedly seeking over $22 million dollars in Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) forgivable

Azadene, a/k/a Attila Collan e Small B (58A) based on
applications.

Vincent Hazzard; Jacob Fulton; 10/2/2020  USDO) Unemployment fraud  Vincent Hazzard, Jacob Fulton, Christopher Hersh, Kenneth Huggins, Biancha Kranzley, 18 USC§§2,641,1040,1341  Pennsylvania  ED.Pa. Criminal Yes No No 220¢r00324GAM - - hitps://www justi Indictments and

Christopher Hersh; Kenneth Huggins; Jennifer D'Hulster, and Arthur Johnson were charged federally with fraudulently applying enforcement complaints

Biancha Kranzley; Jennifer D'Hulster; for and obtaining emergency unemployment benefits related to COVID-19. The defendants

Arthur Johnson; Jermaine Plumer; Rafael are charged with submitting false applications claiming that the prison inmates lost jobs as a

Rodriguez; Dwayne Washington; Leroy result o the pandemic and are available to work full-time. Separately, Jermaine Plumer, prison-inmates-

Bares; Andrew Simms; Dexter Pitts Rafael Rodriguez, Dwayne Washington, Leroy Barnes, Andrew Simms, and Dexter itts and-accomplices

a/k/a Kevin Perry a/k/a Kevin Perry were arrested on state charges as part of an ongoing investigation by the charged-

y y inp: i with the U.S. Attorney's Office. fraudulently
obtaining:
pandemic

Arkansas Regenerative Medical Center,  9/30/2020  Arkansas AG Consumer fraud Arkansas Regenerative Medical Center, LTD, Sarah Knife Chief, M.D., Serge P. Francols, D.C. Ark. Code Ann. § 488-101-115  Arkansas Washington ~ Civil Yes Yes No 720v-202057 - - hitps:/fwww.ark - https://coag

Ltd.; Sarah Knife Chief; Serge P. Francois were charged with violating the Arkansas Deceptive Trade Practices Act by allegedly County Circuit  enforcement ansasag.gou/med cov/anpu
fraudulently promoting to Northwest Arkansas’s Court ia-center/news- 0ad5/2020/0
Latino community expensive stem cell and ozone therapies, costing upwards of $3,000, to releases/rutledge 9/Cole-Evans-
combat COVID-19. sues fayetteville- Assurance I

‘health-center- NALpdf
over-col

immunity-boost:

scams/

Martin Kao 9/30/2020  USDOJ PPP fraud Martin Kao was charged with bank fraud and money laundering for allegedly fraudulently 18 USC §6 1344, 1957 Hawaii 0. Haw. Criminal Yes No No 1:20mj-01208-WRP - - hitps:/fwww usti https://www.ju -
obtaining over $12.8 million in Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) forgivable loans enforcement ce.gov/opa/pr/ha stice.gov/opa/n
guaranteed by the Small Business Administration (SBA) based on fraudulent loan wail-ceo-charged- ress-
applications. covid-relief-fraud  release/file/132

2841/download

Dang Chanchai 9/29/2020  USDOJ Consumer fraud Dan Chanchai was charged with wirefraud for allegedly dfrauding a New Jesey company 18 USC 55 1343,2 New Jersey DN Criminal Yes No No 2020800797 - - hitps:/fwww usti https://www.ju -
of $1.5 million n its purchase of COVID-19 personal ) by sending enforcement cegov/usao- stice gov[usau
aseries of led the company to were y nifpe/thailand-  nifpress-
delivered. national-indicted releaseunem

defraudingnew-  0661/download

fersey-company-

purchase-

personal-

protective

Tristan Bishop Pan 9/29/2020  USDOJ PPP fraud Tristan Bishop Pan was charged with wire fraud, bank fraud, and engaging in unlawful 18 USC 6§ 1344, 1957 North Carolina ~ ED.N.C. Criminal Yes No No 52010043680 - - https://wwwusti Pan indictment ~https://www
monetary ransacions for allegedly seeking over $6 million in Paycheck Protection Program enforcement ce gov/opa/pr/n
(PPP) forgivable | teed by the Small Busi (584) based on orth-carolina
fraudulent loan applications supported by fake documents. man-charged-

fraudulently
seeking-over-6-
million-covig-

Kenzley Ramos. 9/28/2020 CFTC C dities fraud charged with operation of an 7 USC §§ 2, 6b, 6¢, 6m, 60; 17 CFR  Texas N.D. Tex. civil Yes No Yes 3:20-cv-02985-X. - - https://www.cftc https://www.cf -
] commority pool,and alure to rgisterwit th CETC for alegedly ey §4.20,421,4.22,52,53,32.4 enforcement gou/PressRoom/  tc.gov/media/4
promising individualsthe abilty o proftfrom the COVID-19 pandemic by tracing i off- PressReleases/82 806/enfkenzley
exchange foreign  (forex) and bi with guaranteed 300 p 5820 ramoscomplaint
returns. 092820/downlo

ad

ESF Inc. d/b/a ESF Camps 9/28/2020  Pennsylvania AG ESF dto paid them before 73P5 55 2011 et seq. Pennsylania  Montgomery  Assuranceof  No Yes No - - Ful refund for tuition  https://www.atto https://www.at -
emergency declarations and closures. County Courtof ~ voluntary paid for summer tmeygeneral.goy/ toreygeneralg

Common Pleas  compliance program, $10,000in  taking ov/wp-
costs for Pennsylvania  action/press:  content/upload
AG's releases/ag-
and education shapiro- 09-28.E5F
AVC.pdf
county-based-
comp-to-deliver-
tefunds to
parents/

Jonathan Markovich 9/27/2020  USDOJ PPP fraud Jonathan Markovich was charged with making false statements to a financial institution, 18 USC §6 1014, 1344, 1349 Florida 5. Fla. Criminal Yes No No 0:20-mj-06469PMH - - https://wwwust https://www.ju -
bank fraud, and conspiracy to commit wire fraud, inter alia, for allegedly submitting a enforcement cegov/eriminal-  stice gov/crimin
fraudulent loan application through the Paycheck Protection Program (*PPP") for vns/case/sober:  al-
approximately $511,807. homes-takedown vns/file/132994

6/download

Mark Schena 9/25/200  SEC Securities fraud Mark Schena was charged with making allegedy false and misleading statements 15 USC § 78); 17 CFR § 2401005 California N.D. Cal. ciil Yes No Yes 5:20-0v-06717 10/2018-4/2020 - hitps:/fwwwsec. https://www.se -
concerning his company's development of a COVID-19 blood test and its intention to enforcement gov/news/press c.gov/iitigation/
resolve its delinquency in filing required periodic reports with the SEC. Schena allegedly release/2020-224 complaints/202
falsely claimed that his company had developed a COVID-19 blood test when it had not yet 0/comp-pr2020
purchased materials to make a test. 224.pdf

Jamel Johnson 9/25/2020  USDOJ fraud  Jamel Johnson was charged with wire frau identities tofile for, 18 USC § 1343 North Carolina ~ W.D.N.C. Criminal Yes No No - - - https://wwwusti Johnson -
and receive, COVID-19 Unemplnymen! nsurance (U beneft. These charges werein enforcement cegov/uszo-  indictment
addition to those brought f ths earler for his alleged i ‘wang/pr/charlott
scheme to obtain fraudulent bank \nans using stolen personal information of identity et e-man-involved-
victims. twoseparate

identity-theft-
schemes-pleads
guilty-federal



Kenzley Ramos 9/25/2020

Michael C. Moller 9/22/2020

Jeffrey Bennett; Tashon Ragan; Jahaad  9/17/2020
Flip; Janel Blackman

Jean R. Lavanture (a/k/a Rudy Lavanture) 9/17/2020

Uzoamaka Leonard Ohaebosim 9/17/2020
John Anthony Taylor 9/16/2020
Lola Shalewa Barbara Kasali 9/15/2020
Sun Wholesale, Inc. 9/11/2020
Sun Wholesale, Inc. 9/11/2020
Tiara Walker 9/11/2020
JoshuaJ. Bellamy 9/10/2020
Larry Jordan; Sutukh El (a/k/a Curtis  9/10/2020

Jordan, a/k/a Hugo Hurt)

Lauren Marcel Duhart; Joshua Bernard  9/10/2020
Smith; Steve Ronald Lewis; Christopher J.

‘Agard; Henry Duffield; Jeremy Brandon

Latourneau; Derick Keane

UsDO)

UsDO)

UsDo)

UsDo)

UsDo)

UsDo)

UsDO)

Pennsylvania AG

Pennsylvania AG

UsDO)

UsDO)

UsDo)

UsDo)

fraud for allegedly falsely promising 18USC§1348

Michael C. Moller was charged with making a false statement and bank fraud for allegedly 15 USC’§ 645; 18 USC § 1344
seeking over $4.7 million in Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) forgivable loans guaranteed
for businesses for

18 USC 85 514, 10284, 1349

with passing fictitious
abligaions, and Bennett and Ragan were charged it agaravated identy theft or ther
alleged roles in a conspiracy to commit bank fraud, including soliciting U.S. Postal Service

checks, and using

Jean Lavanture allegedly fraudulently obtained almost $5 million in PPP loans, with which 18 USC § 1344

c charged
indiidusls the ailty to pmf! from the COVID-19 pandemic by trading in off-exchange
foreign currency (forex) with guaranteed 300 percent weekly returns.
PPP fraud
by the Small B (58A) based on
which there were no records.
EIP fraud Jeﬂrey Bennett, Tashon Ragan, Jahaad Flip, and Janel Blackman were charged with
bank fraud, Ragan and Flip
(USPs) employees to steal check books and credit cards from the mail depositing
, including i
authorization.
PPP fraud
he purchased an 8.54-acre estate in New lersey. The loan applications submitted by
Lavanture allegedly contained fa
revenues, and payroll.
PPP fraud

Consumer fraud

PPP fraud

Uzoamaka Leonard Ohaebosim was charged with making false statements and bank fraud 18 USC §§ 1014, 1344
for allegedly lying about his movie company’s payroll expenses and obtaining $1.2 million in
Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) funds. Specifically, as part of the loan application,

afalse IRS payi indicating that his company, Spite
LLC(STM"), had over 100 employees who had received wages of

,000 with $122,000 in the first quarter

0f 2020, n truth, andiin fac, STV had not pai these employees and had not iled this
form with the IRS.

the Moy

Taylnr allegecly made false representations that he was a representativefor the 3

d to sell its N95 his business, Wasatch
PromationalProducts. Contary to his epresentation, he did not have NS masks o el
and was not a representative of 3M.

18USC§ 1343

Texas

Rhode Island

New Jersey

New Jersey

Florida

Utah

Kasali has been charged with making false statements to a financial institution, wire fraud, 18 USC §6 1014, 1343, 1344, 1957 Texas

bank fraud, and engaging in unlawful monetary transactions. She allegedly fraudulently
obtained almost $2 million in PPP loans. Kasali submitted PPP loan applications on behalf of
o busines enties, Lol's Leve and CharHlr Extensons. Both loanapplicatons

bout the entity';

The Pennsyl General entered into an assurance of voluntary compliance with -
Sun Wholesale, Inc., a New Jersey wholesaler, after receiving tips that the supplier was
selling to Pennsylvania businesses for unlawful
prices. The OAG's investigation found Sun Wholesale sold 389 units of “Wish” hand

sanitizer for $17.00 per 33.8 oz. bottle.

Wire fraud; bank fraud;

conspiracy to commit
wire and bank fraud

PPP fraud

PPP fraud

PPP fraud

The Pennsyl General entered into an Assurance of Voluntary Compliance -
with Sun Wholesale, Inc., a New 2 g tips ol

selling to Pennsylvania businesses f unlawful

prices. OAG's investigation found Sun Wholesale sold 389 units of “Wish” hand sanitizer for
$17.00 per 33.8 oz. bottle.

Tiara Walker is charged with wire fraud, bank fraud, and conspiracy to commit wire and
bank fraud. She and her co-conspirators allegedly submitted fraudulent PPP loan
applications for a total of more than $24 million, and received loans of approximately $17.4.
million.

18 USC 66 1343, 1344, 1349

NFL player Joshua Bellamy has been charged with wire fraud, bank fraud, and conspiracy to 18 USC §6 1343, 1344, 1349
commit wire and bank fraud for allegedly obtaining $1.2 million i fraudulent PP loans for

his gedly Tuxury
goods and at a hotel and casino, in addition to withdrawing a large amount in cash.

Larry Jordan and Sutukh El are charged with submitting a east eight raudulent loan 18USC 51349
included false bout their company's an
h gedly funds for personal
h as home i d the p avehicle.

Defendant Christopher Agard allegedly fraudulently obtained a PPP loan for his business, 18 USC §§ 981, 982, 1343, 1349,
1956, 1957; 21 USC §6 853, 881; 28

Wild Stylz Entertainment, supporting his application with falsified documents that
of roll costs. He receieved a
loan of over $395,000,which he distributect o the other members of the conspiracy.

USC§ 2461
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District of New
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Criminal
enforcement

Criminal
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Criminal
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Yes

Yes
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4:20-mj-01644

1:20-mj-03523
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20M-123

6:20-cr-00537-CRI

412020

6/2020-7/2020

4/2020-6/2020

Apr-20

6/2020-8/2020

March 6, 2020 through
September 10, 2020

May 14 to July 24, 2020

5/21/2020-8/3/2020

4/2020-9/2020

5/2020-6/2020
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131/download
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Bay-Fy, Inc. (d/b/a The Medicine Shoppe 8/9/2020
0430)

Bay-Fy, INC., D/B/A The Medicine Shoppe 9/9/2020
0430

‘Adesh Alvin Bissoon; Michael Jacques
Joseph; Victor Torres

Cole Evans; Kiss Industries, LLC; LTD

Industries, LLC; MBCE Holdings, LLC

‘Complete Medical Supplies, Inc.

Jae H. Choi

Casey David Crowther

Michael Leroi Douros.

Nikole L. Edwards

Antonio George

Jennifer D'Hulster; Zachary Gathercole;
Ashley Harrington; Anthony Schweitzer

9/4/2020

9/3/2020

9/3/2020

9/3/2020

9/2/2020

9/2/2020

9/2/2020

9/1/2020

9/1/2020

Pennsylvania AG

Pennsylvania AG

UsDO)

Colorado AG

Pennsylvania AG

UsDO)

UsDo)

UsDO)

UsDo)

UsDO)

UsDo)

Price gouging.

Price Gouging

Conspiracy to commit
mail fraud

The Pennsylvania into an assurance of
Bay-Fy, Inc.ater they llegedly sod or offered to sell NS5 masks, KNS mesks, and 202
hand sanitizer for price in violation of the Pri Law
and the Consumer Protection Law.

73 PS5 §6 2012, 232.4

The Pennsylvania Attomey Genaralentare o an Assurance of Vluntary Campliance 73 755 201-1
with Th the d tips alleging

masks and 2 oz botles of hand sanitizer fo unlawful prices.

Bissoon, Joseph, and Torres have been charged with conspiracy to commit mail fraud in
connection with an identity theft scheme, which allegedly included the filing of false tax
the victims' C o

18 USC § 1349

bank accounts.

Cor

The Colorado entered f Cole
Evans, Kiss Industries LLC, LTD Industries LLC, and MBCE Holdings LLC after the four
toown

CRS.§6-1-105

an v
facilities and misrepresented the certification of those facilities.

PPP fraud

PPP fraud

PPP fraud

PP fraud

PPP fraud

‘The Pennsylvani General entered nto an Assurance of Vo\un!ary (‘nmphan:e 73P5 55 2011 et seq,, 2321 et
with C ies, Inc. for alleged pri the gedly sold seq.

atieast 95 multpacks of N95 masksto Pennéyvaniaretailes foran verage price of

$12/mask.

Jae H. Choi was charged with bank fraud and money laundering for allegedly fraudulently -
obtaining approximately $9 millon in Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) loans by
submitting fraudulent that involved the hundreds
of employees, manipulated bank and tax records, and falsified a driver's license on the
applications. Choi allegedly used the fraudulently-obtained PPP loan proceeds to pay for
numerous personal expenses, including to buy, among other things, a nearly one million-
dollar residential home in Cresskill, New Jersey.

Casey David Crowther was charged with making a false statement for allegedly seeking and 18 USC§ 1014
receiving more than $2 million in a Payroll Protection Program (PPP) loan, based on a loan

application that included what the PPP funds

would be used for, specifically that the PPP funds would only be used for business-related

purposes, to retain workers, and maintain payroll or make mortgage payments, lease

payments, and utilties payments.

Michael Leroi Douros was r.harged with bank fraud, making a false statement, money
totwo banks in an effort to get a
Fayeheck Protection rogram (PP loa fo i busines,Epc Retals UT LG, which
included Epic Rentals’ Iy payroll and the number of
employees the business had.

18 USC §6 1014, 1344, 1957

Nikole L. Edwards was charged with making false statements for allegedly applying for tens 15 USC § 645
of thousands of dollars of Paycheck Protection Program (PP loans by falsely claiming that
$75,000 and $50,000,

when i reality, the business did not have any employees.

Antonio George was charged with wire fraud for allegedy attempted to obtain $3.1 million 18 USC § 1343
in PP loans on behalf of 19 different companies. However, George allegedly provided false

and misleading d ! respective

and payroll expen h record:

Jennifer D' v hley Harrington, and 18USC §6 1040, 1341, 1349
charged with fraud in connection with malw isasteroremergency benefs, mai fraud,

d to obtain benefits
Telted 1 COVID 19 amergency el l\mds to which they were not entitled. D'Hulster and
Harrington allegedly asisted individuals incarcerated at Chester County Prison and olher
correctional institut to obtain Pandemic

Gathercole, who dat Chesmr

County Prison prir o the onset o the panderic, o receive approximately $12,865; and
Schweitzer allegedly did not actually receive any PUA benefits, but attempted to several
times.

Pennsylvania

Pennsylvania

Ohio

Colorado

Pennsylvania

New Jersey

Florida

Utah

California

Michigan

Pennsylvania

Westmorland ~ Assurance of  No Yes No
County Court of  voluntary

Common Pleas  compliance
Court of Common Assurance of  No Yes No
Pleas of Voluntary
Westmorland  Compliance

nty,
Pennsylvania
Southern District ~Criminal Yes No No
of Ohio enforcement
- Assurance of  Yes Yes No

discontinuance

Chester County ~ Assurance of ~ No Yes No

Court of Common voluntary

Pleas compliance

DN Criminal Yes No No
enforcement

M.D. Fla Criminal Yes No No
enforcement

0. Utah Criminal Yes No No
enforcement

5. Cal. Criminal Yes No No
enforcement
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£D.Pa. Criminal Yes No No
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March 6, 2020 through
September 9, 2020.

March 2018 through
August 2020

4/2020

4/2020-7/2020

5/2020-8/2020

Restitution to all
customers who
purchased N95 Masks,
KN95 Masks, and/for 2
oz, bottles of hand
sanitizer at excessive
prices,

Restitution to all
customers who
purchased N95 Masks,
KN95 Masks, and/for 2
oz, bottles of hand
sanitizer at excessive
prices,

$62,500 fine for
reimbursement of the

State’s actual costs and

consumer fraud or

antitrust enforcement,

consumer education,
or public welfare
purposes.

$1,630 in civil penalties;

$183.75 for public
protection and

education programs;
$3,204 n restitution;
and a 390 N95 mask
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Jean Fleuridor; Hasan Brown 8/31/2020  USDOJ PPP fraud Jean Fleuridor and Hasan Brown were charged with conspiracy to commit bank fraud for 18 USC §§ 1344, 1349 Florida S0, Fla. Criminal Yes No No 1:20-mj-03472-A0R  2017-2020 - hitps://www justi - -

their alleged involvement in a scheme to defraud a bank, beginning around 2017, by using enforcement ce gov/usao:
approximately 700 synthetic identities, in addition to stolen identities, to create bank sdfl/or/two-men-
accounts and shell companies. From about Apri through Jul of 2020, members o the who-allegedly-
» utilzed th d associated shel used-synthetic-
companies and accounts to fraudulently apply for assistance under the Paycheck Protection identities-existing
), and Brown and Fleuridor v sought and received over $3 million shell-companies
ollors n PP relif. and-prior-0
Lovely Products LLC 8/30/200  TexasAG Price gouging Lovely Products LLC entered into an assurance of voluntary compliance with the Texas  Tex. Bus. & Com. Code § 17.41, et Texas Travis County  Assuranceof  No Yes No D-1GN-20:006547 - Restitution to - - -
torney General after allegedly selling N95 12 per mask when 3M stated  seq. District Court  voluntary consumers for
these masks cost as much as $3.11, indicating a markup of almost 1,000%. In addition, compliance transactions for the
Lovely Products was not an authorized 3M product distributor, and falsely advertised that sale of 3M masks that
their KN9S masks were *100% protection.” took place from March

13, 2020 through the
present; $5,000 civl
penalty; $2,500 in
attorneys' fees.

Melissa Turasky 8/28/2020  USDOJ PPP fraud Melissa Turasky was charged with bank fraud and making false statements for allegedly 18 USC §6 1014, 1344 Hlinois ED.1I. Criminal Yes No No 1:20-cr-00560 - - https://wwwust https://www.iu -
fraudulently obtaining more than $175,000 from a forgivablePPP loan, based on a enforcement cegov/usao:  stice.gov/usao-
fraudulent loan application that included falsified monthly payroll and other business ndil/or/suburban- ndil/press-
expenses. chicago- release/file/131

restauranteur-  1186/download
charged-covid-
telief-fraud-0
Penn Jersey Paper Company 8/27/2020  PennsyaniaAG Price gouging The Pennsylvania Attorney General entered into an Assurance of Voluntary Compliance - Pennsylvania - Assurance of  No Yes No - 3/2020-8/2020 $2,760.00 in civil https://www.atto - -
with Penn Jersey Paper company for alleged price gouging; the business allegedly sold 276 voluntary penalties, in addition to reygeneral.gov/
cans of Lysol at $9.99/each, as well as 4 boxes of disposable face masks at $99.99/each. compliance restitution of $915.24  taking-
for consumers action/covid
19/ag:shapiro-

philadelphia-gets:

Marek Majtan 8/27/2020  USDOJ FIFRA violation Marek Maitan was charged with mail fraud and violating the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, 7 USC §6 136, 136j; 18 USC§ 1341 Maryland 0. Md. Criminal Yes No No 1:20-mj-02186-TMD  5/22/2020 - -
and Rodenticide Act (FIFRA) for allegedly fraudulently seling unregistered and misbranded enforcement
pesticides. Majtan allegedly purchased pesticides of unknown origin from  person he met md/pr/frederick-
on Facebook Marketplace, repackaged and labeled them at his home, and advertised on man-faces-
the internet that the product was “Compliant and Approved” by EPA and the COC, and that federal-charges
it “Kills 99.9% Bacterias & Viruses” and “Kill Covid 19 & Seasonal Flu.” Majtan also allegedly fraud-relate

sold disinfectant products on eBay and through a personal website without author
from the EPA.

ation covid-19

Brandon Casutt 8/26/2020  USDOJ PPP fraud Brandon Casutt was charged with making false statements, wire fraud, bank fraud, 18 USC §6 1014, 1343, 1344, 1956, Nevada 0. Nev. Criminal Yes No No 220-mi-666-BNW - - https://wwwust https://www.ju -
concealment money laundering, and engaging in unlawful monetary transactions for 1957 enforcement ce.gov/opa/pr/ne stice.gov/opalp
allegedly perpetrating a scheme to submit fraudulent Economic Injury Disaster Loan (EIDL) vada-man ress:
applications to the SBA and Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) loan applications to charged-using:  release/file/130
federally insured banks, which resulted in fraudulently obtaining approximately $500,000, covid-relief-funds- 9001/download
which was then laundered the funds through friends and family in order to buy  house. buy-house
Latoya Stanley; Johnny Philus 8/26/2020  USDOJ PPP fraud Latoya Stanley and Johnny Philus were charged with wire fraud and false statements for 18 USC §§ 1001, 1343 Florida S.0. Fla. Criminal Yes No No 1:20-m-03470-A0R  5/2020-7/2020 - hitps://wwwjusti - -
their alleged participation in a scheme to file fraudulent loan applications seeking more enforcement ce.gov/opa/pr/mi
than $1.1 million in forgivable Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) and Econormic iy ami-neighbors-
D\saslev Loans (EIDL) I teed by the Small Busi and charged-covid-
submitted four for over $1.1 million, wh\rh in part relief-fraud-after-
refevred to employees and a farm business that did not actually exist. falsely-claiming
be-farmers
Stephen Gould Corp. 8/25/2020  North Carolina AGPrice gouging Corp. was sued for allegedly pitchir high-priced N95 or similar  N.C. Gen. Stat. §§75-1.1,75-38  North Carolina ~ Wake County  Civl No Yes No - - - https://ncdoi.gov htps://ncdoig https://ncdol
face masks to the North Carolina Emergency Management Unit of the North Carolina Superior Court  enforcement [attorney-general. ov/download/1 gov/attorne
Department of Public Safety, Duke Health, UNC Health, and the Charlotte Chapter of the josh-stein-takes- ~40/news vgeneral-
American Red Cross, and that Stephen Gould Corp. allegedly told these potential clients action-to-protect: releases/21601 josh-stein-
that the markup on these masks was “slim” or only 3 percent, when the actual markup. nchealth-care- /complaint-with wins-150000
would have been more than 100 percent. systems-from- e-price-
Dpe-price- 252020 Eouging:
gouging/ judgment/
David Christopher Redfern 8/25/2020  USDOJ PPP fraud David Christopher Redfern was charged with wire fraud and bank fraud for allegedly 18USC 55 1343, 1344 North Carolina ~ M.D.N.C. Criminal Yes No No 1:20-m-00256-LPA  4/2020-6/2020 - https://wwwjusti - -
fraudulently applying for two Economic Injury Disaster Loans (EIDLs) and a Paycheck enforcement r/n

Protection Program (PPP) loan, with the PPP loan application supported by falsified
documents. Proceeds from these loans were allegedly withdrawn in cash or transferred to
Redfern's personal bank account.

Levi Stroud; Christina Marie Weigner;  8/25/2020  USDOJ Unemployment fraud  Levi S(mud Cvistina Marie Weignr, Anthony Lee, Amara Ramsey,Lamont Wilfrd, Casey 18 USC §1040 Pennsylvania  W.D. Pa. Criminal Yes No No - 3/2020-7/2020 - https://wwwjusti - -

Anthony Lee; Amara Ramsey; Lamont N Ramsey,  Nathaniel enforcement ce.gov/usao

Wilford; Casey Norrick; Amara Ramsey; Marcenia Massey, Shicon lordan, Dennis Hill (a/k/a Dennis Jordan), Niya Hm, Jerome wdpalpr/33-

Orlando Grandison; Nathaniel Dockblandi Poole, Tracy Ann Stankiewicz, Joseph Thomas Gainer, Jonetta Meneffe Davis, inmates-and-

Weatherspoon; Andrea Zenmon; Joshua Calibe Lowry (a/k/a El Rocco), Amasa Lamont Camp, lzona Punch, Jerrell accomplices:

Marcenia Massey; Shicon Jordan; Dennis Huddleston, Kalaurie Elahdy, Tylan Huddleston, Paris Davis, Clfford Yoders, Lisa Lutz, Gary charged-ilegally

Hill (a/k/a Dennis Jordan); Niya Hill; Clanton, JamelleFairfax, and Amanda Fairfax were named in 16 separate crminal obtaining:

Jerome Dockblandi Poole; Tracy Ann legedlly lleg; < id, Relief, and coronavirus

Stankiewicz; Joseph Thomas Gainer; (CARES) Act benefits th d false andto unemployment

Jonetta Meneffe Davis; Joshua Calibe which they were not entitled.

Lowry (a/k/a El Rocco); Amasa Lamont

Camp; Izona Punch; Jerrell Huddleston;

Kalaurie Elahdy; Tylan Huddleston; Paris

Davis; Clifford Yoders; Lisa Lutz; Gary

Clanton; Jamelle Fairfax; Amanda Fairfax

Matthew Jason Welch 8/25/2020  USDOJ PPP fraud Matthew Welch is charged with two counts of wire fraud in connection with his application 18 USC § 1343 Montana D. Montana Criminal Yes No No 1:20-00103-DIC  4/2020-5/2020 - hitps://www.justi https://www.ju -
for $35,000 in Paycheck Protection Program funds, ostensibly to support payroll, lease, and enforcement cegov/usao-  stice.gov/crimin
utlity costs for Welch Sole . Welch allegs to pay mt/pr/laurel-man: al-
restitution and costs he owed in connection with criminal cases against him. charged-covid-19- fraud/file/1315

161/download

Kyle William Brenizer 8/21/2020  USDOJ PPP fraud Kyle Willam Brenizer was charged with wire fraud and money laundering for allegedly 18 USC §6 981, 982, 1343, 1957; 28 Minnesota . Minn. Criminal Yes No No 0:20-¢r-00177-6CT-HB - - https://www.usti Brenizer -
seeking $841,000 in forgivable & teed by the Small B USC § 2461 enforcement cegov/usao-  indictment
based on a false and misleading Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) application. Brenizer min/pr/st-paul-
also allegedy transferred $650,000 of the funds he received to a bank account nrelated to man-charged-
his company, making a $29,000 payment to purchase a Harley-Davidson motorcycle and covid-relief-fraud-
spending over $1,000 on golf expenses, among other retail and entertainment money-

expenditures for his personal benefit. laundering



M&8 Multi Services Inc; Branly Morel

Brian Whorton

Dalton Brewer; Emilee Fenton

Jerry Johnson

‘Samuel George Baker

Sheng-Wen Chang (a/k/a Justin Cheng,
a/k/a Justin Jung)

Ken Russell Belonio

Kevin Liu

€5G Imports LLC

KG Imports LLC

8/20/2020

8/20/2020

8/20/2020

8/20/2020

8/19/2020

8/18/2020

8/17/2020

8/14/2020

8/14/2020

8/14/2020

David J. Jeansonne II; Traffic Jam Events, 8/13/2020

Karen Chapon (a/k/a Karen Hannafious)

7-Eleven Inc.

Plaid Pantries Inc.

8/13/2020

8/12/2020

8/12/2020

Real property located at 112 V Street NE, 8/12/2020

Washington, D.C.

Pennsylvania AG

UsDo)

UsDO)

UsDo)

UsDO)

UsDo)

UsDO)

Minnesota AG

UsDO)

UsDo)

FTC

UsDO)

Oregon AG

Oregon AG

UsDO)

price gouging.

Unemployment fraud

Identity theft

Unemployment fraud

Unemployment fraud

PPP fraud

Consumer fraud

Price gouging.

price gouging.

Price gouging.

Deceptive marketing

PPP fraud

Price gouging

Price gouging.

PPP fraud

M&B Muti Services Inc and Branly Morel were sued for allegedly price gouging on 73P5 88 201-1 et seq, 2321 et
Amazon.com marketplace, selling Purell Advanced Formula Green Certified Hand Sanitizer, seq.
Gel 8 0z Pump Bottle for unlawful prices.

Brian Whorton was charged with wire fraud for allegedly obtaining unemployment
insurance from Arizona, even though he was ineligible for such insurance. Whorton then
withdrew those funds and transferred a portion via a stand-alone Bitcoin ATM, while
keeping and spending a portion for personal expenses.

18USC§ 1343

Dalton Brewer and Emilee to Iy 3
possess, and use a means of identification, and Fenton was also charged with theft of
government money and aggravated identity theft, for allegedly using others' dentification
to violate federal law, and that Fenton, for her part, received two Economic Impact
Payments (EIPs) for which she was ineligible.

18 USC 55 2, 641, 1028, 1028A

Jerry Johnson was charged with mail fraud for allegedly participating in a fraudulent
scheme 'd Washington, even
though he was ineligibl Johnson th withdre

from his account and it to other
participants in the alleged scheme.

18 USC§ 1341

insurance from

Samuel George Baker was charged with mail fraud, aggravated identity theft, and fraud in 18 USC 56 10284, 1029, 1341
connection with for allegedly filing, fraudulent appl ,
unemployment insurance benefits in the names of various individuals in Pennsylvania, and

for allegedly using false social security numbers and fake driver's licenses to file multiple

fraudulent Michigan unemployment insurance claims.

Sheng-Wen Chang a/k/a lustin Cheng, a/k/a Justin Jung was charged with major fraud 15 USC 5§ 645; 18 USC §§ 1001,
against the United States, bank fraud, wire fraud, making false statements and aggravated 1014, 1028A, 1031, 1343, 1344
identity theft for allegedly seeking over $7 million in forgivable loans guaranteed by the

small B ion, using the i other individuals to

to the SBA and five financial institutions that companes controlled by him had a total of

over 200 employees and paid $1.5 million in monthly wages, when, in fact, his companies

appear to have a total of no more than 14 employees. Chang allegedly spent a portion of

the loan proceeds on a variety of personal expenses.

The United States sought a Temporary Restraining Order against Ken Russell Belonio who 18 USC§ 1343 (under 18 USC §
gedly engaged in a wire fraud to profit from the C v 1345)

operating i i it.com, which promotes and purports to allow

customers to order free World Health Organization "vaccine kits" if they pay $4.95 for

shipping. In fact, these claims are allegedy false and the World Health Organization is not

offering such kits; the purpose was allegedly to induce victims to pay Belonio and those

working with him $4.95 for such non-existent kits, and/or to obtain credit card and other

personal information from victims for purposes of engaging in fraudulent purchases and

identity theft.

Kevin Liu entered into an assurance of voluntary compliance with the Minnesota Attorney -

General after allegedly reselling face masks online at greatly inflated and illegal prices. Liu

allegedly ran an online resale business through eBay where he made trips around

Minnesota in order to purchase local supplies of masks and resold them online to

consumers throughout the United States, including Minnesota, at significantly higher

prices.

CSG Imports LLC entered into a deferred prosecution agreement to resolve violations of the 50 USC §§ 4512, 4513
Defense Production Act for allegedly price-gouging customers of personal protective

equipment (PPE) during the C( In particular, CSG into

the United States and offered for sale PPE and other health and medical resources that

were Designated Scarce Materials in excess of prevailing market prices.

KG Imports LLC entered into a deferred prosecution agreement to resolve violations of the 50 USC §§ 4512, 4513
Defense Production Act for allegedly price-gouging customers of personal protective

equipment (PPE) during the COVID-19 pandemic. In particular, KG Imports imported into

the United States, offered, and sold PP in excess of prevailing market prices.

Traffic Jam Events, LLC, and its owner David J. eansonne I, were charged with violating the 15 USC §§ 45, 1664; 12 CFR §
FTC Act for allegedly 0 o

obtain federal C imulus benefits, but  lured aused car

sale. Jeansonne and Traffic Jam Events were also charged with violating the Truth In

Lending Act and Regulation Z for failing to clearly disclose required credit information in

their advertising.

Karen Chapon a/k/a Karen Hannafious was charged with bank fraud and making false 18USC 56 1014, 1344
gedly seeking over $1 million in forgi by the Small

[ In support of her in applications, Chapon made

numerous false and misleading statements about her companies’ respective business

operations and payroll , falsely that she had of a felony in

the past five years, and submitted fake and altered documents.

The Oregon AG entered into an assurance of voluntary compliance with 7-Eleven, Inc. after -

7-Eleven allegedly procured face masks from a third-party manufacturer and separate

distributor, which certain 7-Eleven stores in Oregon displayed as a “Disposable Surgical

Face Mask," when it did not meet the FDA standard, and sold each mask for $3.99, when

the per-mask cost was $1.60.

The Oregon AGE entered into an assurance of voluntary compliance with Plaid Pantries, Inc. -

after Plaid Pantries allegedly procured face masks from a supplier at a cost of $4.50 per four

count package, and then resold them for $8.99.

The brought a civi toseize real property at112V  18USCS§5 641, 1343, 1344, 1956

Street NE, Washington, D.C., based on the reasonable belief that the property constitutes  (under 18 USC§ 981)

oris derived from proceeds traceable to alleged PP fraud conducted by Kenneth Gaughan

that involved fake emotional support animal companies,
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Thu Phan Dinh; Tran Khanh; Nguyen Duy 8/12/2020
Toan (together d/b/a
‘www.ZeroStore site and other domains)

Hillandale Farms Corp.; Hilandale Farms 8/11/2020
East, Inc_ Hillandale Farms of PA, Inc;

Hillandale Farms Conn, LLC; Hillandale

Farms of Delaware, Inc.; Hillandale-

Gettysburg, LP.

Arman Manukyan 8/11/2020
Kenneth Gaughan 8/11/2020
Judlex Jean Louis 8/10/2020

Matthew Ryncarz; Fusion Health; Vitality, 8/10/2020
LLC (d/b/a/ Pharm Origins)

5 Lee Brothers Corp. d/b/a Super 8/7/2020
Gigante/ West Norriton Farmers Market

ey One; Gousman Lemy; Frantz  8/7/2020
Guillaume, Jr. (a/k/a Sandro Saintfloeur)
Benjamin Hayford 8/6/2020
Damion O. McKenzie, Andre M. Clark,  8/6/2020

Keyaira Bostic

Darrell Thomas, Andre Lee Gaines, Kahlil 8/6/2020
Gibran Green Sr., Bern Benoit, Bellator
Phront Group Inc. (owned by Thomas),
Gaines Reservation and Travel LLC
(owned by Gaines), Impact Creations LLC
(owned by Green), Transportation
Management Services, Inc. {owned by
Benoit), and Lee Operations LLC, Carla
Jackson

Living Health Holistic Healing Center
d/b/a Living Health New Braunfels (Living
Health), Leslie Tatum

8/6/2020

UsDo)

New York AG

UsDO)

UsDo)

UsDO)

UsDo)

Pennsylvania AG

UsDO)

UsDo)

UsDO)

UsDo)

UsDo)

Consumer fraud

Price gouging

PPP fraud

PPP fraud

PPP fraud

Consumer fraud

Price gouging.

PPP fraud

PP fraud

Wire fraud, Bank fraud

PPP fraud

Consumer fraud

The United States sought a Temporary Restraining Order against Thu Phan Dinh, Tran
Khanh, and Nguyen Duy Toan, allresidents of Vietnam, who allegedly engaged in a wire
fraud scheme seeking to profit from the COVID-19 pandemic by operating more than 300
websites that fraudulently purported to sell products that became scarce during the
pandemic, including hand sanitizer and disinfectant wipes. The order shutters the trio's
websites an investigation 3 .

18 USC 66 1343, 1349 (under 18 Florida
usc§ 1345)

Corp,, Hillandal East, Inc, Hillandal of PA, Inc., Hillandale  GBL 396-1; Executive Law § 63(12) New York
Farms Conn, LLC, of Delaware, Inc., and , LP. were

charged with price gouging for allegedly increasing the prices of more than four million

cartons of eges sold to major grocery store chains, U.S. military facilities, and wholesale

food distributors throughout the state, charging New York customers up to four times the

pre-pandemic price for one carton of eggs.

Arman Manukyan was charged with bank fraud and aggravated identity theft for allegedly 18 USC §5 10284, 1344 California
seeking over $860,000 in forgi by the Small B i

for a shell company and then transferring the bulk of his llict gains to his personal bank

accounts.

Kenneth Gaughan was charged with bank fraud, theft of government funds, wire fraud,
and money laundering for allegedly seeking over $2.1 million in forgivable loans guarantee
by the Small B ion on behalf of multip i y purporting
to register emotional support animals. Gaughan then used a portion of the loan proceeds
to purchase a 2020 Cruisers Yachts 338 CX 33-foot watercraft, a 2020 Kia Stinger, and a
rowhouse in Northeast, Washington, D.C.

18 USC §6 641, 1343, 1344, 1956 District of
d Columbia

Judlex Jean Louis was charged with bank fraud, making false statements and aggravated
identity theft for allegedly receiving proceeds from three fraudulent PPP loans in early June
2020, each hiding Louis's identity as the true loan recipient.

18USC§61014,1028A,1344  Florida

Matthew Ryncarz was charged with violating the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act by 21 USC §§ 331,333 Georgia
allegedly selling a misbranded drug called “Immune Shot” that they falsely claimed would
lower consumer’s risk of contracting COVID-19 by nearly 50 percent.

The Pennsylvania Attorney General has entered into an Assurance of Voluntary Compliance 73 PS §§ 201-1
p Norriton F Market for alleged pr ; the store
allegedly sold 24-bottle cases of water at double the normal price.

Pennsylvania

Jimpey One, Gousman Lemy, and Frantz Guillaume, Jr. /k/a Sandro Saintfloeur were
charged to commit e g, bank fraud,
aggravated identity theft, and making false statements for allegedly participating in a fraud
and money laundering-ring established in 2019 to carry out business email compromise-
schemes, and that the trio used, most recently, to allegedly seek nearly $2 million in
through false submissions

18 USC §6 1014, 10284, 1344, 1956 Florida

in the names of shell companies.

‘The USDOJ charged Benjamin Hayford with ane count of bank fraud and four counts of
a financial instituti allegedly using
documentation seeking millions of dollars in forgivable PP loans

18 USC 55 645, 1014, 1343, 1344 Oklahoma

Three individuals were charged with wire fraud, bank fraud, and conspiracy to commit wire 18 USC §§ 2,1343,1344,1349  Florida
fraud and bank fraud by federal criminal complaints filed in the Southern District of Florida
on August 3, 2020.

The USDOJ charged four individuals with conspiracy to commit bank and wire fraud, bank 18 USC§5 2, 1014,1343,1344,  Georgia
fraud, wire fraud, fal ial institution and money g for their 1349, 1956, 1957

or assistance of PPP i behalf of five
businesses, Bellator Phront Group Inc. (owned by Thomas), Gaines Reservation and Travel
LLC (owned by Gaines), Impact Creations LLC (owned by Green), Transportation
Management Services, Inc. (owned by Benoit), and Lee Operations LLC. The USDOJ also
charged Carla Jackson with money laundering for allegedly controlling the accounts of
Thomas, Gaines, Green, and Benoit into which the PPP funds were transferred; she further
distributed the funds.
The USDOJ granted a temporary restraining order against Living Health Holistic Healing
Center d/b/a Living Health New Braunfels (Living Health) and it's owner, Leslie Tatum, to

and testing related pandemic

18USC§ 1345 Texas

(coviD-19).
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Milton Ayimadu (a/k/a Don Milton)

Philip J. Augustin, Wyleia Nashon
Williams, James R. Stote, Ross Charno,
Deon D. Levy, Abdul-Aseem Levy

American Screening, Ron Kilgarlin Jr.,
Shawn Kilgarlin

8/6/2020

8/6/2020

8/5/2020

QYK Brands LLC, DRISNatural LLC, Rakesh 8/5/2020

Tammabattula, lacqueline Thao Nguyen

Zaappaaz LLC, Azim Makanojiya

Brenda Kay Noteboom

Clinica Hispana la Porte; Luis Alberto
Cuan (a/k/a Luis Alberto Cuan Lio)

Lee Price Il

American surgical Supply, Inc.

John Lalor Joyce, Keystone Medical
Equipment

Joel Bellegarde

William Peck

8/5/2020

8/5/2020

8/5/2020

8/4/2020

8/3/2020

8/3/2020

7/31/2020

7/31/2020

UsDO)

UsDO)

FTC

FTC

FTC

lowa AG

Texas AG

UsDo)

Pennsylvania AG

Pennsylvania AG

UsDo)

UsDO)

price gouging.

PPP fraud

Consumer fraud

Consumer fraud

Consumer fraud

Price gouging

Consumer fraud

PPP fraud

Price gouging.

Price gouging.

Milton Ayimadu was charged with hoarding and price gouging in violation of the Defense - Georgia
Production Act for allegedly purchasing more than 200,000 face masks from a foreign

country for approximately $2.50 each and then re-selling them to American consumers for

approximately $5.00 each.

The USDOJ charged 8 individuals via criminal complaint for allegedly participatingina 18 USC§§2,1343,1344,1349  Ohio
scheme to file fraudulent loan applications seeking more than $24 million in forgivable
Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) loans

‘The Federal Trade Commission filed suit against American Screening, LLC, for failingto 15 USC § 45, 53, 57b, Missouri
deliver on the promise that it could quickly ship products like face masks, sanitizer, and

other personal to pandenic; the

he FTC's Mail, Internet, or Telept ise Rule

(Mail Order Rule), that ina

imely nd he chance d receive prompt

refunds.

The Federal Trade Commission filed suit against v 15USC8845,53,570 california
for failing to deliver on the pr quickly ship products

sanitizer, and other personal protective equipment (PPE) related to the coronavirus

pandemic; the company allegedly violated the FTC's Mail, Internet, or Telephone Order

Merchandise Rule (Mail Order Rule), which requires that companies notify consumers of

ina and d

receive prompt refund

‘The Federal Trade Commission filed suit against Zaappaaz, the operators of wrist-band.com 15 USC §6 45, 53, 57b Texas

and other online storefronts, for ailing to deliver on the promise that they could quickly
ship products like face masks, sanitizer, and other personal protective equipment (PPE)
related to the coronavirus pandemic; the company allegedly violated the FTC’s Mail,
Internet, or Telephone Order Merchandise Rule (Mail Order Rule), which requires that

i shipping delays ina
chance to cancel orders and receive prompt refunds.
Brenda K sued by the for allegedy selling more - Towa
than 320 items on eBay at excessive prices for a two-week period in mid to late March
2020, The items included toilet paper, paper towels, disinfecting and sanitizing products
and other items needed by disaster victims. Noteboo allegedly realized more than $5,500
from the sales.

v nd he

Ciinica Hispana la Porte and Luis Alberto Cuan were sued for violating the Texas Deceptive ~Tex. Bus. & Com. Code §§ 17.41-  Texas
c & peopl testsand  17.63,521.001-521.152
telling them that it would diagnose an infection, when such test cannot diagnose an active
infection. In addition ulent tests, Clinica
i behind the clnic, the Texas

away
Identity Theft Enforcement and Protection Act.

Lee Price Il was charged with making false statements to a financial institution, wire fraud, 18 USC §§ 1014, 1343, 1344, 1957 Texas
bank fraud, and engaging in unlawful monetary transactions for allegedly obtaining more

than $1.6 million in Paycheck Protection Program loans and spending the money on luxury

items, real estate, and personal entertainment.

‘The Pennsylvania Attorney General entered into an assurance of voluntary compliance with 73 PS §§ 201-1 et seq; 232.1et  Pennsylvania
American Surgical Supply after the AG received tips alleging that the store was selling KN95 seq; 73 PS § 201-5

face masks for unlawful prices; the Attorney General learned that the business allegedly

sold 485 face masks for as much as $26 per mask.

‘The Pennsylvania into an assurance v compl 73P5 552011 etseq; 23216t Pennsylvania
Keystone Medical Equipment after the AG received tips alleging that the store was selling ~ seq.; 73 PS § 201-5

KNS face masks for unlawful prices; the Attorney General learned that the business

allegedly sold 122 face masks for upwards of $28 per mask.

Unemployment fraud

Joel d and charged with wire fraud, mail fraud, and aggravated
identity theft, for allegedly submitting fraudulent claims for unemployment benefits to the
State of Oklahoma, benefits which were intended for Oklahoma residents who had lost
their jobs due to the economic impact of COVID-19.

18USC551028A,1341,1343  Florida

William Peck has been charged with mail fraud after allegedly receiving nearly $100,000in 18 USC § 1341 Texas
fraudulent benefits.
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Alvin Lavon Rex

Dennis Nobbe

Spruce Food Market

7/30/2020

7/29/2020

7/28/2020

‘Gordon H. Pedersen; My Doctor Suggests 7/28/2020

David Taylor Hines

Mukund Mohan

Honeybee LLC (d/b/a Honey Bee
‘Gourmet Deli)

Wagner Sozi

Brandi Hawkins

7/27/2020

7/23/2020

7/22/2020

7/21/2020

7/17/2020

UsDO)

UsDo)

Pennsylvania AG

UsDo)

UsDO)

UsDo)

Pennsylvania AG

UsDO)

UsDO)

Alvin Lavon Rex has. with one count of mail fraud for allegedly receiving 18USC§ 1341 lowa

PPP fraud

Price gouging.

Consumer fraud

PPP fraud

PP fraud

Price gouging.

depositsin h tata bankin Storm
made in d

Dennis Nobbe was charged by criminal complaint with wire fraud, health care fraud,
conspiracy to commit health care fraud and wire fraud, making false statements to a

fal instituti v , and conspiracy to commit & he
has been charged for allegedly fraudulently obtaining a Paycheck Protection Program loan
and an Economic Injury Disaster Loan (EIDL), and that he orchestrated a conspiracy to
submit false and Medicare and CareCredit, and to
defraud his own patients by charging them thousands of dollars for chiropractic services
under false pretenses.

18 USC §6 1014, 1343, 1347, 1349, Florida
1956, 1956

‘The Pennsylvania Attorney General entered into an assurance of v compl 73P5 552011 etseq; 23216t Pennsylvania
Spruce Food Market after the AG received tips alleging that the store was sellinghand ~ seq.
prices; the y learned that the b

units of hand sanitizer for as much as $15.99 for an 8 oz. bottle.

Gordon Pedersen has been indicted for posing as a doctor in order to sell a fake treatment 18 USC §§ 1341,1343; 21 USC§§  Utah
for COVID-19. His former company, My Doctor Suggests LLC, has agreed to plead guilty in 331,333
connection with false and misleading marketing of ingestible silver products as a

has with Pedersen and is

cooperating in his prosecution.

David Hines was charged with fraudulently obtaining $3.9 million in PP loans and using the 18 USC §6 1014, 1344, 1957 Florida
funds to purchase, among other things, a $318,000 sports car for himself.
Mukund Mohan 8 fraud and laundering for allegedly seeking 18 USC §5 2, 1343, 1957 Washington
over $5.5 million i forgivable I teed by the Small B i b
8 I and misleading
tate es' respective d
Mohan also allegedly submitted fake and altered documents, including fake federal tax
il ftered i i 00 in
fraudulently-obtained loan proceeds to his personal brokerage account for his personal
benefit.

‘The Pennsylvania into an assurance v compl 73 PS5 §5 2011 et seq.; 2321 et
Honeybee LLC d/b/a Honey Bee Gourmet Deli after the AG received tips alleging that the  seq.

store was selling KNOS face prices; the v that

the business offered 1,050 face masks for sale at $8.00/each, with minor decreases in price

if consumers purchased more than one mask.

Pennsylvania

Massachusetts

Unemployment fraud

Wagner Sozi fraud, aggravated identity theft, and making a false
claim for allegedly engaging in a scheme to use stolen identity information to open
accounts, make purchases, rent cars, and apply for Pandemic Unemployment Assistance
benefits. Sozi allegedly obtained this stolen identity information from various sources,
including from a Cambridge realty company that collected the personal identifying
information of people who sought to rent local apartments.

18 USC 55 2, 287, 1028A, 1343

Brandi Hawkins was charged with wire fraud, laundering of monetary instruments, and
theft v g
position as of the Michigan Insurance Agency to
fraudulently release payment on hundreds of fraudulent claims, resulting in the fraudulent
disbursement of over $2,000,000 of federal and state funds intended for unemployment
assistance. Hawkins allegedly used proceeds to purchase high-end handbags and other
luxury goods.

18 USC 6 666, 1343, 1956 Michigan
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Direct Hardwood Flooring and Supplies, 7/16/2020  Michigan AG Consumer fraud The Michigan Attorney General entered into an assurance of voluntary compliance with  MCL § 445.901 et seq. Michigan - Assurance of  Yes Yes No - - $150toeachof the  https://www.mic - -

LLC (d/b/a Direct Home Supplies); Direct Hardwood Flooring and Supplies, LLC (d/b/a Direct Home Supplies) and Michael voluntary Better Business Bureau higan.gov/ag/0,4
Michael Solomich Solomich after they allegedly violated the Michigan Consumer Protection Act by engaging in compliance and Attorney General  534,7-359-
practices like price-gouging, misleading consumers about its goods and services, and failing complainants; $15,000 92207 47203-
t [ te requests for refunds. For le, Direct Home tothe Attorney 534308-,00.htm!
Supplies allegedly advertised R9S face masks for $108 each, although they claim the price General's office to
was for 20 masks. compensate additional

consumers who submit
substantiated

complaints.
Andrew Marnell 7/16/2020  USDO) PPP fraud Andrew Marnell was charged with bank fraud for allegedly seeking over $8.5 millionin 18 USC§ 1344 California co.Cal. Criminal Yes No No 2:20-m}-03313-DUTY  5/11/2020 - hitps://wwwusti Marnell -
he small B inistrati ing fraudulent enforcement ce.gov/opa/pr/ca complaint
foan applications that made numerous false and misleading statements about the lifornia-man-
companies’ respective business operations and payroll expenses. Marnellalso allegedly charged-covid-
submitted fake and altered documents, including fake federal tax filings and employee reli
payroll records, and transferred the
account to make risky stock-market bets and similarly spent hundreds of thousands of
dollars in fraudulently-obtained loan proceeds at  Las Vegas casino.

‘Ganell Tubbs 7/16/2020  USDO) PPP fraud Ganell Tubbs was charged with bank fraud, making a false statement, and engagingina 18 USC 6§ 1014, 1344, 1957 Arkansas £D. Ark. Criminal Yes No No 4:20-cr-00193-8M  4/30/2020-5/5/2020 41 months in prison  https://ww.justi Tubbs hitps://www
monetary transaction with proceeds of unlawful activity for allegedly obtaining nearly $2 enforcement ment ustice.gov/u
million in forgivable I teed by the Small Busi i and, in one sa0:
instance, spending funds from the loan on personal expenses and, in another instance, edar/pr/little-
made false representations in the original loan application, charged-covid-

reli

Craven Randall Casper 7/14/2020  USDO) Consumer fraud Craven Randall Casper to wire fraud for d a 18UsC§1383 District of D.DC Criminal Yes No No 1:20-00102-4PM - - https://www.usti Casper -
website, i on which h for sale personal Columbia enforcement cegov/usao-  complaint
protection equipment (“PPE”) related to the COVID-19 pandemic. These PPE items de/pr/washingto
included N9 respirator masks, protective masks, and hand sanitizer. However, Casper did n-deman-
not provide the PPE to the majority of his paying customers. sentenced-fraud-

scheme:
involving-covid-
19-protective:
equipment-tax

Huu Tiew 7/14/2020  USDO) Consumer fraud Huu Tiew was charged with mail fraud and introducing a misbranded drug into interstate 18 USC§ 1341; 21 USC §§ 331, 333 California E£D.Cal. Criminal Yes No No 1:20-cr-00109-DAD-  4/2020-7/2020 - https://wwwusti https://www.ju_https://www
commerce with the intent to defraud for allegedly marketing and selling a package of enforcement BAM cegov/usao-  stice.gov/usao- attorneygen
herbal mixtures dubbed the “Emergency D-Virus Plan of Care,” which he claimed treated edcafor/tulare-  edca/press eral.gov/wp-
COVID-19. Tie allegedly made these misrepresentations for the purpose of soliciting county-man-  release/file/129 content/uplo
customers, both patients and health care professionals, to acauire these products 5o that indicted-falsely- 4066/download ads/2020/06
he could submit reimbursement claims to the patients’ insurers, including Medicare and marketing:herbal- 12020:06-29
Medi-Cal, mixtures-fda- GoodsAndm

approved: ore-AVC.pdf
treatment

Joshua Thomas Argires 7/14/2020  USDO) PPP fraud Joshua Thomas Argires was charged with wire fraud, bank fraud, making false statements, 18 USC §§ 1014, 1343, 1344, 1957 Texas 5. Tex. Criminal Yes No No 4:20-mj-01211 4/20207/2020 - https://wwwusti Argires -
and engaging in unlawful monetary transactions for allegedy seeking over $1.1 million in enforcement cegov/usao-  complaint

g sdt/pr/another-
fraudulent loan applications for two companies, neither of which had employees or paid houston-may
wages consistent with the amounts claimed in the loan applications. Moreover, funds from charged-covid-
the loans llegedy invested account and a bank that was relief-fraud
slowly depleted via ATM withdrawals.

D&M Desai Inc. (d/b/a Yorke Pharmacy ~ 7/13/2020  Pennsylvania AG  Price gouging. The Pennsylvania into an assurance of v compli 73PS8§201-1etseq; 2321t Pennsyvania  BucksCounty  Assuranceof  No Yes No - - $1,500 in civl penalties; https://www.atto - -

inc) D&M Desai Inc. d/b/a York Pharmacy Inc. after the AG received tips alleging that the store  seq. Court of Common voluntary $261.0 for public  rneygeneral.gov/
was selling N95 the Attorney General learned that Pleas compliance protection and taking
they sold 30 facemasks for $20 each. education purposes;  action/covid-

$210in restitutionto  19/ag-shapiro-

consumers stops-price-
gouging-at-vorke
‘pharmacy-in-
levittown/

Luke John Flint 7/13/2020  USDO) Consumer fraud ‘The DOJ sought to enjoin Luke John Flint from ongoing wire fraud for allegedly creatinga 18 USC § 1343 (under 18USCS  Kentucky W.D. Ky. civil Yes No No 3:20-v-00489-CHB  5/27/2020 - https://www.usti Flint complaint -
website that promotes and purports to allow consumers to pre-order a COVID-19 vaccine,  1345) enforcement ce.gov/usao
even though such a vaccine was non-existent. waky/pr/us-

attorney-s-office
shuts-down-
multiple-websites
dlaiming-offer-
breorders-covid:

Oludarmilare Olugbuyi 7/13/2020  USDO) PPP fraud Oludamilare Olugbuyi was charged with making false statements for allegedly seeking 18 USC§ 1014 District of D.C Criminal Yes No No 1:20-m-00127-GMH ~ 4/5/2020 - https://wwwjusti Olugbuyi -

he Small B inistrati fraudulent loan Columbia enforcement ce.gov/opa/pr/w complaint
lications that RS Forms 1099-MISC rep of thousands of ashington-dc-
dollars in disbursements made to independent contractors. general
contractor-
charged-covid-
relief-fraud

Carlos Belone 7/10/2020  USDO) PPP fraud Carlos Belone was charged with conspiring to commit health care fraud, wire fraud, 18 USC 86 1014, 1320a-7b, 1343, Florida 5.0.Fla. Criminal Yes No No 020-mj-06264-L55  3/2018-6/2020 - https://wwwjusti Belone -

payment of health care kickbacks, and making false statements for allegedly seeking 1389 enforcement ce.gov/opa/pr/fl complaint
he small B inistrati fraudulent loan orida-man
lications in the name of a company false | charged-covid-
to Medicare for orthotic braces that were medically unnecessary, ineligible for Medicare
reimbursement and/or not provided as represented. Moreover, to support the allegedly
fraudulent I licat fake tax d ts and doctored profit and
loss statements for the company, and after receiving over $22,000 in loan proceeds, he
allegedly directed approximately $12,000 of the loan money to a personal account under
his control.

Shawn Vogt d/b/a Vog True Value 7/9/2020  Pennsylvania AG  Price gouging The Pennsyk into an assurance of v 73PS8§201-1etseq; 2321t Pennsylvania  Allegheny County Assuranceof  Yes No No 207437 - $1,012.80 n restitution https://www.atto - -
Shawn Vogt, owner of Vogt's True Value Hardware, after the AG received a complaint  seq. Court of Common voluntary to consumers neygeneral.gov/
alleging that the store was selling facemasks for unlawful prices. Pleas compliance taking

action/covid-
19/ag:shapiro-
stops-price-
gouging-at-vogts-

Rose Ann Azzarello; Andrea Renee 7/9/2020  USDO) Consumer fraud Rose Ann Azzarello and Andrea Renee Pytlinski were charged with wire fraud for allegedly 18 USC§ 2, 1343 Indiana 5.0.1nd. Criminal Yes No No 3:20-mj-00037-MPB  5/8/2020-5/14/2020 - https://wwwusti Azzarelloand -

Pytlinski participating in a scheme that received and sent Washington State unemployment benefits enforcement cegov/usao-  Pytlinski
and the p via wire and er as directed by sdin/pr/mother- ~ complaint
someane only known as *William Lewis". As the illicit funds were allegedly deposited into and-daughter-
their accounts, Azzarello and Pytlinski would allegedly withdraw the funds prior to the evansville
detection of any fraud and then transmit a portion of the il-gotten funds to a third party charged-covid-19-
while retaining their share. telated-wire

fraud



SuperGoodDeals.com, Inc.; Kevin J.
Lipsitz

Kooz Concepts International, Inc.

Ahmad Kanan

Benjamin Hayford

Hubert van Ugarte; Lisa Bradshaw
Rowberry

Kevin Jay Lipsitz

Pivot Concierge Health, LLC; Banyan
Medical Systems, LLC

Paoli Pharmacy, Inc.

Save-On Supplies

Approximately $80,661.05 in funds

Approximately $48,742.50 in funds

7/8/2020

7/8/2020

7/8/2020

7/8/2020

7/8/2020

7/8/2020

7/7/2020

7/7/2020

7/6/2020

7/2/2020

6/30/2020

FTC

Michigan AG

UsDO)

UsDO)

UsDo)

UsDo)

Nebraska AG

Pennsylvania AG

California AG

UsDO)

UsDo)

Consumer fraud

Consumer fraud

PPP fraud

PP fraud

PPP fraud

The Federal Trade Commission charged SuperGoodDeals.com, Inc. and its owner KevinJ. 15 USC§ 45; 16 CFR § 435 New York
e -day shioping of ks and other

PE) to deal with ic. The website

allegedly advrtised that PPEwas "in stock”and touted "Pay Today, Shms Tomorrow," but

frequently took weeks to ship merchandise.

lnpsnu w\lh " y p

The Michigan Attorney General entered into an assurance of voluntary compliance with  MCL § 445.901 et seq. Michigan
Kooz Concepts International, Inc. after the company allegedly violated the Michigan
Consumer P selling face mask as having the N95

designation.

Ahmad Kanan was charged with wire fraud and money laundering for allegedly seeking - Wisconsin
$119,560in by the Small By
false application that indicated Kanan was not currently under federal indictment, when the
opposite was true. Kanan also alleg: 47,000 in Iy
Toan proceeds to his checking account.
Benjamin Hayford was charged with wire fraud, bank fraud, and making false statements 15 USC § 645; 18 USC §§ 1014,
for allegedly seeking over $8 millon in forgivable loans guaranteed by the Small Business 1343, 1344
Tosupport his licat
Hayford allegedly provided fraudulent payroll documentation purporting to establish
payroll expenses that were, in fact, non-existent. In addition, Hayford represented that the
Limited Liability Partnership for which he applied for relief was established in January 2020
and was operating as of Feb. 15, 2020, when in fact Hayford did not create the partnership
until April 2020, several days before he began applying for Paycheck Protection Program
(PPP) loans.
Hubert lvan Ugane and Lisa Bradshaw Rowberry were chavged with removal of property to 1s usc §§371,1014,1343, 1957, Utah
aud, wire fraud, , as well as
conspiring to commit removal of pmpeny toprevent seiure, loan application fraud and
wire fraud for, inter alia, alleg 8 $210,000in by the
Small B ion based on a fal that indicated Ugarte had not
been placed on I d and indictment, when the
opposite was true. Ugarte also allegedly agreed that at least 75 percent of the $210,000
foan would be used for payroll costs, when i fact he used 60 percent of the loan to pay the

Oklahoma

past due truck payments.

Consumer fraud

Price gouging.

price gouging.

Kevin lay Lip charged the Actand wire fraud for 18 USC § 1343; 50 USC 5 4512, New York
(PPE) and other health and medical 451

matelals, some of whichwere designated a scarce due tothe COVID-19 pandernc, ot

prices far exceeding prevailing market prices, while also allegedly lying to customers about

his inventory of such scarce materials and his abiliy to timely ship those items to

customers.

Pivot Concierge Health, LLC and Banyan Medical Systems, LLC were charged with violating  NRS §§ 59-1601 et seq., 87-301 et Nebraska
Nebraska's Consumer Protection Act and its Uniform Deceptive Trade Practices Actfor  seq.

allegedly advertising *rapid” and *same-day" COVID-19 testing, while failing to distinguish

b dis  antibody tests, and failing the differences between

those tests, including limitations of the antibody test.

The Pennsylvania into an assurance of 73PS 852011 etseq; 2321t Pennsylvania
Paol Pharmacy after the AG rceived tips aleing the store was selling facermasks for
unlawful prices; the business allegedly sold approximately 100 individual N9S masks in

ziploc bags for as much as $25 per mask.

save-On Supplles vias charged with violating Clforni's Unfir Competiion Low by BPC§17200 et seq. california
surgical masks and

s wholesal corts.

North Carolina

‘The United acivi to $80,661.051n -
funds held at bank ts all ssed Vil
‘These bank accounts were aHegedIy s to ramter money from unemployment eneft
Brograms tofraudsters,wh used victmsstlen dentites o apaly for unemployment
the convinced bank to receive and make
funds on the false belief they in
relationship with the fraudsters.

North Carolina

The United ivil to recover $48,742.50in -
funds held at bank ts allegedly used OVID-19 fraud
These bank accounts were allegedly used to transfer money from unemployment benefit
programs to fraudsters, who used victims' stolen identities to apply for unemployment
benefits online, and then used other unsuspecting individuals' bank accounts as "money
mule” accounts to receive and transfer the stolen benefits.

EDNY. civil
enforcement
KentCounty  Assurance of
Gircuit Court voluntary
compliance
Criminal
enforcement
N.D. OKla. Criminal
enforcement
D. Utah Criminal
enforcement
EDNY. Criminal
enforcement

Douglas County  Civil
District Court  enforcement

Chester County  Assurance of
Court of Common voluntary
Pleas compliance

Alameda County ~ Civil

Superior Court  enforcement

WONC cwil
enforcement

WONC civil
enforcement
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No

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

No

No

Yes Yes
Yes No
No No
No No
No No
No No
Yes No
Yes No
Yes No
- No
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2:20-mj-00452-4CB  4/23/2020-5/18/2020
20-M1-509 2/2020-4/2020
1205231 3/2020-4/2020
RG20066983 4/2020-5/2020
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EricR. Shibley 6/30/2020  USDO) PPP fraud Or. Eric R. Shibley was charged with wire fraud and bank fraud for allegedly seeking over $3 18 USC 8§ 2, 1343, 1344 Washington ~ W.. Wash, Criminal Yes No No MI20-385 4/20206/2020 - https://www.justi https://www.ju -
million in forgivable I d by the Small 8 e enforcement ce.gov/opa/pr/se.stice.gov/opalp

fraudulent applications in the names of businesses with no actual operations or by attledoctor:  ress:
/s eligibili hibl charged-covid-  release/file/129

number of d payroll expenses, d reli 0826/download
submitted fake tax documents.
Mark Scott Grenon; Jonathan David ~ 6/30/2020  USDOJ Consumer fraud Jonath Jordan Paul G d Joseph Timothy 18 USC §§ 371, 401 Florida 5.0.Fla. Criminal Yes No Yes 1:20-m}-03050-A0R  4/2020-5/2020 - - Grenon https.
‘Grenon; Jordan Paul Grenon; Joseph Grenon to defraud the d to deliver enforcement complaint attorneygen
Timothy Grenon misbranded drugs and with criminal contempt for allegedly promoting and selling bleach as eral gov/wp:
a“miracle cure-all that could treat, prevent, and cure a variety of serious diseases and
disorders," including COVID-19. They were also charged with violating a court order
prohibiting them from distributing the product.
Goods and More Incorporated, d/bfa  6/29/2020  Pennsylvania AG Price gouging The Pennsylvania d into an assurance of v compl 73PS5§201-1etseq; 2321t Pennsyhania  lackawanna  Assuranceof  No Yes No 2020-0v-2490 - $1,900.00 in civil https://www.atto - -
GoodsAndMore, Inc. Goods and More Incorporated after the AG received tips alleging the store was selling hand seq. County Courtof  voluntary penalties; meygeneral.gov
sanitizer for unlawful prices on Amazon.com; the business allegedly sold 24-packs of 2- Common Pleas  compliance public protection and  taking:
ounce bottles of Assured hand sanitizer for as much as $109.99 per package and single 12- education purposes;  action/covid
ounce bottles of Purell hand sanitizer for as much as $39.00 each. $13,90148n 19/ag:shapiro-
restitution for stops-price
consumers. ‘gouging-on-
amazon-by-
scrantonseller/
Heirloom Organics 6/26/2020  Oregon AG Consumer fraud The Oregon Attorney General entered into an assurance of voluntary compliance with - Oregon - Assurance of  No Yes - - - - https://www.do. - -
e R Kits,“which voluntary state.or.us/media
implied, inaccurately, thatall contents were approved and tested by the CDC, OHSA, or compliance
WHO to provide protection specifically against coronavirus.
Holistic Health Acupuncture 6/26/2020  Oregon AG Consumer fraud The Oregon Attorney General entered into an assurance of voluntary compliance with - Oregon - Assurance of  No Yes - - - - -
ft voluntary
contact them for herbal treatments, diagnosis, or products related to COVID-19; the clinic compliance
g “herbal training" for theillness and “protocols for
fever, wheezing, body aches, respiratory concerns.”
Holistic Health, P.C. 6/26/2020  Oregon AG Consumer fraud The Oregon Attorney General entered into an assurance of voluntary compliance with - Oregon - Assurance of  No Yes - - - - -
Holistic Health, P.C. after the FTC alleged that the store was using marketing materials to voluntary
suggest Chinese herbal medicine worked to prevent and treat COVID-19. compliance
Inner Works Acupuncture 6/26/2020  Oregon AG Consumer fraud The Oregon Attorney General entered into an assurance of voluntary compliance with - Oregon - Assurance of  No Yes - - - - -
Inner Works A p o medicine for voluntary
COVID-19 prevention and treatment. compliance
Love Acupuncture & Wellness Group  6/26/2020  Oregon AG Consumer fraud The Oregon Attorney General entered into an assurance of voluntary compliance with Love - Oregon - Assurance of  No Yes - - - - -
Acupuncture & Wellness after the clinic allegedly promoted Chinese herbal medicine that voluntary
“yielded a 94% improvement rate” for COVID-19 patients; allegedly offered live video- compliance
topr 2 customized herbal prescription that
may reduce it toms and shorten fection; and allegedly
promoted a “Clear Lung Toxins Formula” that was purportedly created by a panel of four
traditional Chinese medicine practitioners and tested on 214 patients, with 90% improved.
James Mwanza 6/26/2020  USDO) Identity theft James Mwanza was charged with wire fraud, theft of government money, and aggravated 18 USC § 641, 10284, 1343 Texas £D.Tex. Criminal Yes No No 4:20-cr-00157-ALM-  1/20204/2020 - -
y g filing e tax returns with the IRS, enforcement
using unlawfully obtained personal identification information of other individuals. The
filing of false returns iggered payment of p ided
for under the CARES Act. indicted-theft-
covid-economi
impact-payments
Ameet Goyal 6/24/2020  USDO) PPP fraud Ameet Goyal was charged with wire fraud, bank fraud, and making false statements for, 18 USC §§ 1001, 1014, 1035, 1343, New York SONY. Criminal Yes No No 7:19-cr-00844-CS - - https://www.justi https://www.ju -
inter alia, allegedly seekingover $630,000 in forgivable loans guaranteed by the Small 1344, 1347,3147,2 enforcement cegov/usao:  stice.gov/usao-
Business Administration by falsely representing that he was not under indictment, when in sdny/pr/ophthal - sdny/oress
fact he was, and submitting two loan applications for the same business. mologist- release/file/128
previously- 8196/download
charged-
healthare fraud-
indicted-
defrauding:sba.
program
Jase DePaul Gautreaux 6/24/2020  USDO) PPP fraud Jase DePaul Gautreaux was charged with wire fraud, bank fraud, money laundering, and - Texas 5.0, Tex. Criminal Yes No No 4:20-mi-1106 - - https://wwwusti Gautreaux -
making for allegedly seeking over $13 million in enforcement ce.gov/opa/pr/te complaint
guaranteed by the Small B i by falsifying his identit xas-man-charged

the number of employees and payroll expenses of his putative businesses, and making covid-relief-fraud

other inaccurate statements.

Monica Magdalena Jaworska; Tarik Jaafar 6/24/2020  USDOJ PPP fraud Monica Magdalena laworska and Tarik Jaafar were charged with conspiring to commit wire 18 USC’§ 1349 Virginia ED.Va. Criminal Yes No No 1:20-mj-167 4/20205/2020 12 months in perison  https://wwwjusti Jaworskaand -
fraud for allegedly seeking over $1.4 million in forgivable loans guaranteed by the Small enforcement and two years of cegov/usao-  Jaafar
[ '8 18 PPP-program I lications in the names of supervised release  edva/pr/virginia- complaint
four businesses, while claiming certain payroll tax returns were filed with the Internal (1afaar); forfeiture  married-couple
(aworska) arrested-covid-

Revenue Service for each of those businesses when in fact they were not.
reliefloan-fraud



Nadine Consuelo Jackson 6/24/2020  USDO) PPP fraud Nadine Consuelo Jackson was charged with bank fraud and making a false statement for 18 USC §§ 1001, 1344 Ohio 5.0. Ohio Criminal Yes No No 3:20-mj-00301-5L0  3/20/2020-5/20/2020 24 months https://wwwjusti Jackson -
allegedly seeking over $2 milion in forgivable loans guaranteed by the Small Business enforcement incarceration cegov/usao-  complaint
Administration based on fictitious payroll expenses. She allegedly claimed to have 73
employees earning wages, when i fact there were few to no other employees working.

Ashland Natural Medicine; John 6/23/2020  Oregon AG Consumer fraud The Oregon Attorney General entered into an assurance of voluntary compliance with  ORS § 646.632 Oregon Jackson County  Assurance of  Yes Yes No 20021465 - - -
Chlebowski, ND, DC Ashland Natural Medicine and lohn Chlebowski, ND, DC that requires them to obey. Circuit Court  voluntary
Oregonfs UnlawulTrade pracice Act. Ashand Natural Melcine and Chcbowsi agreed compliance
to refrain from covi-
it approved by the FOA,
they nd the

and the claim o representation adheres to the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act and
any regulation promulgated by the FDA, including those promulgated pursuant to the
Nutrition Labeling and Education Act.

Fahad Shah 6/23/2020  USDO) PPP fraud Fahad Shah was charged with wire fraud, making a false statement, and money laundering 18 USC §§ 1014, 1343, 1957 Texas £D.Tex. Criminal Yes No No 4:20-¢r-00156 4/20205/2020 - https://www.justi https://www.ju -
for allegedly seeking over $3 million in forgivable loans guaranteed by the Small Business enforcement ce.gov/opa/pr/te.stice.gov/opalp
Administraton bsed on citous payrol expenses. He alegedly daimed to have over 120 xas-man-charged- ress-

, when in fact b t the time; covid-reli elease/file/128
he submitted fraudulent documentation to support his loan application; and Shah used falsestatements- 8046/download
proceeds from the loan primarily for personal purchases. and-money-

laundering
Duke Inc. (d/b/a Regional Discount 6/22/2020  Pennsylvania AG  Price gouging The Pennsylvania Attorney General entered into an assurance of 73PS8§201-1etseq; 2321t Pennsylvania  Lancaster County Assuranceof  No Yes No 12004271 - $1,765.00in civil https://wwwatto - -
Pharmacy) Duke Inc. after the AG received tips aHegmglha( th store was sling NS face masks for  seq. Court of Common voluntary penalties; $181.25 for ~ reygeneral.gov/

unlawful prices; the by s at $8.00/each, Pleas compliance public protection and  taking.
education purposes;  action/covid-
$741.30n restitution  19/ag:shapiro-

for consumers stops-price-
gouging-at
regional-discount-
pharmacy-in-
lancaster/
Blackhawk Growth Corp. (*BLRZF") 6/22/2020  SEC Stock trading The SEC pended trading in th Corp. 15UsC§ 781 United states - Suspensionof ~ No Yes No Release No.89122  4/16/2020-5/11/2020  Temporary suspended ~ https://www.sec. - hitps://www
(BURZF because nf auestonsregrding theaccuracyand adequey of nformation in the trading trading gov/litigation/sus attorneygen
, including pensions/2020/3 eral.gov/wp-
made by Blackhawk between Apiland May 2020 n ressrelesses and nvdeo nterviews 4-89122.pdf content/uplo
regarding OVID- Kits in ads/2020/06
the United States and other countres, an s sales and delvery ofthose tes kis. 12020-06-08
Nature%E2%
80%995
Garder
AVC.pdf
Eljah Majak Buoi 6/22/2020  USDOJ PPP fraud Elijah Majak Buoi was charged with wire fraud and making false statements for allegedly 18 USC §5 1014, 1343 Massachusetts D, Mass. Criminal Yes No No 1:20-10130-F05  4/2020-6/2020 - https://www.usti Buoi indictment -
seeking over $13 million in forgivable loans guaranteed by the Small Business enforcement ce.gov/opa/pr/m
Administration based on fictitious payroll expenses. He allegedly misrepresented to the assachusetts-man
lender the number of employees he had, their payroll expenses, and that the United States charged-covid-
was the employees' primary residence. relief-fraud
Katrin Golian 6/18/2020  CaliforniaAG  Price gouging Katrin Golian wascharged with vilating an Executive Order prohibitng price gouging by GC§ 8665 California Los Angeles civil Yes No No 0100502 4/24/2020 - https://oag.cago https://oag.ca
gedly price for KN95 ive masks. County Superior  enforcement vinews/oress  ou/systemyfiles
i nvestigaton by the olfornia Department of ustice allegedly found tht Golian had Court releases/attorney. /attachments/p
been purchasing individual masks for $5 each and selling them at $10 each. general becerra: ress-
chargesfiled-  docs/Complaint
against-los %206-18-20.df
angeles-county-
pharmacist
Bookit Operating, LLC; Arthur Paul Finlaw 6/18/2020 Cor , LLC and Arthur Paul Finlaw were charged with engaging in unfairand  MGL ch. 934, § 2,940 CMR15.03  Massachusetts  Suffolk County  Civil Yes Yes No - 3/17/2020-3/21/2020 - https://www.mas https://www.m -
deceptive acts and practices in violaion of the Massachusetts Consumer Potection Actfor Superior Court  enforcement s.gov/news/ag:  ass.gov/doc/bo
'g money knowing the healeysues:  okit:
reservations would be cancelled due to the COVID-19 pandemic, and then refusing to pay online-travel:  complaint06-18-
refunds. agency-for-taking: 2020/download
money:-from-
consumers-an
refusingto-pay
Marcus Fultz (d/b/a Danielle's on 2nd);  6/18/2020  Ohio AG Price gouging Marcus and Ellen Fultz were charged with violating the Ohio Consumer Sales Practices Act  ORC §§ 1345.02, 1345.03 Ohio Athens County ~ Civil Yes No No 20-C10110 2/2020-3/2020 - hitps://www.ohi https://www.o -
Ellen Fultz (d/b/a Danelle's on 2nd) for allegedly hoarding hundreds of bottles of hand sanitizer during the COVID-19 pandemic Court of Common enforcement oattorneygeneral hioattorneygen
and selling them online via Amazon for 11 times the retail price. Pleas £ou/Media/New eral.gov/Files/8
s-Releases/June-  riefing:
2020/AG-Yost:  Room/News
Sues-Price- Releases/Consu
GougersWho:  mer-
Inflated-Hand: ~ Protection/06-
sanit 1820-danielle-
on-2nd.aspx
Michael George McQuarm 6/18/2020  USDO) PPP fraud Michael George McQuarn was charged with wire fraud and making false statements for 15 USC § 645; 18 USC § 1343 Texas W.D. Tex, Criminal Yes No No 1:20-mi-00526-AWA  4/2020-6/2020 - https://www.justi McQuarn -
allegedly seeking over $2 millon in forgivable loans guaranteed by the Small Business enforcement cegov/usao-  complaint
based on . He be submitted to the ‘wdtw/or/federal-
lender fraudulent appications and supporting paperwork,claming the funds were for complaintfiled:
legitimate business purposes, when in fact the money was used for his own personal use. against-austin
man-multi-million
dollar-fraud
scheme-related
David 1. leansonne I; Traffic Jam Events, 6/17/2020  FIC Deceptive marketing  David ). Jeansonne Il and Traffic James Events, LLC were charged with vilating the FIC Act 15 USC § 45 (under 15 USC§53)  Louisiana ED.La ciil Yes Yes Yes 2:20-0v-01740-WBV-DM 3/1/2020 c by FTC it fre. hut ft -
for plained how to obtain enforcement topursue a broader  gov/news- cov/systemyfil
federal Ct but lured to.a used car sale.
proceeding releases/2020/06 cases/traffic ia
[marketer-used: m_events_com
deceptive-covid- plaint.pdf
19-stimulus:
mailers-lure.
consumers
Landmark Supply, Inc. 6/17/2020  Pennsylvania AG  Price gouging The Pennsyk General entered into an assurance of Pl 73PS8§201-1etseq; 2320t Pennsyvania  BucksCounty  Assuranceof  No Yes No - - $2,150.00in civil https://wwwatto - -
Landmark Supply, Inc.aftr the AG received a consumer complaint lleging that seq. Court of Common voluntary penalties; $261.00 for ~ rmeygeneral.gov/
Pennsylvania pt hand r unlawful prices; Pleas compliance public protection and taking
allegedly sold 8 oz. bottles of “Purell Hand Sanitizer” to Pennsylvania pharmacies for $7.98 education purposes;  action/press-
and $9.50 per bottle, $160.51 in restitution  releases/ag-
for consumers shapiro-stops-
price-gouging-by
pa-pharmacy-

supplier/



Crawford Technology (HK) Co., LTD. 6/17/2020  USDOJ Consumer fraud Crawford Technology Group (HK) Co. LTD. was charged with violating the Federal Food, 18 USC§2;21USC§§331,333  New Jersey DN, Criminal No Yes No 20-mj-15272 5/6/2020 - hittps://wwwjusti https://www.ju_https://www

Drug and Cosmetic Act for allegedly causing misbranded enforcement cegov/usao-  stice.gov/usao- attorneygen
falsely purported ious filtrati i to be imported into the ni/pr/chinese-  ni/press eral gov/wp:
United States. The company allegedly and sold 140,4 dand manufacturer-  release/file/128 content/uplo
misbranded KN95 filtering face piece respirators to another company for import into the charged 6516/download ads/2020/05
United states. exporting: 2020-05-27-
defective-and- Quick-Stop-
misbranded- Mini-Mart-
masks falsely AVC.pdf
purporting
Morningside Church Productions, Inc.  6/16/2020  Arkansas AG Consumer fraud Morningside Church Productions, Inc., Jim Bakker, and Sherrill Sellman were charged with  AC § 4-88-107, 4-88-108 Arkansas Pulaski County  Civil Yes Yes No 60cv-20-3460 1/2020-3/2020 - https://arkansasa https://content -
4/b/a The Jim Bakker Show; Jim Bakker; violating the Arkansas Deceptive Trade Practices Act for allegedly falsely telling Arkansas Circuit Court enforcement ggov/media: govdelivery.co
Sherrill sellman consumers that colloidal silver products would cure, eliminate, kll or deactivate COVID-19. center/news-  m/attachments

releases/rutledge- /ARAG/2020/06
sues-jim-bakker- /16/file_attach
forpeddling:  ments/1475207
colloidalsilver:  /2020.06
products-to-cure- 16%20-

covid-19/ %20Morningsid
€%20Church%2
0Complaint.pdf
Rahul shah 6/16/2020  USDOJ PPP fraud Rahul Shah was charged with bank fraud and making a false statement for allegedly seeking 18 USC §§ 1014, 1344 Hinois NI Criminal Yes No No 1:20¢1-00293 4/30/20205/18/2020 - hitps://www.justi https://www.ju -
over $400,000 in forgi by the Small B istration based enforcement ce.gov/opapr/ill stice.gov/opa/p
on fictitious payroll expenses. He allegedly tothe nois-business:  ress:
different false and fraudulent IRS documer owner-charged:  release/file/128
expenses. covid-relief-fraud 5796/download
Nosayamen lyalekhue; Esogie Osawaru  6/15/2020  USDOJ Consumer fraud Nosayamen lyalekhue and Esogie O with wire gedly  18USC§1343 Massachusetts  D. Mass. Criminal Yes No No 1:20-m{-07137-1C8  10/2018-12/2018 - hitps://wwwusti Iyalekhue and -
participating in a series of romance, pandemic unemployment insurance, and other online enforcement (although the DOJ press cegov/usao-  Osawaru
scams designed to defraud victims by convincing ther to send money to accounts release alleged that the ma/pr/two-  complaint
controlled by the defendants. These scams allegedly included collecting unemployment schemes continued nigerian-nationals
insurance in the name of others during the COVID-19 pandemic. through the COVID-19 charged-
pandemic) defrauding
victims-using:
online-scams
Johnny T. Stine; North Coast Biologics ~ 6/12/2020  Washington AG  Consumer fraud Johnny T. Stine and his company North Coast Biologics were charged with violating the  RCW 19.86.020 Washington ~ King County ~~ Civl Yes Yes No 20-209935-0 3/2020-4/2020 - https://www.ate. https://agportal -
Washington State Consurmer Protection Act for allegedly advertising a vaccine for COVID-19 Superior Court  enforcement wa.gov/news/ne s3bucket.s3.am
and administering said product to about 30 people, most of whom were Washingtonians, ws-releases/ag:  azonaws.com/2
without taking proper steps to evaluate its safety or effectiveness. ferguson-files-  020_06_12Com
lawsuit-against- plaint.pdf
seattle-business-
marketed-and
sold-covid-19
Nelson Gomes; Michael Luckhoo- 6/11/2020  SEC Securities fraud Nelson Gomes, Michael Luckhoo-Bouche, Shane Schimidt, Douglas Roe, Kelly Warawa, 15 USC§§ 77, 78jand17 CFR §  Massachusetts . Mass. civil Yes Yes No 1:20-v-11092-FDS  1/2018-6/2020 - https://www.sec. https://www.se -
Bouche; Shane Schmidt; Douglas Roe; Atlantean Management Corporation, and FFS Capital L b , FFS Capital, enforcement gov/news/press-  c.gov/litigation/
Kelly Warawa; FFS Capital Limited; fraud; Nelson Gomes, Douglas Roe, Kelly Warawa, Michael Luckhoo-Bouche, FFS Capital,  Schmid, Roe, Warawa, Luckhoo, release/2020-131 complaints/202
Paifang Trading Limited; Artefactor Atlantean Management Corporation, Paifang Trading Limited, Artefactor Limited, Meadow  Atlantean); 15 USC § 77 (Gomes, 0/comp-pr2020-
Limited; Atiantean Management Asia Limited, and Thyme i i ings of FFS Capital, Roe, Warawa, 131.odf
Corporation; Meadow Asia Limited; securities; Nelson Gomes was charged with failing to report over five percent beneficial  Luckhoo, Atlantean, Paifang,
Thyme International Limited ownership; and , Michael , and FFS Capital g Artefactor, Meadow Asia, Thyme

with aiding and abetting for a stock-dumping scheme that were boosted by promotional  International); 15 USC § 78m and
campaigns that, in some instances, included false and misleading information designed to 17 CFR § 240.13d-1 (Gomes); 15

fraudulently capitalize on the COVID-19 pandemic. USC 8§ 770, 78t (Gomes, Luckhoo,
FFS Capital)
Stephen Matthew Shumaker 6/11/2020  USDO) Cor Stephen charged with mail fraud and knowingly distributing and 7 USC §6 136}, 1361; 18 USC § 1341 Georgia N.D.Ga. Criminal Yes No No 1:20-m}-00457-CCB  4/27/2020 - hitps://www.usti Shumaker -
selling a misbranded pesticidal device for allegedy soliciting thousands of Georgia residents enforcement cegov/usao-  complaint
with false claims that the "Beyond Guardian Air* air purifier kills every major viral and ndga/or/georgia:
bacterial infection, including the COVID-19 coronavirus disease, in the home. The device resident-arrested:

was also allegedly a misbranded pesticidal device. scheme-sell-
illegal-products
dlaiming-protect-
against-covid

Amazon.com Services LLC 6/10/2020  EPA FIFRA violation The EPA issued a Stop Sale, Use, or Removal Order to Amazon.com Services LLC for 7USC 136 (under 7USC§ 136k) Washington - civil No Yes No - 12/2019-6/2020 - https://www.epa https://www.e -
Violating the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act by allegedly distributing or enforcement gov/enforcemen pa.gov/sites/pr
selling, and intending to continue distributing or selling, unregistered pesticides and t/stop-sale-use-  oduction/files/2
misbranded pesticides, including some with claims for use against SARS-CoV-2, the virus or-remov; 020-
that causes COVID-19. Amazon.com had 30 days to account for these products. ordersissued-  06/documents/.

amazoncom:  amazonssuro.p
services-ic o

eBay, Inc. 6/10/2020  EPA FIFRA violation ‘The EPA issued a Stop Sale, Use, or Removal Order to eBay, Inc. for violating the Federal 7 USC § 136] (under 7 USC§ 136k) California - cil No Yes No - 3/2018-6/2020 - https://www.epa https://www.e -
Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act by allegedy distributing or selling, and intending. enforcement gov/enforcemen pa.gov/sites/pr
to continue distributing or selling, pesticides that were unregistered, misbranded, or that tstop-sale-use-  oduction/files/2

i , includi unapproved claims for use against or-removal-order- 020-
SARS-CoV-2, the virus that causes COVID-19, and/or coronavirus. e8ay had 10 days to issued-ebay-inc  06/documents/
account for these products. ebayssuro.pdf

Frank Borgese; Borgese Holdings, Inc.  6/10/2020  NewYorkAG  Consumer fraud Frank Borgese and Borgese Holdings, Inc. d/b/a IMPACT Medical & Surgical Solutions were EXC5 63 New York New York County Civil Yes Yes No (No number yet found) 3/2020-5/2020 - https://ag.ny.gov https:/fag.ny.g -

d/b/a IMPACT Medical & Surgical charged with fraud for ing in repeated and persistent i State Supreme  enforcement [press- oufsites/default

Solutions practices related to the P P jpment, such as Court release/2020/att ffiles/people v.
3M-branded masks and irator masks. These llegedi omey-general- _borgese et al.
included repeatedly and persistently making false, deceptive, and misleading solicitations; james-sues- - petition.pdf
offering for i respirator masks which B and Borgese Holdings did purported-ppe-
not possess and could not deliver; providing deceptive delivery times belied by their own broker-repeated-
experiences; and providing misleading information about the products they purported to fraud-during

sell, as well s a fake reference, to prospective purchasers.

Approximately $205,242.23 in Paypal, Inc.6/10/2020  USDOJ Consumer fraud ‘The United States brought a civilforfeiture action to recover more than $543,000 from 18 USC §6 1341, 1343, 1956, 1957 Virginia W.D.Va. ciil Yes No No 7:20-v-00321-6KD  2/2020-6/2020 - hitps://www.usti https://www.ju_https://www
‘Account No. XXXOOOOXXNK2882, individuals based in China who purported to sell face masks and N-95 respirators at inflated (under 18 USC§ 981) enforcement cegov/usao-  stice.gov/usao- .attorneygen
Approximately $128,868.73 n Paypal, Inc. prices but never shipped the products. wdva/pr/us-files: wdva/press- eral.gov/wp-
‘Account No. XXXOOOO0XKKIE3S, civil-forfeiture:  release/file/128 content/uplo
Approximately $194,982.40 in Paypal Inc. complaint-covid: 4056/download ads/2020/05
Account No. XXXXXOXXXK2700, 19-fraud-case
and Approximately $13,923.97 in Paypal
Inc. Account No. Plus-AVC.pdf
X077 14
Jason C. Nielsen 6/9/2020  SEC Securities fraud Jason Nielsen was charged with securities fraud for allegedy attempting to drive the stock 15 USC § 77, 78i, 78 17 CFR§  California ND. Cal. civil Yes No No 5:20v-03788 3/2/20204/13/2020 - https://www.sec. https://www.se -

price of Arrayit C igher by using online investors to 240.10b-5 enforcement gov/news/press-  c.gov/litigation/

purchase shares, including numerous messages repeating a false assertion regarding an release/2020-128 complaints/202

approved COVID-19 test, without disclosing Nielsen's own large position in Arrayit stock, or 0/comp-pr2020-

his plans to sell the shares ying. Nielsen al the 128.0df

false impression of high demand for Arrayit stock by placing and subsequently canceling
several large orders to purchase shares, a tactic known as "spoofing.”



Mark Schena 6/9/2020 Uspo) Securities fraud Mark Schena was charged with securities fraud and conspiring to commit health care fraud 15 USC 86 78], 78ff; 18 US.C.§5  California N.D. Cal Criminal Yes No No 5:20-mj-70721-MAG  2016-6/2020 - hittps://wwwjusti https://www.ju -

for allegedly paying kickbacks and bribes to recruiters and doctors to run allergy screening  1347,1349; 17 CFR § 240-10b.5 enforcement ce.gov/opa/pr/m stice.gov/opalp
tests on his company Arrayit Corporation’s proprietary testing system, and issuing press edical-technology ress-

releases and tweet: with major company- release/file/128
without disclosing the partnerships did not exist or were of de minimis value. As the COVID- president- 3931/download
19 crsis escalated, Id provid te, fast, charged-scheme-

relable and cheap COVID-19 tests incompliance with sate and federal egulaions, and defrauctinvestors

made numerous misrepresentations to potential investors about the COVID-19 tests and and-health-care-

Arrayit's future prospects for COVID-19 testing. benefit

Nature's Garden, Ltd. 6/8/2020  Pennsylvania AG  Price gouging The Pennsylvania d into an assurance of 73PS5§201-1etseq; 23216t Pennsylvania  BerksCounty  Assuranceof  No Yes No - - $1,400.00 in civil https://www.atto - -
Nature's arden, L. afer the AG rceived tps aleging that thestore wasselling seq. Court of Common voluntary penalties; $202.75 for  rneygeneral.gov/
facemasks for unlawful prices; the business 28 two-packs Pleas compliance public protection and  taking-
$23.95 per pair. education purposes;  action/covid
$224.00 in restitution  19/ag-shapiro-
for consumers stops-price
gouging-at-
natures garden
in-readin
Geoffrey Palermo 6/5/200  USDO) PPP fraud Geoffrey B wire fraud, e fraud, and makmg 2 18USC§1014, 1343, 1346 california N.D.Cal Criminal Yes No No 3:20-mi-70681-AGT  12/2013-4/2020 - https://wwwjusti Palermo hitps://www
for enforcement cegov/usao-  complaint michigan.go
schemes and makingfls statements on oan applications. Amon these aneged s:hemex, ndca/pr/bay-area v/documents
Palermo allegedly sought millions of dollars in forgivable loans guaranteed by the SBA, hospitality-and- [ag/BioMed
ifying that his company had hom it was paying salaries and automotive AVC 515
payroll taxes, when in fact Palermo decided not to pay required payroll taxes since at least executive: 15_signed ¢
mid-2019. charged-fraud ooy with att
achment_69
1118 7.pdf
King Year Packaging and Printing Co. Ltd. 6/5/2020  USDOJ Consumer fraud King Year Packaging and Printing Co. Ltd. was :harged with vmlaung the Federal Food, Drug 18 USC 6§ 1001, 2; 21 USC§5 331, New York EDNY. Criminal No Yes No 1:20-m{-00416:SMG  4/6/20204/21/2020 - hitps://www.usti https://www.ju -
and Cosmetic Act and making a ,200 333 enforcement stice.gov/usao
defective and misbranded masks that the company ) clamed o be NS5 resprators, and ni/press-
ausing ive products to be i the United States. release/file/128
3346/download
falsely-purporting
Benjamin Hayford 6/4/2020  USDOJ PPP fraud Benjamin Hayford was charged with embezzlement, making false statements, wire fraud, 18 USC 6§ 645, 1014, 143,134 Oklahoma N.D. Okla. Criminal Yes No No 4:20-m-00140-FHM  3/31/2020-5/2020 - https://wwwjusti Hayford -
and bank fraud for allegedly seeking millions of dollars in forgivable loans guaranteed by enforcement cegov/usao-  complaint
the Small Business Administration based on fictitious payroll expenses. He allegedly falsely ndok/pr/arkansas
represented to the lender that the company for which he applied for relief met the project-manager-
program’s requirement that it was in operation prior to Feb. 15, 2020, when in fact he did charged-
not create the partnership until April 2020, several days before applying the PPP loans. oklahoma-covid
reli
E*Hedge Securities, Inc; Devon W. Parks 6/3/2020  SEC Books and records, and  E*Hedge Securities, Inc. and Devon Parks were charged with failing to provide mandated 15 USC §6 80b-3a, 80b-4 Florida S.0. Fla. cil Yes Yes No 1202231100 4/14/20206/3/2020 - hitps://www.sec. https://www.se -
improper registration  books and records during an SEC examination and for improperly registering with the SEC enforcement gov/litigation/litr ¢.gov/iitigation/
as an Internet investment adviser. The two parties allegedy failed to produced books and eleases/2020/r2 complaints/202
records requested by SEC staff as required under the Investment Advisors Act, and 4825.htm 0/comp24825.
E*Hedge was allegedly improperly reg asan Inte nt it df
did not meet apy i d did not ise appear to be
aualife for regstration with the SEC.
Darrell Baker 6/3/2020  USDO) PPP fraud Darrell Baker was charged with wire fraud and money laundering for allegedly seeking 18 USC 8§ 1343, 1957 Michigan £, Mich. Criminal Yes No No 2:20-mj-30184-DUTY  5/13/2020-6/1/2020 - https://wwwusti Baker complaint -
$590,000in by the Small By enforcement ce gov/usao:
fictitious payroll expenses and allegedy using that money to cover Dersuna\ expenses. He edmi/or/detroit
t his comp: and resident-charged-
{hathe pad wages, s and other compensaton otaing $2. milen in 2019 when nfact covid-19-wire
the company was dissol d had no b Baker allegedly fraud-scheme

used the money to nurchase four cashiers checks and withdraw an additional $60,000 in
cash, which he used to purchase personal vehicles.

Michael Marc Travalino (aka "Mark White 6/2/2020  USDOJ Consumer fraud The DOJ sought to enjoin Marc Travalino from ongoing mail fraud and wire fraud for 18 USC 8§ 1341, 1343 (under 18 Texas W.D. Tex. civil Yes No No 4:20-0-00046-DC-DF  4/28/20205/28/2020 - https://wwwjusti Travalino -
Eagles") allegedly selling fraudulent COVID-19 cures through his business and his website. After  USC§ 1345) enforcement cegov/usao-  complaint
being warned by the FDA and FTC to stop, he sold his fraudulent COVID-19 treatments to ‘wdtw/or/federal-
an undercover agent. courtissues-
temporary-

restraining-order-
against-fort-davis
businessman

Joseph M. Cherry, I 5/29/2020  USDO) PPP fraud Joseph Cherry Il was charged with wire fraud, thef of government property, making false 18 USC 65 641,981,982, 1014, Virginia ED.Va. Criminal Yes No No 4:20-¢r-00027-RBS-LRL 3/30/2020-5/2020 51months inprison  https://wwwjusti Cherry hitps://www
tatements to the Small 8 d engaging in in 1343,1957,2 enforcement cegov/usao-  indictment ustice.gov/u
lly derived property for allegedly forgivable loans guaranteed edva/pr/man- sa0:
by the SBA. His| lication aleg ding his. indicted-covid-19 edvalpr/repe
income, employment, claimed business entities, and prior criminal record. Shortly after he related-loan- at-fraudster-
received the loan, he allegedly converted a $140,000 to cash or cashier's check. fraud sentenced

scheme

Quality King Distributors, Inc.; Glenn ~ 5/27/2020  NewYorkAG  Price gouging. Quality King Distributors, Inc. and its CEO Glenn Nussdorf were charged with price gouging - GBL 396-r; Executive Law § 63(12) New York New York County Civil Yes Yes No - 1/2020-4/2020 - https://ag.ny.gov. https:/fognyg -
Nussdorf for allegedly illegally increasing the company’s wholesale prices to sell Lysol disinfectant State Supreme  enforcement [ress oufsites/default
products to neighborhood grocery and discount stores in New York. Between January Court release/2020/att files/nyag_peti
2020 and April 2020, Quality King allegedly increased the price of Lysol Disinfectant Spray omey-general-  tion_in_quality
from about $4.25 per 19-ounce can to as high as $9.15 per can, even though the company james-sues- kmg proceedi
did not incur increased costs for the product. ‘wholesaler-price- ng.odf
‘gouging-during:
coronavirus
pandemic
Mukesh Patel (d/b/a Quick Stop Mini ~ 5/27/2020  Pennsylvania AG  Price gouging. The Pennsylvania Attorney General entered into an assurance of voluntary compliance with 73 PS §§ 201-1 etseq, 232.1et  Pennsyvania  Lehigh County  Assuranceof  Yes No No - - $500.00 in civl https://wwwatto - -
Market) Mukesh Patel after the AG received tips alleging that his store was selling hand sanitizer for seq. Court of Common voluntary penalties; $81.25 for  reygeneral.gov/
unlawful prices; the business allegedly sold S00mL bottles of “Chinese Letter Hand Pleas compliance public protection and  taking
Sanitizer” for $20 per bottle. education purposes;  action/covid-
$840.00 in restitution  19/ag-shapiro-
for consumers stops-price-
gouging:at
allentown-quick:
stop-mini-mart/
Abdul Raheem Abdul Jabbar, DBA 5/27/2020  USDO) Health care fraud AodulRaheerm Abdul abbar /o Freedom AZ LLC and Desert Mobile Transport, LLC, 18 USC § 1347 Arizona D. Ariz. Criminal Yes No No 220-m-03133-MTM  4/2020 - https://wwwjusti Jabbar
Freedom AZ, LLC and Desert Mobile Nohad Loabneh, and Abedelh uc ged with enforcement cegov/usao-  complaint
Transport, LLC; Nohad Loabneh; conspiring to commit health care fraud for allegedly lalsely billing Arizona's Health Care azfpr/united-
Abedelhalim Lawabni, DBA A&N Services, Cost Containment System (AHCCCS) for more than 9,000 non-emergency medical states-attorneys:
transports in April 2020, when in fact those transports never occurred, resulting in more office-announces-
than $2.75 million in unjustified payments by AHCCCS. charges fraud.




Jeremiah Faber 5/27/2020

Miguel Denga; Husam Alsadi, DBA Philia ~ 5/27/2020
Homecare, LLC; Tamarria Denga, DBA
cosi,uc

Micron Waste Technologies Inc. 5/26/2020
("MICWD")

Richard Schirripa (aka "the Mask Man") 5/26/2020

Ronald Romano, 5/26/2020
Baoke Zhang 5/22/2020
William Sadleir 5/22/2020
Tuning Element, LLC 5/21/2020

EZ Dollar Plus, LLC (d/b/a E-Z Dollar Plus) 5/21/2020

Muge Ma (aka "Hummer Mars") 5/21/2020

WOD Retail Solutions Inc. ("WOD Retail’) 5/20/2020

‘Samuel Morgan Yates 5/19/2020

BioMed Nutritional Center-Providence 5/15/2020
Parkway, LLC

Jeremiah Faber was charged with health care fraud and money laundering for allegedly
fraudulently submitting claims for reimbursement to Mercy Care, Arizona’s health care
benefit program, by billing for services that were medically unnecessary, as well a billing

the names of phy;

used his company Harmony Healthcare’s social media resence to offe free COVID-19
testing if patients also completed the company's assessment, which he then used for the

billing scheme.

Miguel Denga and Husam Alsadi d/b/a Philia Homecare, LLC, and Tamarria Denga d/b/a
COSI LLC were charged with conspiring to commit health care fraud for allegedy falsely
billing Arizona’s Health Care Cost Containment System (AHCCCS) for more than 1,500 non-
emergency medical transports in April 2020, when in fact those transports never occurred,
resulting in more than $450,000 in unjustified payments by AHCCCS.

The SEC temporarily suspended trading in the securities of Micron Waste Technologies
(“MICWD") because of questions regarding the accuracy and adequacy of information in
the marketpl icron Waste and its securiti

Micron Waste acquired Covid Technologies Inc., which represented that it was able to
rapidly manufacture personal protective equipment to meet the needs of the global
medical community during the COVID-19 pandemic.

Richard Schirripa was charged with violating the Defense Production Act, making false
statements, health care fraud, and aggravated identity theft for allegedly hoarding scarce
N9S masks and selling them at inflated prices; for falsely claiming to the DEA that he
transferred to others, sold, or destroyed controlled substances when in fact he kept them
in a safe in his home; and for falsely billing Medicare and Medicaid for these controlled
substance prescriptions by using his pharmacy's patients’ personal identifying information.

Ronald Romano was charged with conspiring to commit wire fraud, mail fraud, and

conspiring to violate the Defense Production Act for

resale personal p

, an
atempting o el the equlpmenl at elevated prices. Brokers acting on behaf of Romano

w York City their
cauipment, and Romano submitted  ase and miseading document o New Yor Gty
referring to a deal with Florida authorities that never occurred.

Baoke Zhang was charged with wire lraud and bank fraud fo allegedly seeking millons in

ictitious
expenses. Zhang allegedly provnded (raudulent documents o two different loners

support of applications for the loans.

William Sadleir was charged with wire fraud, bank fraud, and making false statements for
allegedly seeking over $1.7 million in forgivable loans guaranteed by the Small Business

Sadlir used th proceeds t pay ot personl expenses, ncluding redit cad debts and a

car loan.

Tuning Element, LLC was charged with price gouging and making misrepresentations
regarding face masks and respirators it allegedly began selling during the COVID-19
pandemic. The markups allegedly included 5-layer KN95 masks for $20 each; 3-layer KN95
masks for $15 each; and 50-count boxes of 3-layer disposable masks for $99, even though
these items typically sold for much less. The company also allegedly misrepresented the
respiratory and anti-infection protection provided by these products and their approval by

the FDA and other federal agencies.

guaranleed hylhe Smal

Administration based on ficti

BioMed Nutritional C

The Pennsyl into an assurance of
€2 ollar Plu, LLC ater the AG received tps alleging that the store wassellng facemasks
and hand sanitizers for unlawful prices; the business allegedly sold 20-packs of facemasks

for $24.99 and 2-ounce hand sanitizers for $5.99.

Muge Ma was charged with bank fraud, wire fraud, fraud against the United States, and
making alse statements fo legedl e

8 millons of dolars inforgivabe oans
based on fictitious

that he owned

illons i wages, when n foct Ma was the oy empleyee o thse companics.

The SEC temporarily suspended trading in

because of questions regarding the accuracy and adequacy of information in the
marketplace. WOD Retailallegedy claimed that its automated kiosks for selling retail items
in gyms would generate additional revenue as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, when in
fact the company had earned no revenue in 2018 or 2019, and text and email promotions
froman unknom source limed WOD Retalwould expand bisinessto'ake adantage of

the need for its products during the COVID-19 pand
lack of business activity and revenue.
Samuel Yates was charged with wire fraud, bank fraud, and making false statements for
allegedly seeking millions of dollars in forgivable loans guaranteed by the Small Business
ious payroll expenses. He allegedy falsely claimed that he

'ad over 400 employees earning wages, when in fact he had no employees working for the
purported business.

The Michigan Attorney General entered into an assurance of voluntary compliance with

, LLC after the company
the Michigan Consumer Protection Act by selling hand sanitizer, gloves, and masks at
grossly inflated prices.
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Ashley Hoobler Parris 5/15/2020  USDOJ

Applied Biosciences Corp. 5/14/2020  SEC

Turbo Global Partners, Inc.; Robert W.
Singerman

5/14/2020  SEC

XephyrLLC d/b/a N-Ergetics; Brad Brand; 5/14/2020
Derill . Fussell; Linda Fussell

UsDo)

Knature Co, Inc. d/b/a Insan Healing; ~ 5/13/2020  Los Angeles ity
Angela Oh Attorney
Maurice Fayne (aka "Arkansas Mo") 5/13/2020 Usbo)
Shashank Shekhar Rai 5/13/2020 Usbo)

Matthew Owens. 5/11/2020 Usbo)

Apna Bazaar LLC (d/b/a Apna Bazar);  5/7/2020  California AG
Rajvinder Singh

Tejz, Inc. (d/b/a Convenience Smoke  5/7/2020  Pennsylvania AG
Shop and d/b/a Fresh & Easy

Convenience Store)

Shawn Parcells 5/5/2020 Kansas AG
Custom Protection Services, Inc. ("CSPS") 5/5/2020  SEC

David Adler Staveley (aka "Kurt David 5/5/2020 UsDoJ
Sanborn" and "David Sanborn”)

David Butziger 5/5/2020 Usbo)

Health care fraud

Securities fraud

Securities fraud

Consumer fraud

Consumer fraud

PPP fraud

PPP fraud

Consumer fraud

price gouging.

Price gouging.

Consumer fraud

Stock trading

PP fraud

PPP fraud

Ashley Hoobler Parris was charged with conspiring to violate the Anti-Kickback Statute and 18 USC §6 371, 1349
conspiring to commit health care fraud for allegedly soliciting and receiving llegal kickback

payments from the owners and operators of a diagnostic testing laboratory in exchange for

referring Medicare beneficiaries to this laboratory. Her scheme later involved pai

kickbacks on a per-test basis for COVID-19 tests, provided that those tests were bundled

with other more expensive tests.

Applied BioSciences Corp. was charged with securities fraud for allegedly issuing a March
2020 press release that it had begun offering and shipping supposed finger-prick COVID-19
tests to the general public that could be sed for "Homes, Schools, Hospitals, Law

Enf , Military, anyone wanting d priy 3
when in fact the tests were not intended for home use by the general public and could only
be administered in consultation with a medical professional. Moreover, the company
allegedly had not shipped any COVID-19 tests by March 2020, and it tests were not
authorized by the FA.

Turbo Global Partners, Inc. and its CEO Robert W. Singerman were charged with securities
fraud for allegedly issuing press releases that the company could sell products that could
assist in detecting individuals infected with the COVID-19 virus, when i fact the products
could not, and Singerman drafted the press releases knowing they were false.

15 USC § 78); 17 CFR § 240.10b-5,

15 USC § 78); 17 CFR § 240.10b-5,

‘The DOJ sought to enjoin Xephyr LLC d/b/a N-Ergetics and its owners Brad Brand, Derill )
Fussell, and Linda Fussell from selling colloidal silver, which they promoted as a treatment
and cure for COVID-19, despite it not being approved by the FDA for that purpose or being
recognized by qualified experts as safe and effective.

‘The LA City Attorney has reached a settlement with Knature Co. Inc., d/b/a Insan Healing,
and its CEO Angela Oh in connection with the company’s misleading claims that ts Radish
Paste product could prevent or protect against COVID-19. Pursuant to the settlement,
defendants must make restitution and pay a civil penalty, in addition to being enjoined
from making further misleading claims about their products.

Code § 17200 et seq. (Unfair
Competition Law); Business and
Professions Code § 17500 et seq.
(False Advertising Law)

18USC§ 1344

Maurice Fayne was charged with bank fraud for allegedly seeking millions in forgivable

Small B that he certified he would use to
retain workers and cover business expenses. But Fayne allegedly used over $1.5 million of
the loan proceeds for personal expenses, including jewelry and child support.

Shashank Rai was charged with wire fraud, bank fraud, and making false statements for
allegedly seeking millions of dollars in forgivable loans guaranteed by the Small Business
Administration based on fictitious payroll expenses. He allegedly falsely claimed that he
had ges, when in fact he working for the
purported business.

15 USC §6 645; 18 USC §6 1014,
1343,1344

Matthew Owens was charged with smuggling and the receipt and delivery of misbranded
drugs for allegedly purchasing, importing, and offering for sale chloroguine imported from
China.

18 USC § 545; 21 USC § 331

Apna Bazaar LLC and Rajvinder Singh were charged with misdemeanor price gouging for
allegedly increasing the prices of essential food items over the 10 percent threshold under
c gouging law, including , gin beans, instant noodles,
tea, chili peppers, pomegranates and red yams,

PC§3%6

The Pennsylvania Attorney General entered into an assurance of voluntary compliance with 73 PS §§ 201-1 et seq., 232.1 et
Teiz, Inc. after the AG received a tip alleging that the store was selling Lysol cleaning wipes ~seq.

for unlawful prices; the business allegedly sold Lysol wipes for $8.99 and $14.99, depending

on the size,

‘The Kansas AG sought to enjoin Shawn Parcells from offered consulting services for -
coronavirus and COVID-15, which allegedly amounted to deceptive or unconscionable
misrepresentations in violation of the Kansas Consumer Protection Act. Parcells was
allegedly offering to enter homes and businesses, perform swabs for purported

coronavirus testing and examine deceased persons to determine if they were positive for
covip-1s,

‘The SEC temporarily suspended trading in the securities of Custom Protection Services Inc.
("CSPS") because of questions regarding the accuracy and adequacy of information in the
marketplace about CSPS and its securities since at least March 2020, CSPS allegedly issued
potentially I L frontiine
for COVID-19, the overwhelming response it received, and that it would ear $10,000 each
day in gross revenue from new contracts.
David Staveley was charged with conspiring to make a false statement, conspiring to
commit bank fraud, and ted identity theft for alleg 8 $438,500in

Small B fictitious payrol
expenses. Staveley, after discussing submitting fraudulent loans applications with his
alleged co-conspirator David Butziger, claimed on his loan application to have dozens of
employees earning wages at three restaurants he owned, when in fact two of the
restaurants had no employees and Staveley did not own the third restaurant.
David Butziger was charged with conspiring to make a false statement, conspiring to
commit bank fraud, and bank fraud, for allegedly seeking $105,381 in forgivable loans
guaranteed by the Small 8 i based on fictitious 3
Butziger, after discussing loans applications with his alleged co-
conspirator David Staveley, claimed on his loan application to have seven full-time

I his payroll, when there such.

15UsC5 781

18 USC 86 371, 10284, 1349

18 USC §6 371, 1344, 1349

Florida

New York

Florida

21USC § 331 (under 21 USC § 332) Oklahoma
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CNS Pharmaceuticals Inc. ("CNSP")

Moleculin Biotech, Inc. ("MBRX")

WPD Pharmaceuticals, Inc. ("WCOTF")

Nano Magic Inc.

"NMGX")

5/1/2020

5/1/2020

5/1/2020

4/30/2020

My Doctor Suggests LLC (d/b/a My Health 4/29/2020

Supplier); GP Silver LLC; Gordon
Pedersen

Marc Ching (d/b/a Whole Leaf Organics) ~4/28/2020

Marc Ching (d/b/a Whole Leaf Organics) ~4/28/2020

Praxsyn Corporation; Frank J. Brady

Charles Mok

Rodney Lewis Stevenson, I

Donald Allen; Manuel Revolorio

Michael Evan Noteboom

4/28/2020

4/28/2020

4/28/2020

4/27/2020

4/26/2020

Amardeep Singh (aka "Bobby Singh® and 4/24/2020

"Bobby Sidana")

Purity Health and Wellness Centers, Inc.; 4/24/2020

Jean Juanita Allen

SEC

SEC

SEC

SEC

UsDO)

FTC

FTC

SEC

UsDO)

UsDO)

UsDO)

lowa AG

UsDo)

UsDO)

Stocktrading

Stocktrading

Stocktrading

Stocktrading

Consumer fraud

Consumer fraud

Consumer fraud

Securities fraud

Health care fraud

Consumer fraud

Consumer fraud

price gouging.

Price gouging

Consumer fraud

The SEC trading in s Inc

(“CNSP") because of questions regarding the accuracy and adequacy of information in the

marke(p\ace about CNSP and its securities since at least March 2020. CNSP and others
press releases about pment of a drug candidate, the status of

{esting that g on COVID 16, and hei abityto expedie regulatoy pprovalofany such

treatment.

The SEC temporarily suspended trading in the securities of Moleculin Biotech, Inc. ("MBRX") 15 USC § 781

because of questions regarding the accuracy and adequacy of information in the

marketplace about MBRX and its securities since at least March 2020, MBRX and others

issued potentially bout their a

the status of testing that drug on COVID-19, and their ability to expedite regulatory

approval of any such treatment.

The SEC temporarily suspended trading in the securities of WPD Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

("WCOTF") because of questions regarding the accuracy and adequacy of information in

the markeplace about WCOT and s securiessnce at et March 2020, WCOTF and

others issued potentially bout their adrug

candidate th status o testing tht drug on COVID-19, and their abilfty to erpecite

regulatory approval of any such treatment.

The SEC temporarily suspended trading in the securities of Nano Magic, Inc. ("NMGX")

because of questions regarding the accuracy and adequacy of information in the

ketplace about NMGX since 2020, The information
that the company had a patent for a disinfectant that kills “coronavirus," and a statement
made by the company in Aprilregarding its involvement in the fight against COVID-19,

15UsC§ 781 United States

United States

15UsC§ 781 United States

15UsC§ 781 United States

The DOJ sought to enjoin Gordon Pedersen and his companies My Doctor Suggests LLC
d/b/a My Health Supplier and GP Silver LLC from ongoing wire fraud and mail fraud for
silver pr

18 USC 661341, 1343 (under 18 Utah
usc§ 1345)

moting e ucts for the

gedly pr
prevention of COVID-19.

Marc Ching, doing business as Whole Leaf Organics, was charged with violating the FTC Act 15 USC §§ 45, 52 -
for allegedly making false or unsubstantiated COVID-19 claims in connection with the

advertising, promotion, offering for sale, or sale of Thrive, an ingestible product consisting

of Vitamin Cand In particular, Ct that Thrive treats,
prevents or reduces the risk of COVID1S.

The FTC sought to enjoin Marc Ching, doing business as Whole Leaf Organics, from ongoing 15 USC §§ 45, 52 (under 15 USC§  California
violations of the FTC Act for allegedly selling a supplement consisting mainly of Vitamin C  53)

and herbal extracts that he claimed was effective at treating, preventing, or reducing the

risk of COVID-19. In fact there was no proof that any product would treat and prevent

coviD-1s,

Praxsyn Corp. and its CEO Frank Brady were charged with securities fraud for allegedly
issuing false and misleading press releases claiming that the company was able to acquire
and supply large quantities of N95 or similar masks to protect wearers from the COVID-19
virus, when in fact Praxsyn never had any masks in its possession, nor any orders for masks,
nor any contract with a manufacturer or supplier to obtain masks.

Charles Mok was charged with healthcare fraud and conspirin to commit health care
fraud for allegedly submitting false and to Medicare, i for
high-dose intravenous vitamin C infusions to patients at risk of contracting COVID-19, while
failing to observe protocols to isolate patients who tested positive for COVID-19.

15 USC § 78); 17 CFR § 240.10b5 Florida

18 USC 65 1347, 1349 Michigan

Rodney Stevenson Il was charged with wire fraud for allegedly operating an e-commerce California

web site that scammed customers into paying for N95 masks that they never received.

18 USC§§ 1343, 2

Donald Allen and Manuel Revolorio were charged with conspiring to commit wire fraud for 18 USC’§ 1349
allegedly secking more than $4 million from a purported purchaser of personal protective

equipment, even though the two did not own nor had authorization to sell such

equipment.

New York

ael Evan sued by the lowa Z - Towa
excesiv prices on more than 250items on eBa, ncudin tllt aper, paper towels and

Further investigation allegedly showed that from

March 2 through March 27, the seller had sold 253 items needed by COVID-19 disaster

victims on eBay to consumers in California, llinois, New York, Michigan, Texas and several

states. The highest price item was a 12-count package of Bounty paper towels for $119.99.

disinfecting izing produc

d h Defense Producti for allegedly
hoaring persona protectiv equipment duringthe COVID-19 pandermic,and seling tem
atinflated prices.

50 USC §§ 4512, 4513 New York

‘The DOJ sought to enjoin Purity Health and Wellness Centers, Inc. and one of its principals, 18 USC § 1343 (under 18USCS  Texas
Jean Juanita Allen, from ongoing wire fraud for allegedly claiming that one of Purity Health's 1345)

treatments was 95 percent effective even for someone who had tested positive for COVID-

19, and that their treatment was the only prevention for the disease, as well as other

diseases including cancer, SARS, and Ebola

0. Utah

cD.cal.

SD. Fla.

E.D. Mich,

N.D. Cal

EDN.Y.

Sioux County
District Court

EDN.Y.

N.D. Tex.
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1/1/2018-4/24/2020

2/28/2020-4/15/2020

3/2020-4/2020

3/25/2020-4/8/2020

Under the terms of his
Deferred Prosecution
Agreement with the
Government, Singh will
donate PPE valued at
more than $450,000 to
hospitals, health care
providers, first
responders and other
essential workers
involved wit
addressing the needs
of those affected by
the pandemic and
‘working to prevent the
spread of COVID-19.
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David J. Jeansonne II; Traffic Jam Events, 4/23/2020
General

Red Star Trader; Peter Lamm; Caroline ~ 4/23/2020  Minnesota AG

Predictive Technology Group, Inc. 4/21/2020  sEC

("PRED")

SCWork Corp. (*SCWond') 4/21/200  seC

SpectrumDNA, Inc. ("SPXA") 4/21/2020  sEC

Matthew Colvin; Noah Colvin 4/21/2020  Tennessee AG

Ponte Investments, LLC (d/b/a SBA Loan  4/17/2020  FTC
Program and SBA Loan Program.com);
John C. Ponte

Kenzley Ramos 4/17/2020  Texas State

Securities Board

Dr. Ray L. Nannis P.C. d/b/a Optimum
Wellness Solutions; Dr. Ray L. Nannis

4/17/2020  USDOJ

Genesis Il Church Of Health And Healing; 4/17/2020  USDOJ
Mark Grenon; Joseph Grenon; Jordan
Grenon; Jonathan Grenon

PreCheck Health Services, Inc. (HLTY')  4/16/2020  SEC
Jennings Ryan Staley

4/16/2020  USDOJ

BioXyTran, Inc. (“BIXT") 4/15/2020  SEC

Bravatek Solutions, Inc. (*BVTK") 4/15/2020  SEC

Signpath Pharma, Inc. ("SGTH") 4/15/2020  SEC

Florida Attorney.

Deceptive marketing

Price gouging

Stock trading

Stock trading

Stock trading

price gouging.

Consumer fraud

David J. Jeansonne Il and Traffic James Events, LLC were charged with violating the Florida  FS § 501.204 Florida
Deceptive and Unfair Trade Practices Act for allegedly deceiving consumers with malers

hat how to obtain federal C( benefis, but actually
lured the recipients to a used car sale.

Red Star Trader, Peter Lamm, and Caroline Lamm entered into an assurance of Executive Order 20-10 Minnesota
A gedly & the products it had already
purchased at prices that were significantly higher than the prices they had previously
charged. For example, prior to the COVID-19 crsis, Red Star Trader allegedly sold 100-packs
of sterile alcohol prep pads for $4.80, but began selling them after the start of the COVID-
19 crisis for $7.90 each, plus shi Red Star Trader items, like
rice, which it had purchased from local stores for around $30, at the price of $120,
including shipping. Red Star Trader's inventory of excessively-priced items allegedly
included food, health care goods, pharmaceuticals, medical supplies, and personal hygiene,
sanitation, and cleaning goods.
The SEC temporarily susp Predictive 8Y Group,
Inc. (*PRED") because of in
the marketplace about PRED since at least March 2020. The company allegedly issued prest
releases claiming that it could of serology
detect the presence of COVID-19 antibodies.

trading in 15UsC§ 781

‘The SEC temporarily suspended trading in the securities of SCWorx Corp. because of 15UsC§ 781 United states
questions regarding the accuracy and adequacy of information in the marketplace about

SCWorx, releases and 12020 about its

agreement to sell COVID-19 tests, and the company's current Form 8-K concerning the

same.

The SEC temporarily suspended trading in Inc. ("SPXA")  15USC§ 781 United States

because of questions regarding the accuracy and adequacy of information in the
marketplace about SPXA, including s financial condition and operations, given that the

company has not made a public disclosure since 2015 and has a name that was similar to a

private company manufacturing saliva collection devices as part of the response to the

COVID-19 pandemic.

The Tennessee Attorney General entered into an assurance of voluntary compliance with  TCA §§ 47-18-101-131
Matthew and Noah Colvin after learning about alleged price gouging involving their

emergency and medical supplies.

Tennessee

Ponte Investments, LLC (4/b/a SBA Loan Program and SBA Loan Program.com) and its 15 USC§ 45

owner John C. Ponte were charged with violating the FTC Act for allegedly falsely claiming
(sBA)

the U.S. Small By
small businesses as an approved lender under SBA's Paycheck Protection Program (PPP).

Consumer fraud

Consumer fraud

Stock trading

Consumer fraud

Stock trading

Stock trading

Stocktrading

ities Commi entered an emergency action to stop Kenzley Ramos  Tex. Rev. Civ. Stat. Ann. Arts. 581-1-Texas
from allegedly soliciting Texas residents with the claim that they could *profit off the 8145
coronavirus with forex.”

‘The DOJ sought to enjoin Dr. Ray Nannis, P.C. d/b/a Optimum Wellness Solutions and Dr. 18 USC § 1343 (under 18USC§  Texas
Ray Nannis from ongoing wire fraud for allegedly selling homeopathy that Dr. Nannis 1345)

claimed provided up to 90 percent protection from COVID-19 and was a cure for COVID-19

for allintents and purposes.

‘The DOJ sought to enjoin Genesis Il Church of Health and Healing and its principals Mark 21 USC § 331 (under 21 USC5§ 332) Florida
IS Joseph G , and from selling unapproved
new drugs and misbranded drugs in interstate commerce. The defendants had allegedly

been selling a product that they claimed would cure, mitigate, treat, or prevent

coronavirus, including COVID-19, as well as other diseases. The defendants allegedly

continued to sell their product even after they were jointly warned by the FDA and FTC.

‘The SEC temporarily trading in PreCheck Inc. 15USC§ 781
("HLTY") because of questions regarding the accuracy and adequacy of information in the

HLTY, including I in March 2020 about
HLTY's orders of COVID-19 tests for overseas customers.
Dr. Jennings Ryan Staley was charged with mail fraud in connection with the allegedly sale 18 USC § 1341
of what he described as a *100%” cure for COVID-19 that he said would render customers
immune to the virus for at least six weeks.

California

‘The SEC temporarily suspended trading in the securities of BioXyTran, Inc. (*BIXT") because 15 USC § 781

of questions regarding the accuracy and adequacy of information in the marketplace about

BIXT common stock, including press releases, blog posts, and a podcast between February

and March 2020 about the company’s ability to develop a drug to mitigate or treat COVID-

19, as well as concerns regarding possible stock manipulation between January and

February 2020.

‘The SEC temporarily suspended trading in the securities of Bravatek Solutions, Inc.

("BVTK") because of questions regarding the accuracy and adequacy of information in the
VTK, including d social media posts since at least

February 2020 about its business partner's disinfectant for COVID-19, its work to register

the disinfectant with the EPA, and a purported $150 million order.

The SEC temporarily suspended trading in the securities of Signpath Pharma, Inc. ("SGTH") 15 USC§ 781

because of questions regarding the accuracy and adequacy of information in the.

marketplace about SGTH, including a public claim made by the company in March 2020

regarding the development of a COVID-19 treatment.

15UsC5 781

United States

Rhode sland

United States

United States

United States

United States
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Court
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District Court
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3/2020 Respondents donated  https://www.tng - -

3/19/2020-4/14/2020

3/27/2020-4/9/2020

or surrendered all
Emergency Supplies
and/or Medical
Supplies in their
possession, custody, or
control to a non-profit
organization; they also
voluntarily waived any
interestin the
aforement
supplies and agreed to
the distribution of
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Mario F. Salwan; John Does 1 through

Big Brother Security Programs Inc.;

Shelley Palmer

Applied Biosciences Corp. (*APPB")

Arrayit Corporation ("ARYC")

Parallax Health Sciences, Inc. (*Parallax’)

Roadman Investments Corp. ("RMANF")

Solei Systems, Inc. ("SOLI")

Christopher Parris

Turbo Global Partners, Inc. ("TRBO")

Rong Sun (AKA Vicky Sun)

BiokLife Corp. f/k/a U.. Lithium Corp.
(UTH?)

Key Capital Corporation ("KCPC")

Prestige Capital Corp. ("PGEC")

Wellness Matrix Group, Inc. ("WMGR")

No Borders, Inc. ("NBDR")

Sandy Steele Unlimited Inc. ("Sandy
Steele”)

Frank Richard Ludiow

Baruch Feldheim

4/14/2020

4/14/2020

4/13/2020

4/13/2020

4/10/2020

4/10/2020

4/10/2020

4/10/2020

4/9/2020

4/9/2020

4/8/2020

4/7/2020

4/7/2020

4/7/2020

4/3/2020

4/3/2020

4/1/2020

3/30/2020

Ohio AG

Vermont AG

SEC

UsDo)

SEC

UsDo)

SEC

SEC

SEC

SEC

UsDO)

UsDO)

Price gouging

Price gouging

Stock trading

Stock trading

Stock trading

Stock trading

Stock trading

Contract fraud

Stock trading

FIFRA violation

Stock trading

Stocktrading

Stocktrading

Stock trading

Stock trading

Stocktrading

e v frau

Mario . Salwan and unnamed defendants were charged with violating Ohio's Valentine Act ORC §§ 133101, 1331.03, 1331.04, Ohio

and Consumer Sales Practices Act for allegedly hoarding N9S respirator masks and selling ~ 1331.06, 1345.02, 1345.03

them online via eBay for nearly 18 times their retail price.

Big Brother Security Programs Inc. and its owner Shelley Palmer were charged with violating 9 VSA § 2453
the Vermont Consumer Protection Act for alegedly importing surgical masks that cost 10

cents each and re-selling them to Central Vermont Medical Center for $2.50 each, at least a

500 percent mark-up.

‘The SEC temporarily suspended trading in the securities of Applied BioSciences Corp. 15UsC§ 781
("APPB") because of questions regarding the accuracy and adequacy of information in the
de by the company in March 2020 about
selling coronavirus test kits for home use.
‘The SEC temporarily suspended trading in the securities of Arrayit Corporation (*ARYC") 15 USC§ 781

because of questions regarding the accuracy and adequacy of information in the.
marketplace about ARYC, including statements made by the company in March 2020 that it
developed an approved COVID-19 blood test.

‘The SEC temporarily trading in th f Sciences, Inc. 15 USC§ 781
("Parallax" or "PRLX") because of questions regarding the accuracy and adequacy of

information in the stock, made

on its website and a series of press releases about the company’s purported development

ofa OVID-19, as well s it of

c i Kits and personal ipment.

‘The SEC temporarily trading in th f Roadman Investment 15UsC§ 781
("RMANF") because of questions regarding the accuracy and adequacy of information in

the marketplace about RMANF since February 2020, including a series of news releases

about the company's commercialization of cedar leaf oil as a promising treatment for

CovID-19.

The SEC trading in Inc. ("SOLI)  15USC§ 781

because of questions regarding the accuracy and adequacy of information in the

marketplace about SOLI common stock since March 2020, including a press release issued

by the company and a national the CEO of its wholly-

about that subsidiary's ability to provide COVID-19 testing kits that would allow a patient to

submit a testing sample from home.

Christopher Parri with wire fraud for v a series of fraudulent
from the i

million face masks and other personal protective equipment that would have totaled over

750 million. For example, Parris promised he could obtain millions of genuine 3M masks

from domestic factories when he knew that fulfilling the orders would be impossible. He

also made similar false representations to other entities in an effort to enter into other

fraudulent to

18USC§ 1343

The SEC temporarily suspended trading i the securities of Turbo Global Partners, Inc.
(“TRBO") because of questions regarding the accuracy and adequacy of information in the
marketplace about TRBO common stock, including press releases regarding an agreement
with another company to provide non-contact human temperature screening and facial
recognition technology to TRBO, and TRBO's ability o ship this technology within five days
of receiving an order.

Rong Sun was charged with smuggling, ilegal mailing, and violating the Federal Insecticide, 7 USC §6 136i, 1361; 18 USC §§
Fungicide and Rodenticide Act (FIFRA) for allegedly selling an unregistered pesticide, Toamit 545, 1716

Virus Shut Out, through eBay, claiming that it would help protect individuals from viruses.

15UsC§ 781

‘The SEC temporarily suspended trading in the securities of BioELife Corp. f/k/a U.S. Lithium 15 USC§ 781
Corp. ("LITH") because of questions regarding the accuracy and adequacy of information in

the marketplace about the company, including a company press release reinforced by stock

promoters regarding a purported new "Coronavirus (COVID-19) Prevention Products Line”

that the company claimed to be producing and distributing.

The SEC temporarily suspended trading i the securities of Key Capital Corporation ("KCPC") 15 USC § 781
because of questions regarding the accuracy and adequacy of information in the

marketplace about KCPC common stock, particularly KCPC's ability to develop a COVID-19

vaccine and make it available to the mass market in three to six months.

The SEC temporarily suspended trading in the securities of Prestige Capital Corp. ("PGEC”) 15 USC§ 781
because of questions regarding the accuracy and adequacy of information in the
marketplace about PGEC common stock, including its financial condition and operations in
P y-name
company that manufactured N9S masks.
‘The SEC temporarily trading in th f Wellness ,Ine. 15USC§ 78l

("WMGR") because of questions regarding the accuracy and adequacy of information in the
marketplace about WMGR common stock, including statements WMGR made through
affiliated websites and a company consultant about selling home COVID-1 testing kits that
it claimed had been approved by the FDA.

The SEC temporarily suspended trading i the securities of No Borders, Inc. ("NBDR")
because of questions regarding the accuracy and adequacy of information in the
marketplace about NBDR since March 2020, including statements made about NBOR's
COVID19 specimen collection kits, an agreement to bring COVID-19 test kits to the United
States, and NBOR's activities related to personal i

15UsC§ 781

The SEC trading in indy Steele Unlimited Inc.
(“5STU") because of questions regarding the accuracy and adequacy of information in the
marketplace about SSTU common stock.

15UsC§ 781

Price gouging.

Ludlow was charged misbranded drugs into interstate
commerce by allegedly repackaging "Trinity Remedy” kits he smuggled from the UK as
“Trinity COVID-19 SARS Antipathogenic Treatment” kits, even though the kits had not been
approved by the FDA to treat COVID-19 o for any other use.

21UsC8§331,333

Baruch Feldheim was charged with assaulting a federal officer and making false statements 18 USC §§ 111, 1001
after allegedly coughing on FBI agents while claiming to have COVID-19, and lying about his
accumulation and sale of surgical masks, medical gowns, and other medical supplies.
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United States

United States

United States

United States
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United States
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United States

United States

United States

United States

United States

United States
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New Jersey

Frankiin County
Court of Common
Pleas

Chittenden
Superior Court

N.D. Ga.
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Erik Santos

Dragon Door Publications, Inc.

Auctions Unlimited LLC

Praxsyn Corporation ("PXYN")

Zoom Technologes, Inc. ("Z0OM")

Keith Lawrence Middlebrook

Downtown Smoke Shop Inc.

John Doe (AKA
"coronavirusmedicalkit.com")

Eastgate Biotech Corp. (*ETBI")

Aethlon Medical, Inc. (*AEMD")

3/30/2020

3/27/2020

3/26/2020

3/25/2020

3/25/2020

3/25/2020

3/24/2020

3/22/2020

2/24/2020

2/7/2020

UsDO)

Minnesota AG

Texas AG

SEC

SEC

UsDO)

Minnesota AG

UsDo)

SEC

Health care fraud

Price gouging.

Price gouging.

Stocktrading

Stocktrading

Consumer fraud

Price gouging.

Consumer fraud

Stock trading

Stock trading

Erik it iring to violate the
to commit health care fraud for allegedly engaging in a scheme to defraud Medicare by

solciting and receiving

<o a
diagnostic testing. As part of the scheme, Santos agreed to be paid kickbacks on a per-test
basis for COVID-19 tests, provided that those tests were bundled with a much more
expensive respiratory pathogen panel (RPP) test, which did not identify or treat COVID-19.

Dragon Door Publications, Inc. entered into an assurance of
Minnesota AG after allegedly selling N95 masks after the start of the COVID-19 crisis for $5
each, plus shipping, in violation of the Governor's order against price gouging on essential
items in times of emergency. The company also allegedly offered to donate N95 masks with
the sale of its ISOCHAIN exercise fitness program, which retails for $499.

Auctions Unlimited LLC was charged with violating the Texas Deceptive Trade Practices-
Consumer Protection Act (DTPA) for allegedly lsting a pack of 16 N5 masks on its website
for $180, even though local police and the Texas Attorney General warned website owner

Tim Worstell not to do so.

The SEC temporarily suspended trading i the securities of Praxsyn Corporation ("PXYN")
because of questions regarding the accuracy and adequacy of information in the
marketplace about PXYN since at least February 2020 relating to statements the company
made about having and, being able to obtain, arge quantities of N9S masks.

The SEC temporarily suspended trading in

("Z00M") because of

1t ZOOM, in light of the ab

e o
communications services.

Keith Lawrence Middlebrook was charged with wire fraud for allegedly soliciting
i ed

investments for a company that he claimed woul

prevent f d bl

COVID-19, when in fact there was no specific antiviral treatment for C

vaccine to prevent coronavirus infection.

Downtown Smoke Shop Inc. entered into an assurance of discontinuance with the
Minnesota AG after an investigation by the AG's offce allegedy found it was selling toilet
paper for $2.99 for one roll, $4.99 for two rolls, and $79.99 for a pack of 36 rolls, in
violation of the Governor's order against price gouging for essential items in times of

emergency. Th g

4.

$4.99, and packs of six nitrile exam gloves for $2.99 and twelve itrile exam gloves for
99.

The DOJ sought to enjoin

ongoing wire fraud for allegedly offering access to WHO vaccine
fact there was no COVID-19 vaccine at the time and the WHO was not distributing any such

vaccine.

‘The SEC temporarily suspended trading in the securiies of Eastgate Biotech Corp. (*ETBI")
because of questions regarding the accuracy and adequacy of information in the.
marketplace about ETBI since at least January 2020, including the company's purported
international marketing rights to an approved COVID-19 treatment.

‘The SEC temporarily suspended trading in the securities of Aethlon Medical, Inc. (*AEMD) 15 USC § 781
because of questions regarding the accuracy and adequacy of information in the.

marketplace about AEMD since at least January 2020, including viability of the company's

product to treat COVID-19, as well as unusual market activity.
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